Inverness Public Utility District

Fire Department & Water System
50 Inverness Way North e P.O. Box 469 e Inverness CA 94937 ¢ (415) 669-1414

Board of Directors AGENDA Regular Meeting
Wednesday, February 26, 2020 9:00 a.m. Inverness Firehouse
Opening

1. Call to Order; Attendance Report

2. Public Expression: Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters under the Board’s
jurisdiction but not on the posted agenda. Directors or staff “may briefly respond to statements made or
questions posed’ during Public Expression, but “no action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not
appearing on the posted agenda” (Gov. Code §54954.2(a)(3)). Members of the public may comment on any item
listed on the posted agenda at the time the item is considered by the Board.

3. Approval of Minutes: Regular meeting of January 22, 2020
The State of the District

4. Management Report: Shelley Redding, Jim Fox
e January 2020 Financial Reports
e Audit Report
e Search and Rescue Operation

5. Water System Report, January 2020: Senior Water Operator K. Fox
6. Fire Department Report, January 2020: Chief J. Fox

The Business of the District
7. Resolution 251-2020: Designating the District’s Administrator to Act in Place of the General Manager

8. Tenney Tank Project
¢ Report from ad hoc committee (meeting of Jan. 31)
e Status of SWRCB loan application

9. Proposal for an Increase in Water Rates
¢ Review and approve proposed changes in water rates and charges (to become effective July 1, 2020)
o Instruct staff to initiate Prop. 218 process for rates increase and set date of public hearing

10. Resolution 250-2020: Establishing Fund Categories in accordance with GASB Statement 54
11. Resolution 247-2020: Designating the Water System Tank Replacement Fund as a Committed Fund
12. Approval of Expenditures and Credit Card Charges: January 2020

13. Approval of personnel policy changes

Material provided in the meeting packet is available on the District’'s website, www.invernesspud.org, or by contacting the District office.
ltems may not be taken up in the order shown on this Agenda.
For assistance in participating in this event due to a disability as defined under the ADA, please call in advance to (415) 669-1414.

THE PUBLIC IS CORDIALLY INVITED TO ATTEND THIS MEETING

Board of Directors: Kenneth J. Emanuels, President ¢ Dakota Whitney, Vice President
Kathryn Donohue, Treasurer e Brent Johnson e David Press

@r 5
Shelley Redding, Administrator/Clerk of the Board
James K. Fox, Chief of Operations (Fire Chief, Water System Superintendent)



Inverness Public Utility District Board of Directors
Wednesday, February 26, 2020 AGENDA

Regular Meeting
Inverness Firehouse

14. Verizon Cell Phone Contract
15. CLAM Support Letter

Closing
16. Committee Meetings/Reports

17. Announcements, Next Meeting, Adjournment

Page 2

Posted 2/21/2020



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda ltem No. 1

Call to Order;
Attendance Report




Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 2

Public Expression

Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on
matters under the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the posted agenda.

Directors or staff “may briefly respond to statements made or
questions posed” during Public Expression, but “no action or
discussion shall be undertaken on any item not appearing on the
posted agenda” (Gov. Code §54954.2(a)(3)).

Members of the public may comment on any item listed on the posted
agenda at the time the item is considered by the Board.



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020




Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 3

Regular Meeting January 22, 2020
Minutes Approval



Inverness Public Utility District

Fire Department =3 Water System
50 Inverness Way North, P.O. Box 469, Inverness CA 94937 « (415) 669-1414

Board of Directors
DRAFT Minutes, Regular Meeting
Wednesday, January 22, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

Call to Order
President Emanuels called the meeting to order at the Inverness Firehouse at 9:03 a.m.

Attendance Report
Directors Present: Kenneth J. Emanuels, Dakota Whitney, Brent Johnson, Kathryn

Donohue
Directors Absent: David Press
Staff Present: Shelley Redding, Clerk and Administrator; Jim Fox, Chief of Opera-

tions; Wade Holland, Customer Services Manager

Officer Elections

M/S Whitney/Johnson to have current officers retain their positions for the year 2020:
President Ken Emanuels, Vice President Dakota Whitney, Treasurer Kathryn Donohue.
AYES 4, NOES 0

Public Expression

Resident Tom Baty addressed the Board regarding concerns pertaining to the potential
damage in relation to a new construction project in the final review stages with the
County of Marin Planning Department, and the potential Tenney Tank Construction Pro-
ject nearing a start. He submitted a request for consideration of an escrow account be
established to set aside funds from both parties to be used to repair damages to the
road and return it to the condition it was in prior. Director Emanuels acknowledged the
request and asked that it be added to the Agenda for the February Board meeting.

Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting of December 18, 2019

M/S Whitney/Donohue to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of December 18,
2019, as submitted. AYES 4, NOES 0

Management Report
Administrator/Clerk Redding, and Jim Fox reported on the following items:

¢ Financial Reports December 2019: Financial reports were presented for review.
Questions regarding revenue recorded and TOT revenue not received as of Decem-
ber, expenses related to Dues and Subscriptions and Bank Charges.

e Tenney Tank Loan Update: Administrator/Clerk Redding reported on the most re-
cent correspondence from Water Boards pertaining to our application for a Drinking
Water State Revolving Fund loan. The interest rate was reduced effective January
1, 2020 to 1.4%, the terms will require the Water System to demonstrate operating
income equal 1.2 times its operating expenses (including debt service), and loan
funding will be based on reimbursement of submitted expenses. Administrator/Clerk

Board of Directors: Kenneth J. Emanuels, President o Dakota Whitney, Vice President
Kathryn Donohue, Treasurer e Brent Johnson e David Press
& oS
Shelley Redding, Administrator e James K. Fox, Chief of Operations



INVERNESS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT PAGE 2 MINUTES, JANUARY 22, 2020

10.

11.

12.

Redding requested an ad hoc committee be designated to review the submitted ap-
plication package, updated financial projections, reserved funds and current water
rates. Director Emanuels directed Director Johnson and Treasurer Donohue to set
a meeting with staff before the next Board meeting to prepare a recommendation for
consideration for the Tenney Project.

e Marin County Local CSDA Special Districts Chapter Meeting: Administra-
tor/Clerk Redding advised the Board she will be attending a meeting on 1/28/2020
in Mill Valley.

e Verizon Wireless Government Contract: Administrator/Clerk Redding has re-
searched a cell phone contract for use by on-call staff for the purpose of a dedicated
phone number for after-hours calls for both the Water System and emergency re-
sponse. Director Emanuels acknowledged the request and asked Administra-
tor/Clerk Redding to submit a contract for consideration and approval at the next
Board meeting.

Water System Report (December 2019)

Superintendent J. Fox presented the report prepared by Senior Water Operator K. Fox.
The Board requested a comparison report showing current year, prior year, and average
amounts be presented in the future. Director Emanuels asked about the progress with
the new employees. Superintendent Fox reported on the trainings and the positive re-
sults so far.

Fire Department Report (December 2019)
A written report was submitted by Chief Jim Fox. Nothing of significance was reported.

Approval of Expenditures and Credit Card Charges

M/S Donohue/Johnson to approve the listed expenditures for December 2019
($78,823.52) and credit card charges invoiced on December 22, 2019 ($1,904.75 J.
Fox, $1,296.55 S. Redding). AYES 4, NOES 0.

Resolution 247-2020: Tank Replacement Fund

After discussion, Director Whitney requested that the Resolution be held over and
brought back at the February meeting for reconsideration in the context of the recom-
mendations of the ad hoc committee on the Tenney Tank project loan.

Resolution 249-2020: Appreciation for Kaaren Gann’s Service

M/S Donohue/Johnson to approve Resolution 249-2020, acknowledging appreciation
for Kaaren Gann’s service to the District. AYES 4, NOES 0.

Letter of Support for CLAM to Develop the Coast Guard Property in Point Reyes
Station

After discussion, the Board asked that this item be held over for further consideration at
the Board’s February meeting.

Committee Meetings/Reports

Administrator/Clerk Redding presented Board Members with the minutes from the Per-
sonnel Committee meeting held on January 15, 2020. The committee recommenda-
tions were summarized and Director Emanuels requested that the items recommended
for amendment be formally summarized for action at the next Board Meeting.



INVERNESS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT PAGE 3 MINUTES, JANUARY 22, 2020

Announcements, Next Meeting, Adjournment

The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for February 26, 2020,
at 9:00 a.m. at the Inverness Firehouse.

President Emanuels adjourned the meeting at 10:53 a.m.

These minutes were approved by the Board of Directors at the regular meeting on
, 2020.

Attest: Date:
Shelley Redding, Clerk of the Board




Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 4

Management Report

Clerk S. Redding and J. Fox

e January 2020 Financial Reports
e Audit Update
e Search and Rescue Operation




8:49 AM

02/20/20
Accrual Basis

Inverness PUD

Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2020

Jan 31, 20
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1-103 - Checking B of A (W) 378,938.46
Total Checking/Savings 378,938.46
Accounts Receivable
1-130 - Water Customers (W) 11,462.45
2-136 - Property Taxes (F) 9,604.43
Total Accounts Receivable 21,066.88
Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses
1-140 - Insurance (W) 7,051.33
1-146 - Other Prepaids (W) 2,724.74
2-140 - Insurance (F) 4,351.32
2-146 - Other Prepaids (F) 2,346.26
3-146 - Other Pre-Paid Expenses 4,309.51
Total Prepaid Expenses 20,783.16
1-110 - LAIF - Uncommitted (W) 6,687.47
1-116 - LAIF-Capital Projects (W) -17,565.65
1-117 - LAIF-Customer Deposits (W) 6,685.43
1-118 - LAIF-Accrued Vacation (W) 26,743.74
1-120 - LAIF- Main Replacement (W) 26,743.73
1-121 - LAIF-Tank Replacement (W) 46,801.03
1-123 - LAIF-Vehicle Replacement (W) 26,743.73
1-124 - LAIF-Emergency Reserves (W) 217,434.35
1-126 - LAIF Assigned Funds (W) -1,276,251.00
2-118 - LAIF-Accrued Vacation (F) 26,743.74
2-122 - LAIF-Equipment Replacement (F) 80,230.20
2-123 - LAIF-Vehicle Replacement (F) 26,743.73
2-124 - LAIF-Emergency Reserves (F) 267,434.35
2-126 - LAIF Assigned Funds (F) 1,337,886.00
3-125 - LAIF-CalPERS Liability 267,434.35
3-126 - LAIF - Assigned Funds -61,635.00
Total Other Current Assets 1,029,643.36
Total Current Assets 1,429,648.70
Fixed Assets
1-160 - Collection System (W) 352,967.24
1-170 - Distribution System (W) 1,083,068.78
1-180 - Tanks (W) 1,062,275.72
1-190 - Treatment Plants (W) 1,371,898.43
1-195 - Wells (W) 71,498.98
1-200 - Accumulated Depreciation -2,089,398.63
1-250 - Vehicles (W) 33,006.15
1-251 - Field Equipment (W) 22,583.61
1-260 - Office Equipment (W) 4,507.72
1-261 - Land (W) 66,319.95
1-300 - Accumulated Depreciation (W) -111,670.47
2-175 - Buildings (F) 179,065.76
2-180 - Tanks (F) 16,000.00
2-250 - Vehicles (F) 365,810.95
2-251 - Equipment (F) 162,013.30
2-252 - Communications Equipment (F) 69,950.09
2-253 - Personal Gear (F) 26,283.52
2-255 - Furnishings (F) 11,758.95
2-260 - Office Equipment (F) 16,186.35
2-280 - Other Fixed Assets (F) 58,449.10
2-300 - Accum. Depreciation-GF WIP -886,945.78
Total Fixed Assets 1,885,629.72

Page 1



8:49 AM Inverness PUD

02/20/20 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2020
Jan 31, 20
Other Assets
Construction in Progress
1-371 - Water Work in Progress
1371-22 - Tenney Tank Replacement 59,061.70
1371-23 - Colby Tank Replacement 3,633.75
1371-25 - Control & Monitoring Program 79,627.70
Total 1-371 - Water Work in Progress 142,323.15
3-371 - District Works in Progress
1371-01 - Office Technology Upgrade 4,739.87
Total 3-371 - District Works in Progress 4,739.87
Total Construction in Progress 147,063.02
1-299 - OPEB Prefunding (W) 459,257.88
391 - Deferred Outflows (pension) 196,825.00
4-100 - Unknown 142,612.00
Total Other Assets 945,757.90
TOTAL ASSETS 4,261,036.32
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
20000 - Accounts Payable 3,054.05
Total Accounts Payable 3,054.05
Credit Cards
2670 - US Bank Cal Card
XX-6477 - Cal Card - Eichastaedt 150.83
2670 - US Bank Cal Card - Other -2,968.58
Total 2670 - US Bank Cal Card -2,817.75
Total Credit Cards -2,817.75
Other Current Liabilities
1-410 - Payroll Tax Payable (W) 68.01
1-415 - Accrued Vacation (W) 9,011.01
1-416 - Deferred Inflows Pension 22,604.00
1-417 - OPEB Liability (W) 397,795.00
1-418 - Net Pension Liability (W) 282,636.00
1-420 - Retirement Payable (W) 1,649.46
1-430 - Customer Deposits (W) 14,089.46
1-435 - Deferred Revenue - Water 1,653.20
1-440 - Unearned Income (W) 62,223.50
2-410 - Payroll Tax Payable (F) 68.01
2-415 - Accrued Vacation (F) -3,658.23
2-420 - Retirement Payable (F) 2,927.74
4-415 - Unknown Liability 38,137.00
4-427 - OPEB Liability 170,484.00
426 - Deferred Inflows (pension) 9,687.00
Total Other Current Liabilities 1,009,375.16
Total Current Liabilities 1,009,611.46
Long Term Liabilities
425 - Net Pension Liability 121,129.00
Total Long Term Liabilities 121,129.00
Total Liabilities 1,130,740.46

Page 2



8:49 AM

02/20/20
Accrual Basis

Inverness PUD

Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2020

Jan 31, 20

Equity
1-520 - Invest Fixed Assets (W) 1,941,134.05
1-543 - Unrestricted 325,521.96
1-552 - Retained Earnings (W) -783,743.01
2-520 - Invest Fixed Assets (F) 27,108.88
2-541 - General Fund Bal (F) 1,449,999.00
3900 - Retained Earnings 76,082.84
Net Income 94,192.14
Total Equity 3,130,295.86
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 4,261,036.32

Page 3



8:40 AM Inverness PUD

02/20/20 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January 2020

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
N 600 - Property Tax Income
600-01 - Ad Valorem Property Taxes

Total N 600 - Property Tax Income
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
N 810 - Personnel Expenses

810-01 - Management
810-02 - Operations Personnel
810-04 - Employer Payroll Taxes
810-06 - Duty Officer
810-07 - Health Insurance Premiums
810-08 - Retirement Premiums
810-09 - Unfunded Accrued Liability

Total N 810 - Personnel Expenses

N 833 - Collection & Treatment
833-01 - Chemicals

Total N 833 - Collection & Treatment

N 835 - Lab & Monitoring
835-01 - BacT & Raw Samples

Total N 835 - Lab & Monitoring

N 840 - Maintenance & Utilities
840-04 - Tank Maintenance
840-07 - Collection-Treatment Utilities
840-08 - Distribution System Utilities
840-09 - Firehouse Utilities

Total N 840 - Maintenance & Utilities

N 844 - Storage & Distribution
844-01 - Telemetry

Total N 844 - Storage & Distribution

N 845 - Supplies & Inventory
845-01 - Supplies and Inventory
845-02 - Personal Protective Equipment

Total N 845 - Supplies & Inventory

N 850 - Training
850-01 - Volunteer Training
850-03 - Volunteer Appreciation

Total N 850 - Training

N 860 - Vehicle Operations
860-01 - Gas & Oil
860-02 - Repairs & Service

Total N 860 - Vehicle Operations

Jan 20

6,200.19

6,200.19

6,200.19

6,200.19

16,908.97
22,859.70
3,107.37
850.00
-29.72
4,634.97

3,495.87

51,827.16

445.10

445.10

294.00

294.00

610.00
1,965.19
80.70

1,218.48

3,874.37

230.84

230.84

1,110.28

461.12

1,571.40

313.16

-150.00

163.16

1,015.58

965.73

1,981.31

Page 1



8:40 AM

02/20/20
Accrual Basis

Inverness PUD

Profit & Loss
January 2020

N 870 - Administration

870-01

870-11

- Telephone, Internet, Cable
870-02 -
870-04 -
870-05 -
870-06 -
870-10 -

Dues & Publications

Financial Reporting/Audit
Office Supplies, Postage, Fees
Bank Charges

Public Relations & Outreach

- Office IT Support
870-12 -
870-14 -

Billing & Collections
Miscellaneous

Total N 870 - Administration

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Net Income

Jan 20

106.51
65.31
2,927.50
283.35
114.15
299.00
480.00
669.29

581.70

5,526.81

65,914.15

-59,713.96

-59,713.96

Page 2



8:35 AM
02/20/20

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
N 600 - Property Tax Income
N 700 - Water Charges
N 710 - Misc. Income

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense
N 810 - Personnel Expenses
N 830 - Dispatch & Communications
N 833 - Collection & Treatment
N 835 - Lab & Monitoring
N 840 - Maintenance & Utilities
N 843 - Fire Prevention
N 844 - Storage & Distribution
N 845 - Supplies & Inventory
N 850 - Training
N 860 - Vehicle Operations
N 870 - Administration

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income
Net Income

Inverness PUD

Accrual Basis Profit & Loss BUdget vs. Actual
July 2019 through January 2020

Jul '19 - Jan 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
366,007.10 406,405.00 -40,397.90 90.06%
252,293.85 234,609.00 17,684.85 107.54%

21,030.38 31,162.00 -10,131.62 67.49%
639,331.33 672,176.00 -32,844.67 95.11%
639,331.33 672,176.00 -32,844.67 95.11%
384,412.86 424,550.00 -40,137.14 90.55%

25,043.49 24,260.00 783.49 103.23%

2,725.09 2,625.00 100.09 103.81%
5,775.40 5,523.00 252.40 104.57%
38,644.65 38,684.31 -39.66 99.9%
1,665.00 7,000.00 -5,335.00 23.79%
1,615.88 2,323.00 -707.12 69.56%
20,858.20 7,863.31 12,994.89 265.26%
4,672.20

11,216.27

48,510.15 70,195.38 -21,685.23 69.11%
545,139.19 583,024.00 -37,884.81 93.5%

94,192.14 89,152.00 5,040.14 105.65%

94,192.14 89,152.00 5,040.14 105.65%

Page 1 of 1



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 5

Water System Report
(January 2020)




FIRE DEPARTMENT °

WATER SYSTEM

PosT OFFICE Box 469

INVERNESS,

CA 94937

INVERNESS PuBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

(415) 669-1414 ® FAX (415) 669-1010 ® INFORINVERNESSPUD.ORG

January — WATER SYSTEM REPORT - 2020

.. End of Month GPM
January Statistics 2020 Stream-flow | estimates GPD
RAINFALL (@ F1) D1 Est 40 57,600
Monthly total (in inches) 4.41” D2 42 60,480
Year to date (inches) 33 47,520
17.03” D3 !
7/1//2019 -> 1/31//2020
Avg. yearly since 1925 (inches) 37.72” D4 Est 47 67,680
STREAMFLOWS * end January D5 47 67,680
(approx. gpd) 482,400 D6 48 69,120
(approx. gpm) 335 D7 50 72,000

PRODUCTION: Monthly 1,853,600 gal D8 Est 15 21,600

Average gallons per Day 59,794 gal TOTAL 322 463,680

Average Gallons per Minute 41.5 gpm

SOURCES USED DISTRIBUTION  (USE BY ZONE)

1t Valley High Intakes (2) 80% Colby zone 836,500 45%
2nd Valley High Intakes (1) 0% Tenney zone 631,800+ 32%
3rd Valley High Intakes (1) 20% | Connerzone 42,900 2%
1st Valley lower/ (W1) nil%
W3 (minor use of both wells) nil% | Stockstill zone 256,700 14%
2" Valley lower (L2 +W4) 0% | Lower SH zone 128,600 7%
TOTAL 100.0%

Water Quality

*gpd = gallons per day; gpm = gallons per minute;
ppm = parts per million

All sources ultra and nano filtered; chlorine and turbidity correct continuously; no positive coliform bacteria samples from
distribution sample grabs. Samples of distribution water tested twice monthly and influent raw water are being collected once
a month for lab analysis of coliform content. Average CL> dose at F1— 0.6 parts per million (ppm); F3— 0.6 ppm

Major Activities

Monthly report to CA RWQCB

Regular Flushing of Via de la Vista/ Escondido main.

91 Perth: blue polybutylene service line replaced w copper

Similar leak found on Heather lane: previously abandoned service shut at water main corp. stop

Report of Sea Haven tank overflowing: PIL switch out of adjustment => remedied

F1 both Nano units chemically cleaned (CIP).  F1 ultra UF B CIP (UF A cleaned in Jan)

Found Leak 360 Via de la Vista property: gave resident temporary service from neighboring property until plumber repaired

Tenney Tank remote level indicator malfunction, recalibrated and now working correctly

F3 both UF and NF cleaned (CIP)

F3 Cleaned and installed new bug-proof vents on both break tank and finish tanks

Watershed brush clearing and chipping continues

L1 shed: repaired rotten siding, installed new weather-proof door

Minor SCADA system glitches at F1

Power shut off at Millerton site (PG&E per state park) caused major fail of SCADA for several days. Resolved when power

restored. (we will install solar backup eventually for SCADA site )

Paul Smedshammer visit: resolved failure of Colby site (water damage) and other more minor issues

New UPS backup power for SCADA at office installed

New solar panels and batteries installed at Conner tank

Begin work on D4 pipeline restoration M %
January 2020 Report

Ken Fox, T3, Senior Water Operator.



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 6

Fire Department Report

(January 2020)




INVERNESS VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT
P.O. Box 469, Inverness, CA 94937

FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT
January 2020

INCIDENTS:

# Date

#20-001 01-02EMS @ 510 Via de la Vista for back pain. M-94 code 2 transport to KTL.
#19-002 01-06 Tree down @ Vision Rd & SFD. Cleared.

#19-003 01-09 EMS @ 110 Madrone for back pain. M-94 No transport.

#19-004 01-11 Vehicle Accident @ Woodhaven & SFD. M-94 no transport.

#19-005 01-15 Tree & Wires down @ 160 Laurel Way. Cleared tree after PG&E de-energized lines.
#19-006 01-16 EMS @ 12784 SFD for possible seizure. M-94 code 2 transport to MGH.
#19-007 01-16 Tree Down @ Camino del Mar & Via de la Vista. No wires & DPW cleared.
#19-008 01-16 Tree & Wires down @ 125 Perth. Standby for PG&E & clear road.
#19-009 01-16 Tree Down @ 122 Hawthornden. DPW to have tree service clear.
#19-010 01-17 EMS @ 1 Drake Way for fall victim. M-94 code 2 transport to PVH.
#19-011 01-17 EMS @ 19 Inverness Way for head pain. M-96 code 2 transport to KTL.
#19-012 01-23 Smoke Check @ 45 Inverness Way. No merit. Chimney smoke.

#19-013  01-28 Welfare check @ 405 Aberdeen Way. Coroner called.

#19-014  01-29 Vehicle Accident @ 12340 SFD. Non- injury.

TRAININGS:
01-13 Drill. Rope Rescue.
01-29 Drill. Continuing Rope Rescue.

ACTIVITIES AND MAINTENANCE:

1. West Marin Chiefs in Bolinas to review filling West Marin Disaster Coordinator position.
2 MERA mobile radio to county radio shop for repair.

3 Community Disaster Plan meeting at Pt. Reyes Fire Station.

4. MERA Board meeting in Novato.
5

Disaster Radio Drill.

PERSONNEL: Mike Meszaros, Jim Fox, Ken Fox, Tom Fox, Burton Eubank, Brian Cassel, Jeff McBeth,
Matt McClaskey, Dennis Holton, Brett Miller, Bill Wessner, Roy Pitts, David Briggs, Scott Engler,
John Roche, David Wright, Kai Heimpel

Jim Fox



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 7

Resolution 251-2020

Designating the District’s Administrator to Act
in Place of the General Manager



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Agenda Item Staff Report

Subject: Resolution 251-2020: Designating Administrator to Act in Place of General Manager
Meeting Date:  February 26, 2020

Date Prepared:  February 15, 2020

Prepared by: Wade Holland, Customer Services Manager

Attachments: Draft Resolution 251-2020

Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution 251-2020

This “housekeeping” resolution is intended to provide Administrator Redding with clear authority to act
in the place of the General Manager while the District has no General Manager. Many, many documents
(e.g., ordinances, resolutions, Rules & Regulations, etc.) refer to the General Manager, and we need to
make sure that all references to “General Manager” are legally inclusive of “Administrator” in the ab-
sence of anyone formally designated as General Manager.

This resolution has been submitted to counsel for review.



Inverness Public Utility District

RESOLUTION 251-2020

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE INVERNESS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
DESIGNATING THE DISTRICT’S ADMINISTRATOR
TO ACT IN THE PLACE OF THE GENERAL MANAGER

WHEREAS, Public Utilities Code Section 16111 provides that “A general manager” is an officer
of a public utility district; and

WHEREAS, Public Utilities Code Section 16114 provides that “the general manager shall have
full charge and control of the construction of the works of the district and of their
maintenance and operation”; and

WHEREAS, the Inverness Public Utility District’s organizational chart includes the position of
General Manager; and

WHEREAS, the position of General Manager of the Inverness Public Utility District is currently
unfilled and vacant, and the Board of Directors is not currently pursuing recruitment and
engagement of a General Manager; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board of Directors that administration of the district be placed
in the charge of the district’s Administrator while the position of General Manager is
vacant;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Inverness Public
Utility District that in all instances in which duties, obligations, authority, responsibilities,
document executions, and the like are vested in, obliged to, or referenced to the General
Manager, such duties, obligations, authority, responsibilities, document executions, and the
like are hereby delegated to and vested in the district’s duly appointed Administrator.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this delegation to the Administrator shall expire at the
earliest of (a) the appointment by the Board of Directors of a General Manager, (b) any
action by this Board to revoke, withdraw, or nullify this resolution, or (c) termination of
the Administrator’s employment with the District.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inverness Public
Utility District on the__26th day of _ February , 2020, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Directors
NOES:

ABSTAINING:

ABSENT:

Kenneth J. Emanuels, President



Inverness Public Utility District -2- Resolution 251-2020

ATTEST:

Shelley Redding, Clerk of the Board

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkkkkkkkhkkkkkkhkkkhkkkkkkkkkkhkkkkhkkkkkkkkkkkhkkhkkkhkkkkkkkkhkkkkkkhkkkhkkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkkkkkkkkk

I hereby certify that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of the original of Resolution 251-
2020 on record in this office, and that subsequent to its adoption no provision of Resolution 251-2020 has
been amended, modified, or revoked by the governing body.

, Clerk of the Board, Inverness Public Utility District,

County of Marin, State of California.

By Date




Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 8

Tenney Tank Project

e Report from ad hoc committee
(meeting January 31, 2020)

e Status of SWRCB loan application



Tenney Tank Committee Meeting
1/31/2020 10:00am

Committee: Brent Johnson, Kathryn Donohue, Jim Fox, Wade Holland, Shelley Redding

The committee convened to discuss the Tenney Tank Project status and some associated items with
regard to the fiscal requirements for the loan from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB),
the current IPUD water rates and the construction timeline.

Prior to the meeting, Staff contacted the engineering firm, Brelje and Race, to have the site plans
reviewed for any engineering updates and cost estimates since the original drafts. The estimates
provided at the time of the funding application are still valid and the drawings are accurate. In
reviewing the permit issued by the County, it was noted that it requires a substantial portion of
construction be completed prior to the expiration date of 6/14/2020. The permit will require an
extension request to be submitted by staff. Preliminary notifications from the SWRCB have detailed
specific requirements for funding, that include the District maintain a 1.20% debt ratio, which includes
the debt service of the loan, with water rates that can support that goal.

In response the committee has identified these next steps:

1) Send an extension request form to the County of Marin Planning Department, requesting an
extension for the permit.
2) Contact the SWRCB to confirm that the debt ratio includes the debt service of the loan.
3) Conduct a comprehensive review of the water rates which should include:
a. A 15%increase in Operating Revenue
b. Shift the usage rate proportionally to the basic rate
c. Make rates fairer for customers whose consumption is primarily for essential (indoor)
usage.
4) Incorporate the recommended rate increase in budget projections for the next fiscal year.
5) Contact an environmental contractor to conduct the Spotted Owl survey.
6) Obtain permission from property owners for encroachment access for demolition.

The committee has identified March as the desired month to begin the project, which has an estimated
timeline of 19 months. Once IPUD receives final notice of funding, the engineering firm will manage the
bid process.



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 9

Proposal for an increase in Water
Rates

e Review and approve proposed changes in
water rates and charges (to become effective
7/1/2020)

¢ Instruct staff to initiate Prop 218 process for
rates increase and set date of public hearing



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020




Inverness Public Utility District
Board Agenda Item Staff Report

Subject: Proposal for an Increase in Water Rates
Meeting Date: ~ February 26, 2020

Date Prepared:  February 18, 2020

Prepared by: Wade Holland, Customer Services Manager

Attachments: Proposed water rates; Analysis of customer revenue; 3-year budget projection; Draft
Prop. 218 notice

Recommended Action: Instruct staff to proceed with the Prop. 218 process for a rate increase to be
placed in effect on July 1, 2020, and set the date and time for the Prop. 218 public hearing (May 27 in the
evening is recommended).

Staff has responded to the criteria established by the ad hoc committee that met on January 31, 2020, to
consider the Tenney Tank Project and the question of increasing water rates and charges in time to go into
effect on July 1, 2020 (it is assumed that the District will have committed to the Tenney Tank Project be-
fore the 2020/21 fiscal year begins on July 1).

The committee recommended the following criteria for structuring a new schedule of rates and charges:
a. Increase operating revenue by 15%
b. Adjust the Basic Charge and Usage Charge ratios to reduce nominally the proportion derived
from the Usage Charges (for a greater proportion of assured revenue)
c. Make rates fairer for customers whose consumption is primarily for essential (indoor) usage

Staff’s proposed rate structure would increase total revenue by 15.6%; would increase the percentage of
revenue from the Basic Charge from 77% to 81%; and would adjust the usage rate tiers so that for the
43% of residential customers who are in the “average usage” range, the increase in their water bills would
be 10.8% (this is accomplished principally by not charging for the first 4 ccf of water each customer uses
in the bimonthly billing period, which is approx. 50 gallons per day).

The first attachment shows the current and proposed water rates.

The second attachment shows how much revenue is raised by the current and the proposed rates, and
summarizes how much additional revenue would be raised by the proposed changes.

The third attachment is a 3-year operating budget projection that guided us in determining the amount of
additional revenue that a revised rate structure would have to raise. We had to ensure that each year’s
“Operating Income/Loss” (on the 2nd page) shows a positive figure of at least $6,600, because the
SDWREF loan contract (for the Tenney Tank Project) will require that operating revenue cover the Water
System’s operating expenses, the debt service on the loan (principal and interest payments), and a surplus
equal to 20% of the debt service amount (we have been told that the annual debt service assuming we bor-
row the entire $800,000 we have asked for will be around $33,000, so 20% would come to $6,600). After
also making deposits (as scheduled by Resolution 247-2020, which is also on today’s agenda) into the
Tank Replacement Fund, as required by the Prop. 218 conditions that were incorporated into the January
2018 and July 2019 rate increases, the Water System would have a 3-year net income/loss of -$2,580.
This very-close-to-zero amount, from a three-year look-ahead, suggests that the proposed new rate struc-
ture represents the absolutely minimum necessary increase in water revenue.

The next set of attachments constitute a draft of the four pages of the proposed Prop. 218 notice that we
will mail to the owners/customers at all parcels served by the Water System. If you agree to proceed with
the rate increase proposal, you must set a date and time for the public notice. We recommend an evening
meeting on Wednesday, May 27, which is the date of your regular May Board meeting (conduct the Prop.



218 public hearing first and then conduct your regular monthly meeting business). The last time rates
were changed, in 2017, you scheduled the Prop. 218 meeting for 6 p.m.

The Prop. 218 public hearing must be held before the end of May, because the ordinance changing the
water rates that you may adopt after the public hearing will not go into effect until 30 days later (and we
have to have it in effect before July 1). The Prop. 218 notices must be mailed at least 45 days before the
date of the public hearing. Thus, the notices would have to be mailed by Friday, April 11 if the public
hearing is scheduled for Wednesday, May 27.

Please note that once you commit to the Prop. 218 notice, you will not be able to make any changes to the
proposed rates and charges as shown in the Prop. 218 notice. At the public hearing, you will be limited to
either approving or rejecting the proposed rates. To make any changes, you would have to first reject the
proposed rates, then start over with an entirely new Prop. 218 process (which would delay the effective
date of a revised schedule of rates until at least Oct. 1, and the current rates would remain in effect until
that time).



PROPOSAL FOR CHANGES IN WATER RATES AND CHARGES, JULY 1, 2020

CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES
(as of 7/1/2019) (to become effective 7/1/2020)
Basic Charge (bimonthly) Basic Charge (bimonthly)
Regular 121.00 Regular 146.00
Lifeline: Very low income 60.50 Lifeline: Very low income 73.00
Lifeline: Extremely low income 30.25 Lifeline: Extremely low income 36.50
Usage Rates (per ccf) Usage Rates (per ccf)
1-12 ccf 2.70 1-4 ccf -
13-36 ccf 4.20 5-12 ccf 3.00
37-48 ccf 5.90 13-24 ccf 5.00
49-60 ccf 8.10 25-36 ccf 6.00
60 & up* 24.40 37-48 ccf 10.00
49-60 ccf 12.00
60 & up* 28.00
1 ccf = 748 gallons 1 ccf = 748 gallons
Cross Connection Charge (bimonthly) Cross Connection Charge (bimonthly)
Each cross connection 10.00 Each cross connection 12.00

* This tier is not applicable to nonresidential customer accounts, for which the top tier
is 49 & up.

Note: The Cross Connection Charge currently applies to 18 customers who have a water
storage tank or other source of water (such as a well) on the property.

Under the Proposed Rates, each customer will be entitled to use of up to 4 ccf of
water (approximately 50 gallons a day over the two-month period) at no charge.




ANALYSIS OF CUSTOMER REVENUE
UNDER CURRENT AND PROPOSED RATE STRUCTURES

Current Rates Basic Charge Usage Charge Total
Jan/Feb 62,224.25 10,238.10 72,462.35
Mar/Apr 62,224.25 9,557.90 71,782.15
May/Jun 62,224.25 21,140.30 83,364.55
Jul/Aug 62,224.25 29,723.40 91,947.65
Sep/Oct 62,224.25 24,460.40 86,684.65
Nov/Dec 62,224.25 15,728.00 77,952.25
Year Totals 373,345.50 110,848.10 484,193.60
77% 23%
Proposed Rates Basic Charge Usage Charge Total
Jan/Feb 75,226.50 7,943.00 83,169.50
Mar/Apr 75,226.50 7,208.00 82,434.50
May/Jun 75,226.50 21,759.00 96,985.50
Jul/Aug 75,226.50 32,301.00 107,527.50
Sep/Oct 75,226.50 24,460.40 99,686.90
Nov/Dec 75,226.50 14,667.00 89,893.50
Year Total 451,359.00 108,338.40 559,697.40
81% 19%
Full-Year Comparison Current Rates! Proposed Rates: Percent Increase
Basic Charge revenue 373,345.50 451,359.00 20.9%
Usage Charge revenue 110,848.10 108,338.40 -2.3%
Total Customer Revenue 484,193.60 559,697.40 15.6%

Note: Base is calendar year 2019.

S:\2Water\Water Rates-Rate Change\2020 Rates Change\Rates setting analysis.xIsx

Inverness Public Utility District Water System

wbh 2/18/2020 1:58 PM




Inverness Public Utility District 3-Year Budget Projection for Water System Public Hearing, [date], 2020

E:;:::::d Projection for | Projection for | Projection for
2019/20* 1920/21 2021/22 2022/23
Income
700 - Water Charges
700-01 Basic Charge 373,700 452,100 452,100 452,100
700-02 Usage Charges 110,900 108,400 108,400 108,400
700-03 Cross Connection Fees 1,100 1,300 1,300 1,300
700-04 Misc Charges 9,100 9,100 1,500 1,500
700-05 Uncollectibles 0 -1,400 -900 0
Total Water Revenue 494,800 569,500 562,400 563,300
710 Miscellaneous Income
710-01 Customer Work Overhead 500 500 500 500
710-02 Other Income 4,100 4,200 4,300 4,400
Total Miscellaneous Income 4,600 4,700 4,800 4,900
Total Income 499,400 574,200 567,200 568,200
Expense
810 Personnel Costs
810-01 Management 21,300 22,000 22,800 23,600
810-02 Operations Personnel 177,500 159,700 33,100 34,300
810-03 Administrative Personnel 12,500 12,900 165,300 171,100
810-04 Employer Payroll Taxes 15,500 15,300 15,800 16,400
810-07 Health Insurance Premiums 54,500 39,000 40,300 41,700
810-08 Retirement Premiums 27,200 23,600 24,400 25,200
810-09 Unfunded Accrued Liability 33,000 33,400 34,600 35,800
810-10 Accrued Vacation 15,500 16,200 16,800 17,400
810-11 Workers Comp Insurance 9,800 9,900 10,300 10,700
Total Personnel Costs 366,300 332,000 363,400 376,200
833 Collection & Treatment
833-01 Chemicals 4,000 4,700 4,900 5,100
Total Collection & Treatment 4,000 4,700 4,900 5,100
835 Lab & Monitoring
835-01 BacT & Raw Samples 3,500 4,500 4,600 4,700
835-02 Periodic Samples 5,100 5,300 5,500 5,700
835-03 Lead & Copper 500 1,000 1,100 1,200
Total Lab & Monitoring 9,100 10,800 11,200 11,600
840 Maintenance & Utilities
840-01 Equipment Maint 500 1,100 1,200 1,300
840-02 Building Maint 500 1,100 1,200 1,200
840-04 Tank Maintenance 600 700 800 900
840-05 Collect. & Treatment Maint. 7,000 9,300 9,600 1,000
840-06 Distribution System Maintenance 15,000 10,700 11,100 11,500
844-07 Collection & Treatment Utilities 30,000 30,900 32,000 33,100
844-08 Distribution System Utilities 5,000 7,100 7,400 7,700
Total Maintenance & Utilities 58,600 60,900 63,300 56,700
844 Storage & Distribution
844-01 Telemetry 2,800 2,900 3,000 3,100
844-02 Cross Connect Maintenance 300 1,200 1,300 1,400
844-03 Miscellaneous 700 800 900 1,000
Total Storage & Distribution 3,800 4,900 5,200 5,500
845 Supplies and Inventory
845-01 Supplies and Inventory 1,000 1,100 1,200 1,300
Total Supplies and Inventory 1,000 1,100 1,200 1,300
850 Training
850-01 Certification & Courses 2,000 2,100 2,200 2,300
Total Training 2,000 2,100 2,200 2,300
860 Vehicle Operations
860-01 Gas & Oil 5,000 5,200 5,400 5,600
860-02 Repairs & Service 6,000 6,200 6,400 6,600
Total Vehicle Operation 11,000 11,400 11,800 12,200
870 Administration
870-01 Telephone, Internet, Cable 1,500 1,600 1,700 1,800
870-02 Dues & Publications 1,000 1,000 1,100 1,200
870-03 Insurance 8,700 9,000 9,300 9,600
870-04 Financial Reporting/Audit 3,500 3,300 3,400 3,500
870-05 Water System Fees 2,000 3,700 3,800 3,900
870-09 Travel, Meetings, Training 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,100
870-10 Public Relations & Outreach 500 500 500 600
870-11 IT Support 6,000 9,600 10,000 10,300

S:\2Water\Water Rates-Rate Change\2020 Rates Change\3-yr Budget Projections.xlsx 2/14/2020 4:26 PM  Page 1 of 2



Inverness Public Utility District 3-Year Budget Projection for Water System Public Hearing, [date], 2020

E::tlmatid Projection for | Projection for | Projection for
urren
1920/21 2021/22 2022/23
2019/20* / / /
870-12 Billing & Collections 8,600 9,000 9,300 9,600
870-14 Miscellaneous 1,000 500 500 600
Total Administration 33,800 39,200 40,600 42,200
Debt Service
Interest
Principal
Total Debt Service 0 10,000 20,000 33,000
Total Expenses 490,100 477,100 523,800 546,100
Operating Income/Loss 9,300 97,100 43,400 22,100
Unfulfilled prior commitment to Tank Replace-
ment Fund ($174,480) -9,300 -55,060 -55,060 -55,060
Net Income/Loss 0 42,040 -11,660 -32,960
|3-Year Combined Net Income/Loss -2,580

* Data for current 2019/20 year is based on actuals for July through December 2019 and estimates for January through June 2020.

S:\2Water\Water Rates-Rate Change\2020 Rates Change\3-yr Budget Projections.xlsx 2/14/2020 4:26 PM  Page 2 of 2



INVERNESS PuBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

*,

FIRE DEPARTMENT  ** WATER SYSTEM

PosT OFFICE BOX 469
50 INVERNESS WAY NORTH
INVERNESS, CA 94937

(415)669-1414 % FAX(415) 6691010 < ADMIN@INVERNESSPUD.ORG *“ INVERNESSPUD.ORG

PUBLIC HEARING ON CHANGES IN WATER RATES AND CHARGES

PURPOSE: Receive public comment on and consider adopting changes in water
rates and charges

WHEN: [day], [date], 2020, [time]

WHERE: Inverness Firehouse, 50 Inverness Way North, Inverness

The Board of Directors of the Inverness Public Utility District is proposing changes to the Water Sys-
tem’s rates and charges in order to increase the Water System’s operating revenues by 15.6%, effec-
tive July 1, 2020. One feature of the proposed new rates structure would be to include within each cus-
tomer’s Basic Charge a base amount of water (approx. 50 gallons a day) at no additional charge.

REASON FOR THE PROPOSED INCREASE IN REVENUE

Although a two-stage increase in water rates was put into effect beginning in January 2018, all the rev-
enue from that set of rate increases was dedicated primarily to critical infrastructure needs, such as re-
placement of aging storage tanks and water mains in Seahaven. The last increase in rates and charges
that provided additional revenue for ordinary operating expenses was in July 2009. The Water System
can no longer sustain its day-to-day operating costs with a revenue flow based on rates and charges
adopted 11 years ago.

The need for an approx. 15% increase in operating revenue is based on a three-year budget projection,
that also takes into account the decision to participate in the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund to
finance the Water System’s next major capital project, replacement of the storage tanks at the critical
Tenney Tank Site. This loan program, underwritten by voter-approved state water bonds, enables us to
jumpstart a project that otherwise would be beyond our capability to fund in a timely manner on a pay-
as-you-go basis (always our preferred method). The District will borrow up to $800,000 to replace the
Tenney site’s two aging (and badly leaking!) redwood tanks with state-of-the-art bolted-steel tanks (one
holding 52,700 gallons, and the other holding 43,700 gallons, replacing a 60,000-gallon tank and a
10,000-gallon tank). The 30-year loan will be repaid at the low interest rate of 1.4% (over the life of the
loan, the interest component will account for only 16.7% of total payments).

Except for a small amount of water that is treated at our Third Valley treatment plant, all water in the
system goes through the main treatment plant at the top of Perth Way and then into the Tenney tanks,
from where it flows directly into distribution mains and to four other tank sites. Thus, the Tenney tanks
are the critical link in both our storage system and our distribution system: We absolutely cannot allow
aging infrastructure at the Tenney site to deteriorate to the point of a potentially catastrophic failure.
The Board of Directors has determined that it is most prudent to proceed immediately to replace the
Tenney tanks by accessing the very-low-cost financing available to us at this time from the state bonds.
This also means that, without having to incur additional debt, our normal reserves that are funded from
customer revenue will remain available for the myriad of other smaller projects that will need to be ad-
dressed on an on-going basis (the Water System has no existing debt; the Fire Department has an an-
nual $12,000 obligation as its share of the Marin Emergency Radio Authority’s bonded indebtedness).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: KENNETH EMANUELS, PRESIDENT ¢ DAKOTA WHITNEY, VICE PRESIDENT
KATHRYN DONOHUE, TREASURER ¢ BRENT JOHNSON ¢ DAVID PRESS

& oS
SHELLEY REDDING, ADMINISTRATOR e JAMES K. FOX, CHIEF OF OPERATIONS


mailto:admin@invernesspud.org

Inverness Public Utility District Page 2 Public Hearing, [date], 2020

Please be advised that, pursuant to Sec. 6 of Article XllI D of the Constitution of the State of California,
notice is hereby given that the parcels upon which the proposed water rates and charges are to be im-
posed are all parcels in Marin County served by a customer connection to the Inverness Public Utility
District Water System. The amounts of the charges shall be determined on the basis of the volume of
water used by each served parcel in each bimonthly billing period using the schedule of rates and
charges shown on Page 3 of this notice. These rates and charges were determined on the basis of a
three-year budgeting projection.

HOW WILL THE AVERAGE BILL BE AFFECTED?

The proposed changes would add an average of $7.85 per month ($15.70 per bimonthly bill) to the cost
of water service for a typical single-family residence, beginning in July 2020. A typical residential cus-
tomer is billed for 9 units of water (approximately 6,700 gallons) per billing period.

For the 43% of residential customers whose typical bimonthly water usage is in the range of 4-12 units
(approximately 3,000 to 9,000 gallons per billing period), the total bill will increase by 10.8%.

NOTEWORTHY DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED CHANGES

e Each customer will be entitled to use of up to 4 ccf of water (approximately 50 gallons per day
over the typical two-month billing period) at no charge; this base allotment of water will be in-
cluded in the Basic Charge.

¢ The bimonthly “Cross Connection Charge” applies currently to 18 customers who have a water
storage tank or other source of water (such as a well) on their property. This charge will in-
crease from $10 to $12, to reflect increased costs of inspecting and maintaining the installed
Cross connection prevention devices as required by this State-mandated program.

PUBLIC HEARING

A public hearing will be held at the District's office (50 Inverness Way North, Inverness) at [time] on
[day], [date], 2020, to consider enactment of the proposed changes. You are cordially invited to attend
and testify at the hearing or to mail your comments in advance to P.O. Box 469, Inverness, CA, 94937.
For more information, visit the District’s website (invernesspud.org) or phone (415) 669-1414.

If you wish to protest against the proposed fees and charges, you must submit your protest in writing
prior to the close of the [date], 2020, public hearing. A written protest must legibly identify and be
signed by the owner of (or the Water System customer of record for) the affected property, and must
include a description of the property (Assessor’'s Parcel Number or Water System account number).
Protests can be mailed, faxed, emailed (if appropriately signed), or delivered to the applicable address
shown at the top of Page 1 of this notice prior to the close of the public hearing. If written protests are
submitted by a majority of the affected property owners or customers, the proposed changes will not be
imposed (you must submit your protest in writing even if you testify at the public hearing).

If the number of protests received does not meet the threshold that requires withdrawal of the proposal
to change the rates and charges, the Board Directors may immediately adopt an ordinance enacting
the proposed changes in rates and charges to go into effect no later than July 1, 2020.



Inverness Public Utility District Page 3 Public Hearing, [date], 2020

SCHEDULE OF CURRENT RATES AND PROPOSED NEW RATES

CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES
(as of 7/1/2019) (to become effective 7/1/2020)
Basic Charge (bimonthly) Basic Charge (bimonthly)
Regular 121.00 Regular 146.00
Lifeline: Very low income 60.50 Lifeline: Very low income 73.00
Lifeline: Extremely low income 30.25 Lifeline: Extremely low income 36.50
Usage Rates (per ccf) Usage Rates (per ccf)
1-12 ccf 2.70 1-4 ccf ---
13-36 ccf 4.20 5-12 ccf 3.00
37-48 ccf 5.90 13-24 ccf 5.00
49-60 ccf 8.10 25-36 ccf 6.00
60 & up* 24.40 37-48 ccf 10.00
49-60 ccf 12.00
60 & up* 28.00
1 ccf = 748 gallons 1 ccf = 748 gallons
Cross Connection Charge (bimonthly) Cross Connection Charge (bimonthly)
Each cross connection 10.00 Each cross connection 12.00

* This tier is not applicable to nonresidential customer accounts, for which the top tier
is 49 & up.

Note: The Cross Connection Charge currently applies to 18 customers who have a water
storage tank or other source of water (such as a well) on the property.

Under the Proposed Rates, each customer will be entitled to use of up to 4 ccf of
water (approximately 50 gallons a day over the two-month period) at no charge.

Please see Page 4 for examples of water bills under the current and the proposed rates.



Inverness Public Utility District Page 4 Public Hearing, [date], 2020

EXAMPLES OF WATER BILLS UNDER CURRENT AND PROPOSED RATES

Current Rates Proposed Rates
Number of
units used
in

bimonthly

billing Usage Basic Usage Basic Percent

period* Charge Charge Total bill Charge Charge Total bill increase

0 0.00 121.00 121.00 0.00 146.00 146.00 20.7%

1 2.70 121.00 123.70 0.00 146.00 146.00 18.0%

3 8.10 121.00 129.10 0.00 146.00 146.00 13.1%

4 10.80 121.00 131.80 0.00 146.00 146.00 10.8%

5 13.50 121.00 134.50 3.00 146.00 149.00 10.8%

9 24.30 121.00 145.30 15.00 146.00 161.00 10.8%

12 32.40 121.00 153.40 24.00 146.00 170.00 10.8%

24 82.80 121.00 203.80 84.00 146.00 230.00 12.9%

36 133.20 121.00 254.20 156.00 146.00 302.00 18.8%

48 204.00 121.00 325.00 276.00 146.00 422.00 29.8%

50 220.20 121.00 341.20 300.00 146.00 446.00 30.7%

60 301.20 121.00 422.20 420.00 146.00 566.00 34.1%

72 594.00 121.00 715.00 756.00 146.00 902.00 26.2%

100 1,277.20 121.00 1,398.20 1,540.00 146.00 1,686.00 20.6%

* 1 unit =1 ccf = 748 gallons

The average water bill for a residential customer is for 9 units.

43% of residential customers use between 4 and 12 units on a typical water bill. Usage within
this range will translate under the new rates into an increase of 10.8% on the total bill.




Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 10

Resolution 250-2020

Establishing Fund Categories in accordance with
GASB Statement 54



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Agenda Item Staff Report

Subject: Resolution 250-2020: Establishing Fund Types for Consistency with GASB 54
(thereby revoking Resolution 194-2011)

Meeting Date:  February 26, 2020

Date Prepared:  February 15, 2020

Prepared by: Wade Holland, Customer Services Manager

Attachments: Draft Resolution 250-2020; Schematic of GASB fund types

Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution 250-2020

As promised, staff has re-examined the District’s existing, unwieldy list of and classification criteria for
reserved funds. We have come to the conclusion that a misreading of GASB 54 led to the conclusion that
the District was required to set up a separate fund for virtually every type of recurring expense.

In fact, the purpose of GASB 54 was simply to standardize the definitions of and terminology for the vari-
ous types of reserved funds that might be used by public agencies. In the past, the same term (such as
“sinking fund”) might be used from one agency to the next for funds governed by very different types and
levels of spending constraints.

The schematic that is included in the packet shows how GASB 54 classifies all funds into a simple matrix
of five levels, from “Nonspendable” to “Unassigned.” GASBE 54 itself does not mandate use of reserved
funds at all, but if you do maintain reserved funds you should categorize them as shown so that the con-
straints that apply to any particular fund are clear and consistent among agencies.

Staff is recommending that operating funds be designated as “Unassigned,” that operating reserves be
designated as “Assigned,” that funds intended for saving for large, pay-as-you-go projects and purchases
(such as vehicles) be designated as “Committed,” and that funds whose spending constraints are dictated
externally by a third-party source be designated as “Restricted.” Staff is unaware of any District funds
that would be appropriate for designation as “Nonspendable.”

We are also proposing criteria for setting up operating reserves.



AS promised,Inverness Public Utility District

RESOLUTION 250-2020

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE INVERNESS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
ESTABLISHING AND CLASSIFYING THE DISTRICT’S FUND CATEGORIES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATEMENT NO. 54 OF THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD,
THEREBY REVOKING AND REPLACING RESOLUTION 194-2011

WHEREAS, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Inverness Public Utility District desires to revise, re-establish, and
reclassify the various types of funds reported by the Inverness Public Utility District as previously set by
Inverness Public Utility District Resolution 194-2011 in a manner that is consistent with the standards of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Inverness Public Utility District
hereby withdraws and revokes Resolution 194-2011 and declares all of its provisions and contents to be no
longer applicable; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Inverness Public Utility District hereby
establishes and classifies the funds reported by the District as follows:

EFUND CATEGORIES

Nonspendable Funds

The “Nonspendable Funds” category shall consist of resources that are not in spendable form (such as
inventories) or are legally required to be maintained intact (such as endowments); the District does not
currently maintain funds in this category.

Restricted Funds

The “Restricted Funds” category shall consist of amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes
stipulated by the California Constitution, by external resource providers, or through enabling legislation;
these fund amounts are constrained externally by a third party (such as a grantor or contributor), which
constraints are legally enforceable by the external parties.

Committed Funds

The “Committed Funds” category shall consist of amounts that can be used only for specific purposes
determined by formal action of the District’'s Board of Directors; maintenance of these funds, and use of
the amounts in these funds, are at the discretion of the Board of Directors as it shall determine from time
to time.

Assigned Funds

The “Assigned Funds” category shall consist of amounts that are intended to be used for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed; in general, these fund
amounts are intended to constitute the District’s, and its departments’, operating reserves.

Unassigned Funds

The “Unassigned Funds” category shall constitute the residual balance of the District's funds and shall
include all spendable amounts not contained in the other categories.

FUNDS ESTABLISHED

Nonspendable Funds

No funds are established as Nonspendable Funds.



Inverness Public Utility District Page 2 Resolution 250-2020

Restricted Funds

1. West Marin Emergency Services Fund (WMES Fund) (Fire Department)
2. Transient Occupancy Tax Fund (TOT Fund) (Fire Department)
3. [Placeholder for any fund required by Drinking Water State Revolving Fund loan] (Water System)

Committed Funds

1. Water System Tank Replacement Fund
2. Fire Department Vehicle Replacement Fund
3. Water System Vehicle Replacement Fund

Assigned Funds

1. Operating reserve for General Fund
2. Operating reserve for Water System
3. Operating reserve for Fire Department

Unassigned Funds
1. Operating fund

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the fund categories and the funds set forth herein shall be and are effective
beginning with the 2019/2020 fiscal year, and that any previously established fund categories and funds are
hereby replaced by the fund categories and the funds stated herein or established subsequently by Board
action;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT existing fund balances as of June 30, 2019, shall be restated, by Board
action, to one or more of the above defined or subsequently established funds;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the operating reserves in the Assigned funds category shall be established
as follows:

Operating reserve for General Fund: 3 months’ worth of average monthly General Fund operating

expenses
Operating reserve for Water System: 2 months’ worth of average monthly Water System operating
expenses
Operating reserve for Fire Department: 4 months’ worth of average monthly Fire Department operating
expenses

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inverness Public Utility District
on the 26th day of February, 2020, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Directors
NOES:

ABSTAINING:

ABSENT:

Kenneth J. Emanuels, President

ATTEST:

Shelley Redding, Clerk of the Board




Inverness Public Utility District Page 3 Resolution 250-2020

| hereby certify that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of the original of
Resolution 250-2020 on record in this office, and that subsequent to its adoption no provision
of Resolution 250-2020 has been amended, modified, or revoked by the governing body.

, Clerk of the Board, Inverness Public Utility
District, County of Marin, State of California.

By Date




SJUIEIISUOD ON L —um—CM._.mmMCD

|e10

pazpoyine Jo Apoq Sujuianod Aq juaju)
$0 u0IsSadXa TYNYILNI U 51 JUIRIISUO) ' _u.m___._m_ SSY

..._#.__..__E_..m Jupjew
uoisiaap jo |ana| 1sayd|y ay3 duisn
uoIoe jewuoy Jo (332 ‘pieog ‘IuUno))
Aoyane jo [2a3) 1saydiy s,uswiianod ' PeauWWIoD
|e30] Aq pasoduwii ATTYNYILNI Jujesisuo)

saied [Euap@ Aq ajqeadiojua Ajjedaq
‘uone|sida) Suljgeua Ag J0 uonnisuo) t _Umuu_.\_“_.mm#_
aje3s (12 YoInguiuod sojuess) Aped

pay3 Ag pasodw ATTYNHILXI Juiensuo)

jJ2eju) paulejulew aq o} paiinbau Ajjeda) t m_A_.._m_u_,.hﬁ..“_m_.:_..._,.Z

a4y 10 W0} 3jqepuads ul Jou 523.n0s3Yy

SNOILVIIHISSV1O
JONVIVE ANN4d M3IN ONIATddV




Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting January 22, 2020

Agenda Item No. 11

Resolution 247-2020

Designating the Water System Tank
Replacement Fund as Committed
Fund



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Agenda Item Staff Report

Subject: Resolution 247-2020: Designating the Water System Tank Replacement Fund
as a Committed Fund and Declaring an Intent to Transfer Specified Customer
Revenue into the Water System Tank Replacement Fund

Meeting Date: February 26, 2020

Date Prepared: February 15, 2020

Prepared by: ~ Wade Holland, Customer Services Manager

Attachments:  Draft Resolution 247-2020 (with 2-page Analysis attachment)

A version of this resolution was brought before your Board at the January 22, 2020, meeting.
Your Board asked that it be reconsidered by staff and brought back to you this month.

The resolution has been simplified considerably, and now incorporates language to make it con-
sistent with the recommendations of the ad hoc Tenney Tank project committee and the follow-
ing assumptions: (1) That the Board will move ahead with the Tenney Tank replacement project,
(2) That the Board will accept the DWSRF loan for purposes of financing construction of the
new Tenney tanks, (3) That the Board will instruct staff to start the Prop. 218 process to increase
water rates and charges in time to become effective on July 1, 2020, based on the new water rates
and charges also being proposed at this time.

Consistent with Resolution 250-2020, also on your agenda for this meeting, this Resolution 247-
2020 first reclassifies the existing Water System Tank Replacement Fund as a “Committed” fund
(under GASBE 54) rather than as an “Assigned” fund (and ensures that the balance of $46,801 in
the existing fund also transfers into the new “Committed” fund).

Next, Resolution 247-2020 approves the analysis (attached to the Resolution) that determined
that the amount of customer revenue raised by the January 2018 and July 2019 rate increases
comes to a total of $174,480 (January 1, 2018 — June 30, 2020).

Thirdly, Resolution 247-2020 declares the Board’s intention to amortize that $174,480 obligation
by making transfers into the Tank Replacement Fund over a period of four fiscal years (once
funds are placed in the fund, they can be immediately expended for qualifying purposes).

Finally, the resolution declares your Board’s intention to replace the January 2018 and July 2019
rate increases with the new increase anticipated for July 2020 (eliminating the restrictive lan-
guage that accompanied the 2018 and 2019 increases).

The 2-page attachment to the resolution shows how we determined how much of the revenue
from the water bills since the 2018 and 2019 rate increases went into effect was attributable to
those increases. This is the amount that must be set aside into the Tank Replacement Fund, pur-
suant to the Prop. 218 conditions that governed the 2018 and 2019 increases.



Inverness Public Utility District
RESOLUTION 247-2020

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INVERNESS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
DESIGNATING THE WATER SYSTEM TANK REPLACEMENT FUND AS A COMMITTED FUND AND
DECLARING ITS INTENT TO TRANSFER SPECIFIED CUSTOMER REVENUE INTO
THE WATER SYSTEM TANK REPLACEMENT FUND

WHEREAS, a Water System Tank Replacement Fund was established by Inverness Public Utility District
Resolution 194-2011, pursuant to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 54; and,

WHEREAS, the existing Water System Tank Replacement Fund is an “Assigned” fund, as defined by GASB
Statement No. 54, in which there is currently a balance of $46,801; and,

WHEREAS, on October 25, 2017, in accordance with Article XIll D, Section 6, of the Constitution of the
State of California, the Board of Directors conducted a public hearing to consider a proposed
increase in water rates for the customers of the Inverness Public Utility District Water System
and then enacted Ordinance No. 87-2017 setting new water rates as proposed; and,

WHEREAS, noticing of the public hearing and of the proposed increases in the water rates was
conducted in accordance with the requirements of Article XIII D, Section 6, of the Constitution of
the State of California (commonly referred to as “Prop. 218)”; and,

WHEREAS, the new water rates increased the amount of the Basic Charge and the amounts of the usage
tiers by an average of fifteen percent (15%) to become effective on January 1, 2018, and
increased the amount of the Basic Charge and the amounts of the usage tiers by an average of
five percent (5%) to become effective on July 1, 2019 (for cumulative twenty-one percent (21%)
average increases in both the Basic Charge and the usage tier rates); and,

WHEREAS, it was stated in said public noticing that “It is the District’s intention that nearly all of the
revenue generated by these rate increases (estimated at $84,000 annually) will be dedicated
primarily to tank replacement”; and,

WHEREAS, as of December 31, 2019, the two increases in the water rates had accrued $101,822 in Basic
Charge revenue and a calculated $31,824 in Usage Charge revenue over what would have been
raised without the two rate increases, for a total of $133,646 in additional revenue attributable
to the increase in water rates as a result of enactment of Ordinance No. 87-2017; and,

WHEREAS, the two-page document “Analysis of Increase in Revenue in 2018-2020 from 1/1/2018 and
7/1/2019 Rate Increases,” dated February 15, 2020, and attached hereto, has determined that
during the period of January 1 through June 30, 2020, an additional $32,761 in Basic Charge
revenue and $8,072 in Usage Charge revenue will accrue (for a total of $40,833); and,

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board of Directors as follows: (1) That the Water System Tank
Replacement Fund be categorized as a “Committed” fund as defined by GASB Statement No. 54;
(2) That the total incremental revenue accruing between January 1, 2018 and June 30, 2020, as a
result of enactment of Ordinance No. 87-2017 be accounted for in the committed Water System



Tank Replacement Fund, in the total amount of $174,480; and (3) That the Board will state
explicitly its sunset intentions for setting aside into a defined fund the incremental customer
revenue from enactment of Ordinance No. 87-2017,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The Board of Directors approves and accepts the document “Analysis of Increase in Revenue
in 2018-2020 from 1/1/2018 and 7/1/2019 Rate Increases,” dated February 15, 2020, as the
basis for determining the total amount of revenues accruing between January 1, 2018 and June
30, 2020, as a result of enactment of Ordinance No. 87-2017.

SECTION 2: The Board of Directors directs that the existing balance of $46,801 in the assigned Water
System Tank Replacement Fund be transferred to a new committed Water System Tank
Replacement Fund, thereby discontinuing the assigned Water System Tank Replacement Fund.

SECTION 3: The Board of Directors declares its intent to transfer from operating funds into the Water
System Tank Replacement Fund the total amount of $174,480 over a period of four fiscal years,

as follows:
For and during the 2019/20 fiscal year $9,300
For and during the 2020/21 fiscal year $55,060
For and during the 2021/22 fiscal year $55,060
For and during the 2022/23 fiscal year $55,060

SECTION 4: The Board of Directors finds that the rate increases placed in effect by enactment of
Ordinance 87-2017, and the conditions appurtenant thereto, shall be cancelled and
discontinued in the event of enactment by the Board of Directors of any subsequent ordinance
setting new customer water rates.

ACCEPTED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inverness Public Utility
District on the 26th day of February, 2020, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Directors

NOES:

ABSTAINING:

ABSENT:

Kenneth J. Emanuels, President

ATTEST:

Shelley Redding, Clerk of the Board



8 3k o o ok ok ok oK K ok oK o ok ok ok ok K ok ok ok ok ok ok ok o ok ok o ok ok ok ok ok ok ok 3 ok ok o ok K ok ok ok o ok ok ok ok 3k ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok 3k ok o ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok o ok
| hereby certify that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of the original of Resolution

247-2020 on record in this office, and that subsequent to its adoption no provisions of Resolution 247-
2020 have been amended, modified, or revoked by the governing body.

, Clerk of the Board, Inverness Public Utility

District, County of Marin, State of California.

By Date




Analysis of Increase in Revenue in 2018-2020
from 1/1/2018 and 7/1/2019 Rate Increases

Page 1: Basic Charge Analysis (1/1/2018 - 12/31/2019)

21% increase
applied 7/2019 -
15% increase 12/2019
Without | applied 1/2018 - (cumulative of
increases 6/2019 15% + 5%)
Basic Charge $100.00 $115.00 $121.00
Number of customer equivalents (see Note) 514.25 514.25 514.25
Total Basic Charge revenue per billing period $51,425.00 $59,138.75 $62,224.25
Number of billing periods 12 9 3
Total Basic Charge revenue without increases (a)| $617,100.00
Total actual Basic Charge revenue, 2018 & 2019 $532,248.75 $186,672.75
Total actual BC revenue with both increases (b ) 6718,921.50 | <-- Sum of $532,248.75 + $186,672.75
Amount attributable to increases (b - a) $101,821.50
Total additional revenue from 2018 & 2019 increases
Basic charges (from above) $101,821.50
Usage charges (from other page) $31,824.28
Total additional revenue 2018 & 2019 $133,645.78 See text below.
Note on "Customer Equivalent" (CE) No. of CEs
513 full-pay customers @ 1 CE 513.00
2 Lifeline, very low @ 0.50 CE 1.00
1 Lifeline, extremely low @ 0.25 0.25
Total CEs (at 12/31/2019) 514.25

This two-year total of the additional revenue from the rate increases includes the 15% increase
for the full two years, but the additional 5% increase was in effect only during the last six months
of the two-year period. Our best guess of what the annual revenue will be going forward

(with both increases fully in effect) is in the range of $80,000 to $85,000.

The portion of each year's water bill revenue that is attributable to these two increases should
be formally set aside by the Board into a committed reserved fund. Expenditures can be
made from this fund so long as the expenditures are for purposes that are consistent with the
District's stated intent for how the funds will be used. The Prop. 218 language on how the funds
will be used was as follows:
"It is the District's intention that nearly all of the revenue generated by these rate increases
(estimated at $84,000 annually) will be dedicated primarily to tank replacement."

See the "Usage Charges" worksheet (page 2) for the revenue from these two rate increases
by fiscal year (including the estimated revenue for January - June 2020).

S:\2Water\Water Rates-Rate Change\2017 Rate Increase\Res 247 Revenue analysis 2018-19.xIsx 2/15/2020 3:50 PM



Analysis of Increase in Revenue in 2018-2020
from 1/1/2018 and 7/1/2019 Rate Increases

Page 2: Usage Charges

a b c d £ f
Basis far
Amount amount Amount Total
attributable to  attributable attributableto  attributable to
Total billed 15% increase 1o 5% o% increase rate increases
Lisage period usage {13.04%) increase (4.76%) [c +e)
Jan/Feb 2018 13,366.00 1,742.93 1,742.93
Mar/&pr 2018 10,699.05 1,395.16 1,395.16
May/un 2018 20,535.70 2,677.8B6 2.677.86
JulfAug 2018 31,234.30 4,072.95 4.072.95
Sep/Oct 2018 23.0585.70 3,006.46 3,006.46
Mov/Dec 2018 8,725.40 1,137.79 1,137.79
lanfFeb 2015 9,865.30 1,286.44 1,286.44
Marfapr 2019 14,509.30 1,892.01 1,892.01
May/lun 2019 24,048.60 3,135.94 3,135.94
Jul/Aug 2019 22,918.80 2988.61 22.918.80 1,090.93 4,079.55
Sep/Oct 2019 25,561.50 3,333.22 25,561.50 1,216.73 4,549.95
MWow/Dec 2019 15,985.80 2, 0B5.85 15,595.80 761.40 2,B847.25
220,515.45 28,755.21  64,476.10 3,069.06 31,824.28
15% increase (Jan. 2018 - Dec. 2019; 12 billing periods): 115-100=15/115=0.1304
5% increase (Jul, 2019 - Dec, ; 3 billing periods): 105 - 100 = 5 / 105 = 0.0476
21% increase (lan. 2020 -->): 121 - 100/ 121 = 0.173554
Total Set-Aside into Tank Replacement Fund by Fiscal Year
Fiseal Yeor Basic Charge | Usoge Charge Total | Running total Comment
Jan=Jun 2018:
2017/18 23,141 G816 28,957 28,957 Actual @ 15%
Jul 2018 -Jun
201819 46,283 14,532 &0,515 89,772 | 2019: Actual @
15%
2019/20 Jul-Dec 2019:
(July - Dec. 2019) 32,398 11,477 43,875 133,647 Actual @ 21%
2015/20 Jan-Jun 2020:
(Jan. = June 32,761 8,072 40,833 174,480 Estimated at
2020) 21%
Total Set-Aside, 1/1/1998 - 6/30/2020 $174,480

Aue_q;{{; il K S N4 15;'4-{..(:/(

Wade B. Holland
Customer Services Manager




Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 12

Expenditures and Credit Card
Charges

(January 2020)




9:10 AM

02/20/20
Accrual Basis

Inverness PUD
Monthly Expense Ledger Report

Jan 20

Jan 20

January 2020
Date Num Name Memo Amount

01/02/2020 EFT BB & T- CPS Operations 12/01-12/31/19 AR Box -4.29
01/02/2020 EFT AT&T U-verse 139584573 -69.55
01/03/2020 13616 Grainger Account # 836141895 -238.80
01/03/2020 13617 Hach Company Water Treatment Supplies -351.98
01/03/2020 13618 Marin County Central Collections October 2019 Fuel Charges -1,015.58
01/06/2020 EFT Bank of America December 19 Analysis Charge -114.15
01/08/2020 Water ... Inverness Yacht Club Reverse of GJE Water A/R6 -- For CHK 13540 voided ... 150.00
01/09/2020 13599 Brelje and Race Laboratories, Inc. December 2019 sampling -294.00
01/09/2020 13600 Building Supply Center Supplies -51.71
01/09/2020 13601 CORRPRO Customer # 4259650 3/1/2020-2/28/2021 -610.00
01/09/2020 13602 Grainger Account # 836141895 -43.30
01/09/2020 13603 Horizon Cable TV Inc. 005-003907 -85.79
01/09/2020 13604 Marin County Central Collections September 2019 Fuel Charges -414.92
01/09/2020 13605 Petaluma Auto Parts Acct# 3450 Inverness Public Utility -20.86
01/09/2020 13606 R.J. Ricciardi, Inc., CPAs 2018-19 Audit thru 12/31/19 -1,487.50
01/09/2020 13607 Streamline January 2020 Website -200.00
01/09/2020 13608 U. S. Bank Corporate Payment Systems -3,201.30
01/09/2020 13609 Leyva, Jacob Reimbursement - Work Boots -173.20
01/10/2020 Auto Diversified Technology Billing Service -665.00
01/15/2020 EFT Paychex Payroll Processing Fees plus Annual W-2 Processing -342.10
01/15/2020 Payroll Payroll Tax Payment -6,621.00
01/15/2020 Payroll Payroll Direct Deposit 01/15/2020 -15,702.84
01/21/2020 13620 Cassel, Brian-c Reimbursement DMV Health -180.00
01/23/2020 13610 AT&T Communication & Telemetry -488.30
01/23/2020 13611 Cheda's Garage Repairs - Jeep -965.73
01/23/2020 13612 CORE December services -480.00
01/23/2020 13613 DeCarli's Account # 2-45217 -978.88
01/23/2020 13614 Point Reyes Light Publishing Co., LC Legal Notices (2) -441.00
01/23/2020 13615 Quill Corporation Account # C645751 -104.59
01/28/2020 EFT PG&E Account 9408018479-2 -1,963.09
01/31/2020 EFT Paychex Payroll Processing Fees -239.60
01/31/2020 13621 Grainger Account # 836141895 -49.12
01/31/2020 13622 Mello School Calendar Co. Tomales High School Spring Sports Poster -99.00
01/31/2020 13623 Recology Refuse Disposal 1/1/20 - 3/31/20 -125.97
01/31/2020 Payroll Payroll taxes -6,028.21
01/31/2020 Payroll Direct Deposit -15,344.27
01/31/2020 EFT CalPERS - Retirement December 2019 Retirement -4,634.97
01/31/2020 EFT CalPERS UAL UAL 3055 MISC -2,634.56
01/31/2020 EFT CalPERS UAL UAL PEPRA 26451 -110.46
01/31/2020 EFT CalPERS UAL UAL 3056 SAFETY -750.85

-67,176.47

Page 1



Inverness PUD

3:06 PM
02/13/20 Reconciliation Detail
XX-5018 - Cal Card - J Fox, Period Ending 01/22/2020
Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Split Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 1,904.75
Cleared Transactions
Charges and Cash Advances - 5 items
Credit Card Charge 01/06/2020 29495 Inverness Park Market Refreshments X 845-01 - Suppli... -95.66 -95.66
Credit Card Charge 01/07/2020 BU-98201 Battery Universe 2-Eagle160 9V 2500mAh Termal Imaging Battery X 845-01 - Suppli... -488.08 -583.74
Credit Card Charge 01/08/2020 334075 Palace Market Drill Refreshments X 850-01 - Volunt... -47.77 -631.51
Credit Card Charge 01/08/2020 2-9105 Olema Campground Propane X 840-07 - Collecti... -20.71 -652.22
Credit Card Charge 01/12/2020 334075 Palace Market Drill Refreshments X 850-01 - Volunt... -85.39 -737.61
Total Charges and Cash Advances -737.61 -737.61
Payments and Credits - 1 item
Bill 11/07/2019 U. S. Bank Corporate Payment S...  Managing Acct 4246044555652670 X 20000 - Account... 1,904.75 1,904.75
Total Cleared Transactions 1,167.14 1,167.14
Cleared Balance -1,167.14 737.61
Uncleared Transactions
Payments and Credits - 1 item
Bill 01/08/2020 U. S. Bank Corporate Payment S...  Managing Acct 4246 0445 5565 2670 20000 - Account... 737.61 737.61
Total Uncleared Transactions 737.61 737.61
Register Balance as of 01/22/2020 -1,904.75 0.00
Ending Balance -1,904.75 0.00

Page 1



3:05 PM Inverness PUD
02/13/20 Reconciliation Detail
XX-7642 - Cal Card - Redding, Period Ending 01/22/2020
Type Date Name Memo Cir Split Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 1,296.55
Cleared Transactions
Charges and Cash Advances - 4 items
Credit Card Char...  01/04/2020 24692160004 Amazon Office/IT Supplies X  -SPLIT- -440.07 -440.07
Credit Card Char...  01/09/2020 E03009ZN5D Microsoft Exchange online plan X 870-02 - Dues & Publications -65.31 -505.38
Credit Card Char...  01/17/2020 24692160017 Amazon USB Drives X 870-05 - Office Supplies, P... -32.46 -537.84
Credit Card Char...  01/18/2020 24692160018 Amazon Office supplies X 870-05 - Office Supplies, P... -76.80 -614.64
Total Charges and Cash Advances -614.64 -614.64
Payments and Credits - 1 item
Bill 12/09/2019 U. S. Bank Corporate Payment Systems Managing Account 4246 0445 5565 2670 X 20000 - Accounts Payable 1,296.55 1,296.55
Total Cleared Transactions 681.91 681.91
Cleared Balance -681.91 614.64
Uncleared Transactions
Payments and Credits - 1 item
Bill 01/08/2020 U. S. Bank Corporate Payment Systems Managing Account 4246 0445 5565 2670 20000 - Accounts Payable 614.64 614.64
Total Uncleared Transactions 614.64 614.64
Register Balance as of 01/22/2020 -1,296.55 0.00
Ending Balance -1,296.55 0.00

Page 1



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 13

Approval of Personnel Committee
recommendations



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Agenda Item Staff Report

Subject: Personnel Committee Recommendations
Meeting Date:  February 26, 2020

Date Prepared: February 12, 2020

Prepared by: Shelley Redding, Administrator
Attachments:  Personnel Committee Recommendations

Recommended Action: Accept and approve the proposed recommendations by the Personnel
Committee

Since the Board of Directors hired the Administrator, they have requested specific reviews of
personnel salaries, benefits and policies to ensure parity and compliance with labor laws and
standards. The Employee Handbook was last amended in 2009 and while the staff were given a
COLA raise effective July,1, 2019, there was not a current salary survey conducted to review the
current wages.

A comprehensive Salary survey was conducted by comparing wages of the IPUD staff to compa-
rable districts within our local area. In addition to wages, the range of benefits was also re-
viewed. Along with the salary survey, there are several components of the Employee Handbook
that need to be updated based on new labor laws.

The recommendations outlined on the attachment reflect the result of the salary survey and the
policy changes needed to update the Employee Handbook.



Personnel Committee Recommendations:
Salaries and Wages:

A) Senior Water Operator:
a. Raise Senior Water Operator pay rate from $36.03 to $40.10 per hour effective January 1,
2020.
b. Change Senior Water Operator position from an hourly position to a salary position at 40
hours per week effective January 1, 2020.
B) Chief of Operations:
a. Reduce hours of salaried position from 40 hours per week to 32 hours per week
effective March 31, 2020.
b. Allocate salary 25% to Water System and 75% to Fire Department

Benefits (Effective 7/1/2020)

A) Add a Section 125 Cafeteria Plan for pre-tax deductions for out of pocket expenses related to
health benefits.
a. Set-up the Section 125 Cafeteria plan through Paychex.
b. The Cafeteria plan will provide a health FSA (Flexible Spending Account) limited to an
annual dollar limit determined by the IRS.
B) Contract with SDRMA to provide optional Dental, Vision, Long Term Care and Life Insurance
Benefits at 100% cost to employee.
C) Create a Conditional Opt-Out Policy for all employees for Health Benefits
a. Conditional Opt-Out applies to self only coverage, not to employee and dependents.
b. Requires employee to provide proof of coverage with a qualifying plan on an annual
basis. (during open enroliment).
c. Employee receives compensation in lieu of coverage equal to 50% of the median
monthly premium for a single employee offered by the Health Benefit Provider
(CalPERS).
D) Change Vacation accrual policy
a. Salaried employees accrue based on the salary hours
b. Hourly employees accrue based on hours worked (Pro-rata basis).
c. Cap vacation accrual to 240 hours per fiscal year (6 weeks).
i. Accrual is suspended after accrual of 6 weeks.
ii. Pay out accrued vacation that exceeds 6 weeks at end of fiscal year.



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 14

Verizon Wireless Cell Phone
Contract




Inverness Public Utility District
Board Agenda Item Staff Report

Subject: Verizon Wireless Government Cell Phone User Agreement

Meeting Date:  February 26, 2020

Date Prepared:  February 20, 2020

Prepared by: Shelley Redding, Administrator

Attachments: Mobile Broadband Plan description, Device list, NASPO Authorized User Agreement

Recommended Action: Review and Approve User Agreement, authorize staff to assign cell phones to
appropriate personnel

The District assigns staff for on-call assignments for both Water and Fire Services on weekends, holidays
and overnight. A component of the on-call status of staff is to be able to have the water system alarm call
a dedicated number to alert staff to an issue with water levels or a malfunction of the treatment facilities.
It is also helpful to be able to communicate with management or other personnel who may be out of the
area.

The District currently does not have a policy related to personal cell phone used during the course of busi-
ness. The previous General Manager investigated a policy to which would reimburse employees with a
monthly stipend for their personal phone use. In researching policies, I did come across Labor Code sec-
tion 2802 that cites an opinion from a case; “We hold that when employees must use their personal Cell
phones for work related calls, Labor Code section 2802 requires the employer to reimburse them.” The
reimbursement requirement can produce an undue burden on staff to determine what the reimbursement
amount should be based on the call plan for each employee and the reasonable amount for reimbursement.
A monthly stipend would be considered a reimbursement that would need to fair and equitable to each
employee who may or may not

Staff proposes entering into a user agreement with Verizon Wireless for at least two (2) cell phones to be
used by staff that is scheduled for the on-call position for either Fire or Water services. These phone
numbers would also be under the Emergency Services agreement that would provide priority traffic for
the District phones and the phones would be District Property and be used accordingly for assignments..



verizonv

NASPO ValuePoint (formerly known as WSCA) #1907
AUTHORIZED USER AGREEMENT

Verizon Wireless (“Vendor”) and the State of Nevada, for itself and on behalf of the NASPO ValuePoint (“NASPO
ValuePoint” and/or “Customer”), have entered into a Contract for Services of Independent Contractor #1907
("Contract") with an effective date beginning on April 16, 2012 and any and all amendments and/or addenda thereto.
Pursuant to the Contract, the State of California has entered into a Participating Addendum (“PA”) designating
Inverness Public Utility District , a government entity, not for profit entity or a private education entity as an
authorized user (“Authorized User”).

In accordance with the definitions, terms and conditions set forth in the Contract and/or PA, the authorized entity may
purchase wireless services and products under the terms, conditions, and pricing established by the Contract and/or
PA for Authorized User participation. Participation is further subject to any and all applicable state and local
purchasing statutes and ordinances. The Authorized User states, acknowledges and agrees, as follows:

(1) It is an Authorized User as defined under the terms of the Contract and/or PA;

(2) Authorized User is eligible and desires to purchase wireless services and products from Vendor
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Contract, PA, User Agreement, any and all amendments,
addenda and schedules as the Customer may specify from time to time, as well as the terms and
conditions of all calling plans activated under this User Agreement, which are incorporated herein by
reference;

(3) Authorized User will provide documentation and substantiate Authorized User status as appropriate
and as requested from time to time by Vendor;

(4) The Authorized User agrees to the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint Master
Agreement including the disclosure of limited account information as part of the contractual reporting
requirements to NASPO ValuePoint Administration and the participating state;

(5) Authorized User will ensure that this User Agreement will be used only in support of government, not
for profit or private education business;
(6) No Reselling: This Contract specifically authorizes the purchase of Wireless Services and Equipment

only by Participating Entities (“Entity and Customer”), as described herein. Entities may not resell
Wireless Services or Equipment purchased under this Contract to any third party, including its
agents, contractors or contract employees, members or franchisees, parent or affiliate, except upon
written agreement between the parties. Entity shall be the customer of record for purchases made
under this Contract, and may not modify the price for the product and services utilized by its
Government Subscribers;

(7) The undersigned represents and warrants that he/she has the power and authority to execute this
User Agreement, bind the respective Authorized User, and that the execution and performance of
this User Agreement has been duly authorized by all necessary Authorized User action; and

(8) The undersigned is duly authorized by the Authorized User to designate the following individual(s)
(the “Authorized Contacts”) who are authorized to take action with respect to the account with Vendor
to purchase equipment, add lines of service, cancel lines of service and make changes to the account
that financially bind the Authorized User to the terms and conditions of this User Agreement, the
Contract, the PA, and execute Customer Agreements for the lines of wireless service, subject to the
additional terms and conditions therein.

Street Address: 50 Inverness Way North

City, State & Zip Inverness, CA 94937

Customer Phone number: 415-669-1414

Customer Email address:  admin@invernesspud.org

Authorized Signature:

Print Name: Kenneth Emmanuels

Title: President, Board of Directors

Date: 2/26/2020

Data furnished in this document shall not be duplicated, used, disclosed in while or in part for any purpose other than to evaluate
the document. v.061115



Custom 4G Unlimited Smartphone Plan with Mobile Broadband Priority for
National Security, Public Safety, and First Responders

Government Liable Subscribers Only
This plan is not eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Only 4G LTE GSM/UMTS global-capable smartphones can be activated on this plan.

Monthly Access Fee $39.99 (16807)
Monthly Minutes in U.S Unlimited
Domestic Data Allowance(") Unlimited
Domestic Messaging Allowance Unlimited
Optional Features
Domestic Mobile Hotspot $5.00 additional per month (76440)
Push-to-Talk $2.00 additional per month (81129/81174)

Notes: Current coverage details and non-domestic data rates can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. No domestic roaming or long distance
charges. Coverage includes the Verizon Wireless 4G network; and the 3G and 3G Extended networks, while available. (' Data usage on this rate
plan is not subject to speed reductions (“throttling”) within a given billing cycle. However, in the event data usage exceeds 25GB each billing cycle for
three (3) consecutive billing cycles, data throughput speeds will automatically be reduced for data usage exceeding 25GB per billing cycle on a go-
forward basis. Data usage for actively engaged and deployed fire, police, emergency medical technicians, emergency management agency, and
assigned federal law enforcement users on this plan will not be subject to speed reductions regardless of data usage during any billing cycle. To
ensure users are able to maximize their high-speed data use for business applications, video applications will stream at 480p. This service plan
includes Mobile Broadband Priority. Mobile Broadband Priority ensures customers can connect to the network with priority by leveraging a pool of
radio resources dedicated to enable their connection. Mobile Broadband Priority identifies the user with an Access Priority setting, giving them higher
priority for network access than lower Access Class users. This service plan is available to National Security, Public Safety, and First Responders
customers only as defined by the following NAICS (formerly SIC) Codes:

621910 Ambulance Services 922190 Other Justice, Public Order, and Safety Activities

922110 Courts 928110 National Security

922120 Police Protection 926120 Regulation and Administration of Transportation Programs

922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution 926150 Regulation, Licensing, and Inspection of Misc. Commercial Sectors
922140 Correctional Institutions 926130 Regulation and Administration of Comms, Electric, Gas, and Other Utilities
922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices 921190 Other General Government Support

922160 Fire Protection (except private) 921110 Executive Offices

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 11 of 48




verizon’

NASPO ValuePoint
15t Quarter Equipment Offers

SMARTPHONE DEVICES:

Apple iPhone 7* 32GB $0

Apple iPhone 8* 64GB $0

Apple iPhone Xs*(New Activations; 1/1/20- 2/29/20) $400 Discount, Final Cost Varies
Apple iPhone Xs*(Upgrade Activations; 1/1/20- 2/29/20) $300 Discount, Final Cost Varies
Google Pixel 3a 64GB $0

Google Pixel 3aXL 64GB $0

Google Pixel 4(New Activations); $300 Discount, Final Cost Varies

Google Pixel 4(Upgrade Activations); $150 Discount, Final Cost Varies

Google Pixel 4XL(New Activations); $300 Discount, Final Cost Varies

Google Pixel 4XL(Upgrade Activations); $150 Discount, Final Cost Varies

Motorola Moto Z4 $0

Kyocera Duraforce Pro 2* $0

Samsung Galaxy S10*; $300 Discount, Final Cost Varies

Samsung Galaxy S10+*; $300 Discount, Final Cost Varies

Samsung A50 $0

*Push-to-Talk Plus (PTT +) capable, please inquire for complete list of devices.

OfferRequirements:

Plans must have a monthly access fee of $19.99 or greater plus a required data package.
All NASPO ValuePoint voice and data bundles qualify.

Plan activated must be a 1 year rate plan code.

Applies to new activations and eligible upgrades**

BASIC DEVICES:

e Kyocera DuraXV LTE $0*

*Push-to-Talk Plus (PTT +) capable, please inquire for complete list of devices.

Offer Requirements:

Plans must have a minimum monthly access of $14.99 or greater after contract discount.
Plan activated must be a 1 year rate plan code.

Applies to new activations and eligible upgrades**

Additional Terms & Conditions: **Offer good for new and eligible upgrades for Government Liable customers only. Offers cannot
be combined with any other government discount incentives unless otherwise noted in offer T&C’s. Plan activated must be on a 1-
year rate plan. All devices are available while supplies last.



verizon’

INTERNET DEVICES:

e MHS900L $0
e MiFi8800L (Public Safety Eligibility Only) $0

Offer Requirements:

Must activate service on a Mobile Broadband or M2M plan with monthly access fee of $19.99 or higher.
Plan activated must be a 1 year rate plan code.

Applies to new activations and eligible upgrades**

Bill Incentive Credits that government accounts qualify for:

$50 Smartphone device activation BIC (1/1/2020- 3/31/2020):
e New activations, $34.99 plan minimum

Offer Requirements:

Requires a 1-year contract and a plan that is $34.99 or higher with required data feature.

Bill Incentive Credits will be removed if account changes

(e.g., changes to features, MDNs, account numbers, Device IDs, etc.) are applied within 30 days of purchase.
Bill Incentive Credits are applied within 90 days.

Other rules and restrictions may apply, please contact your Verizon Wireless representative for further clarification.

Additional Terms & Conditions: **Offer good for new and eligible upgrades for Government Liable customers only. Offers cannot
be combined with any other government discount incentives unless otherwise noted in offer T&C’s. Plan activated must be on a 1-
year rate plan. All devices are available while supplies last.



From: Lu, Christine

To: Shelley Redding

Subject: Verizon Follow-up Items

Date: Friday, February 14, 2020 11:27:29 AM
Attachments: i

image.png
State of CA Special WSCA NASPO Pricing Sheet 08262018.pdf

Public Safety First Responders.pdf
NASPO 22 - 082418.pdf

Q1 2020 Quarterly Offers.pdf

Hello Shelley,

It was a pleasure speaking with you today. Here's a recap on the next steps.

2/26 Shelley to send over AUA form

3-5 Business days for Verizon to build a profile before an order can be placed

Review phone options and request an "Official" device quote from Christine. (Anytime)
Discussed first responder plans $39.99 for smartphones.

e o o o o

—
iPhone 7 32GB Silver iPhone 7 Plus 32GB Black DuraForce Pro 2
Silver - 32GB Black - 32GB Black - 64GB

Please see attached and let me know if you have further questions.

Best Regards,

Christine Lu

Public Sector Account Manager
Government

Verizon Business Group

Marin, Santa Cruz & Solano County
Direct: 415 264 3833

Location: 07737-01

SalesReplID: E00YB
]

Government Account Support & Orders:

For Orders:
Pacifi rtTeam rizonwirel m

For Quotes:

Pixel 3a 64GB Just Black

Just Black - 64GB


mailto:christine.lu@verizonwireless.com
mailto:shelley.redding@invernesspud.org
http://www.verizon.com/
http://www.facebook.com/verizon
http://twitter.com/lu1Cx
http://www.linkedin.com/in/1christinelu
http://www.instagram.com/only1christinelu/
mailto:GCOPacificSupportTeam@verizonwireless.com

iPhone 7 32GB Silver  iPhone 7 Plus 32GB Black DuraForce Pro 2 Pixel 3a 64GB Just Black

Silver - 32GB Black-32GB. Black-64GB. Just Black - 64GB




Verizon Wireless Pricing Sheet
Western States Contracting Alliance (WSCA) Contract
State of California Participating Addendum Number 7-10-70-16
Custom Rate Plans

As stated in the State of California WSCA Participating Addendum Master Price Contract #7-10-70-16 Amendment #5, in consideration
of allowing local government agencies to choose from either (i) the special State of California pricing identified in the Pricing Worksheets
incorporated into the Participating Addendum and/or (i) standard WSCA pricing, any line that receives new equipment under a standard
WSCA plan must remain on standard WSCA pricing for at least ten (10) months, and may not switch to any Plan offered under State of
CA Pricing until at least ten months of its one year individual line term have been completed. In the event any such line switches prior to
the expiration of at least ten (10) months of its one year line term, then Verizon Wireless will migrate the line back to its original standard
WSCA plan. Verizon Wireless is not required to provide notice when it migrates a line back to its original standard WSCA pricing under
the terms of this paragraph.

WSCA CALIFORNIA 3G/4G NATIONWIDE CONSUMPTION VOICE PLAN
(On Network only)

STATE OF CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT LINES ONLY
The WSCA Nationwide Consumption Plan is NOT eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Monthly Access Fee $0.00 (85191)
Anytime Voice Minutes 0
Per Minute Rate $0.06
Domestic Long Distance Included
Unlimited Night & Weekend Minutes Included
Unlimited Mobile to Mobile Calling Minutes Included

Data Sent or Received $1.99/ MB
Note: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important
information about calling plans, features and options. $10.00 Push to Talk Plus feature and $24.99 Government Email featured for BlackBerry &
Smartphones may be attached to this rate plan.

WSCA Nationwide 3G/4G Unlimited Calling Plan

STATE OF CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT LINES ONLY
WSCA Nationwide Unlimited Calling Plan is NOT eligible for monthly access fee discounts

Monthly Access Fee $54.99 (85192)
Monthly Anytime Minutes Unlimited
Domestic Long Distance Included
Data Sent or Received $1.99/MB or per data package**

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. **See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important
information about calling plans, features and options. Smartphones and Multimedia Phones require a data package. $10.00 Push to Talk Plus
feature and $24.99 Government Email feature may be attached to this rate plan

Mobile Broadband 3G/4G Data Plan

STATE OF CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT LINES ONLY
WSCA Mobile Broadband Data Plan is NOT eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Monthly Access Fee $37.99 (76509/ 84356)
MB Allowance Unlimited*
Per Minute Ratet $0.25
Domestic Long Distance Included

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important
information about calling plans, features and options. 4G service requires 4G equipment and 4G coverage.

*Verizon Wireless will limit the data throughput speeds should 25 GB of data usage be reached in any given billing cycle on any line. Data
throughput speeds for additional usage will be limited for the remainder of the then-current bill cycle for the line(s) that exceed the 25 GB high-
speed data usage threshold. We reserve the right to adjust data throughput limitation thresholds to as low as 5GB with prior written notice.

August 27, 2018 State of CA Participating Addendum 7-10-70-16 Page 1 of 7




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight





Custom 4G Unlimited Mobile Broadband Plan with Mobile Broadband Priority for
National Security, Public Safety, and First Responders

Government Liable Subscribers Only
This plan is not eligible for monthly access fee discounts.
Only 4G LTE GSM/UMTS global-capable devices can be activated on this plan.

Monthly Access Fee $37.99

Domestic Data Allowance!") Unlimited

Notes: Current coverage details and non-domestic data rates can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. No domestic roaming or long distance
charges. Coverage includes the Verizon Wireless 4G network; and the 3G and 3G Extended networks, while available. () Data usage on this rate
plan is not subject to speed reductions (“throttling”) within a given billing cycle. However, in the event data usage exceeds 25GB each billing cycle
for three (3) consecutive billing cycles, data throughput speeds will automatically be reduced for data usage exceeding 25GB per billing cycle on a
go-forward basis. Data usage for actively engaged and deployed fire, police, emergency medical technicians, emergency management agency,
and assigned federal law enforcement users on this plan will not be subject to speed reductions regardless of data usage during any billing cycle.
To ensure users are able to maximize their high-speed data use for business applications, video applications will stream at 720p. This service plan
includes Mobile Broadband Priority. Mobile Broadband Priority ensures customers can connect to the network with priority by leveraging a pool of
radio resources dedicated to enable their connection. Mobile Broadband Priority identifies the user with an Access Priority setting, giving them
higher priority for network access than lower Access Class users. Devices utilized in conjunction with this plan are limited to mobile device
applications. Dedicated internet connections (including but not limited to, stationary wireless networking router devices), streaming video on non-
smartphone devices (including but not limited to, body cameras and stationary video surveillance cameras), and loT devices are expressly prohibited
on this rate plan. This plan is only available to National Security, Public Safety, and First Responder customers only as defined by the following

NAICS (formerly SIC) Codes: Plan# 20312

621910 Ambulance Services 922190 Other Justice, Public Order, and Safety Activities

922110 Courts 928110 National Security

922120 Police Protection 926120 Regulation and Administration of Transportation Programs

922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution 926150 Regulation, Licensing, and Inspection of Misc. Commercial Sectors
922140 Correctional Institutions 926130 Regulation and Administration of Comms, Electric, Gas, and Other Utilities
922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices 921190 Other General Government Support

922160 Fire Protection (except private) 921110 Executive Offices

Mobile Broadband for Machine to Machine (M2M) 3G/4G Plan

STATE OF CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT LINES ONLY

Mobile Broadband for Machine to Machine (M2M) Plan is NOT eligible for Monthly Access Fee Discounts.
Monthly Access Data Allowance Overage Rate per GB Data Roaming per KB (Canada)

$37.99 (85975) 5GB $10.00/GB $0.002

Note: Machine to Machine coverage included the Verizon Wireless 4G, 3G and 3G Extended networks. 4G and 3G Mobile Broadband coverage
details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. 4G service requires 4G equipment and 4G coverage. Typical 4G speeds: 5 to 12 Mbps download,
2 to 5 Mbps upload. When traveling in the 3G Coverage Area, you can expect download speeds of 600 Kbps to 1.4 Mbps and upload speeds of 500
to 800 Kbps. When traveling in the Extended 3G Coverage Area, you can expect download speeds of 400 to 700 Kbps and upload speeds of 60 to
80 Kbps. Outside the Mobile Broadband Rate and Coverage Area, the NationalAccess network allows connections at typical speeds of 60 to 80 Kbps.
Current data coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com.

Government 3G/4G Email Feature for BlackBerry & Smartphones

STATE OF CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT LINES ONLY
The Government Email Feature is NOT eligible for monthly access fee discounts
Includes Wireless Sync or BlackBerry Solution compatible with Microsoft Outlook, Lotus Notes, POP3, and IMAP email accounts

As a feature added to an eligible plan
Monthly Access Fee $24.99 (73419)
MB Allowance Unlimited*
Per Minute Ratett Per the Voice Calling Plan

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information
about calling plans, features and options. T Optional Feature may only be added to WSCA CA Nationwide Consumption Plan or to the WSCA
Nationwide Unlimited Calling Plan. For optional features, the underlying calling plan determines the rates for voice airtime, and domestic long
distance.

August 27, 2018 State of CA Participating Addendum 7-10-70-16 Page 2 of 7




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight





*Verizon Wireless will limit the data throughput speeds should 25 GB of data usage be reached in any given billing cycle on any line. Data throughput
speeds for additional usage will be limited for the remainder of the then-current bill cycle for the line(s) that exceed the 25 GB high-speed data
usage threshold. We reserve the right to adjust data throughput limitation thresholds to as low as 5GB with prior written notice

3G/4G Push to Talk Plus Unlimited Calling Feature

STATE OF CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT LINES ONLY
The Push to Talk Plus Unlimited Feature is NOT eligible for monthly access fee discounts.
Monthly Access Fee $10.00 (73869 Basic / 75470 Blackberry, 81301 Smartphone)
One to One and Group Push to Talk Plus Unlimited
Note: The Push to Talk Plus feature must be added to an eligible voice calling plan. Current coverage details can be found at
www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling plans, features and options. Push
to Talk Plus terms and conditions apply.

3G/4G Messaging (Text/Picture/Video) Features

STATE OF CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT LINES ONLY
These Messaging Features are NOT eligible for monthly access fee discounts or promotions

Included Messages Monthly Fee* Overage Rate
100 $0.00* (76231/ 76223)
" $0.10 Per message
300 $3.00° (76810/ 76811) sent/received-per ad%ress
1000 $10.00* (76812/ 76813)

Notes: See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling plans, features and options. *Feature(s) can only be
added to the WSCA California Nationwide Consumption Voice Plan, WSCA Nationwide Unlimited Calling Plan and Mobile Broadband Data Plan (3G
& 4G) State of California Government Subscribers only. These Messaging Feature packages are not available on any other rate plans.

August 27, 2018 State of CA Participating Addendum 7-10-70-16 Page 3 of 7




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight





3G/4G Unlimited Messaging (Text/Picture/Video) Feature

This Messaging Feature is NOT eligible for monthly access fee discounts or promotions
Included Messages Monthly Fee*

Unlimited $12.00 (75439)
Notes: See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling plans, features and options. *Feature(s) can only be
added to eligible voice calling plan or $37.99 Mobile Broadband Data plan.

3G/4G Mobile Broadband Connect Feature for Smartphone

The Mobile Broadband Connect Feature is NOT eligible for monthly access fee discounts and promotions

Monthly Access Fee $10.00 (73702)
Monthly MB Allowance Unlimited*
Per Minute Rate” $0.25 per minute
Domestic Long Distance Included

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information
about calling plans, features and options.  This feature requires Smartphone activation. Feature(s) can only be added to eligible voice calling plan
combined with the Government Email Feature for BlackBerry and Smartphone.

*Verizon Wireless will limit the data throughput speeds should 25 GB of data usage be reached in any given billing cycle on any line. Data throughput
speeds for additional usage will be limited for the remainder of the then-current bill cycle for the line(s) that exceed the 25 GB high-speed data usage
threshold. We reserve the right to adjust data throughput limitation thresholds to as low as 5GB with prior written notice.

CALLING PLAN AND FEATURE DETAILS:

Calling Plans and Associated Charges: Government Subscribers may activate Wireless Service on the calling plans included with your Agreement,
as well as eligible Verizon Wireless consumer/retail calling plans, subject to the terms of this Agreement. Subscribers may take advantage of
promotions or purchase Equipment at corporate pricing, but this may require a Line Term extension after initial activation. Some calling plans or
monthly access price points may not be available in all markets. Subscriber’s first partial and full month’s access and any activation fees are payable
in advance and will not be refunded after activation of the Wireless Service Charges for calls will be based on the cell sites used, which may be outside
the calling plan coverage area even when the subscriber is physically within the coverage area. Time of the call is based on the telephone switching
office that carries the call, which may be different from the time of day shown on subscriber’'s phone. Rates do not apply to credit card or operator-
assisted calls, which may be required in certain areas. Usage rounded up to the next full minute. Unused minutes and/or Megabytes are lost. On
outgoing calls, charges start when subscriber first presses SEND or the call connects to a network, and on incoming calls, when the call connects to
a network (which may be before it rings). A call may end several seconds after subscriber presses END or the call otherwise disconnects. Calls made
on the Verizon Wireless network are only billed if they connect (which includes calls answered by machines). Billing for airtime and related charges
may sometimes be delayed. Calls to "911" and certain other emergency services are toll-free and airtime-free; however, airtime may be charged when
dialing toll-free numbers. All features may not be available in all Verizon Wireless markets.

Anytime Minutes: Anytime Minutes apply when making or receiving calls from a calling plan’s rate and coverage area. Coverage information is
available at www.verizonwireless.com. Airtime is rounded up to the next full minute. Allowance minutes/Megabytes are not transferable except as may
be available on calling plans with sharing. In order to gain access to coverage in newly expanding markets, subscribers must periodically dial *228 to
update roaming information from voice or Smartphone devices; from the VZAccess Manager, go into “Options” and click “Activation,” while in the
National Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area every three months. This may alter the rate and coverage area. Automatic roaming may not be
available in all areas and rates may vary. Roaming charges may be delayed to a later bill.

Long Distance: Unlimited domestic long distance is included when calling from the calling plan’s rate and coverage area, unless otherwise specified
in the calling plan.

Customer’s Cell Phone Number and Caller ID: Verizon Wireless will assign one Mobile Telephone Number (“MTN") to each subscriber line. Other than
as required to port an MTN, Customer does not have any property right in the MTN and Verizon Wireless may change, reassign, or eliminate an MTN upon
reasonable notice to Customer under certain circumstances, including fraud prevention, area code changes and regulatory or statutory law enforcement
requirements.

Unlimited Messaging: Unlimited Messaging is available in the National Enhanced Services rate and coverage area in the United States. Messaging
applies when sending and receiving (i) text, picture and video messages to and from Verizon Wireless and Non-Verizon Wireless customers in the United
States, (i) Text, picture, and video messages sent via email, (jii) Instant messages, and (iv) Text messages with customers of wireless carriers in Canada,
Mexico, and Puerto Rico. Messaging is subject to Text, Picture, and Video Messaging Terms and conditions. Premium messages are not included.
Messaging bundle benefits do not apply to international messages.

August 27, 2018 State of CA Participating Addendum 7-10-70-16 Page 4 of 7




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



Mobile to Mobile Calling: Mobile to Mobile Calling minutes apply when making calls directly to or receiving calls directly from another Verizon Wireless
subscriber while in the Nationwide Rate and Coverage area. Mobile to Mobile calls must originate and terminate while both Verizon Wireless
subscribers are within the Mobile to Mobile Calling area. Mobile to Mobile Calling is not available (i) to fixed wireless devices with usage substantially
from a single cell site, (i) for data usage including Push to Talk Plus calls, Picture or Video Messaging (iii) if Call Forwarding or No Answer/Busy
Transfer features are activated, (iv) for calls to Verizon Wireless customers using any of the VZGlobal® services, (v) for calls to check Voice Mail, (vi)
in those areas of Louisiana and Mississippi where the users roaming indicator flashes, (vii) in Canada and Mexico and (viii) to users whose current
wireless exchange restricts the delivery of Caller ID or Caller ID Block is initiated. Mobile to Mobile Calling minutes will be applied before Anytime
Minutes.

Night and Weekend Minutes: Apply to calls made in a calling plan’s rate and coverage area only during the following hours: 9:01pm Friday through
5:59am Monday and 9:01pm to 5:59am Monday through Friday.*

*NOTE: If both Night and Weekend and Mobile to Mobile Calling minute allowances apply to a given call, Mobile to Mobile Calling minutes will apply
before Night and Weekend minutes. However, if either allowance is unlimited, the unlimited allowance will always apply first.

Verizon Wireless Calling Plan Included Features?

Call Waiting27 Three Way Calling27

Call Forwarding? 7 No Answer/ Busy Transfer’
Caller ID37 Basic Voice Mail247

411 Search 57 Basic Text Messaging®

Mobile Web 278 International Calling/ Roaming °

"Not available in some areas.

ZAirtime charges apply to all calls simultaneously and to forwarded! transferred calls even if the call is sent to another wireless phone. Voice mail boxes not initiated within
60 days of activation are cancelled.

3When making a call, subscriber's MTN may be displayed to the receiving party with Caller ID capable Equipment. Caller ID service may not be available outside the rate
and coverage areas, and may not be compatible with certain enhanced features. Caller ID can be blocked for most calls by dialing *67 before each call, or by ordering per-
line call blocking where available. Calls to some numbers, such as toll-free numbers, cannot be blocked.

4Airtime charges apply to message retrieval.

5411 Search, directory assistance with automatic call completion is subject to a $1.99 per call fee plus airtime and text charges if applicable. Directory assistance rates are
subject to change.

6Text Messaging offered at the prevailing rate, currently $0.20 per inbound and $0.20 per outbound message per address $0.25 for picture messages. Text message charges
are subject to change.

"Feature not included on NationalAccess and Mobile Broadband Plans at no charge, but are available at the prevailing Verizon Wireless rates.

8Mobile Web Alerts are sent as Text Messages and are subject to Text Messaging pricing, terms and conditions. Mobile web is not available on Smartphones or the
Email and Web for BlackBerry Plans. Unless a V Cast, or Mobile TV Select Package, is subscribed to megabytes sent or received (including advertising) will be
aggregated each month, rounded up to the next full megabyte, and billed at $1.99/ MB. Complete terms and conditions for Mobile Web may be found at
www.verizonwireless.com.

®International Calling/ Roaming prices start at $.49 a minute (plus airtime). For complete terms and conditions for International Calling/ Roaming please visit
verizonwireless.com/international.

Push to Talk Plus: Push to Talk Plus (PTT+) capable Equipment required. Push to Talk Plus capable Equipment can only be used with a Push to Talk Plus calling
plan. Subscribers switching from a Push to Talk Plus Calling Plan to another calling plan may not be able to use certain Push to Talk Plus capable Equipment
with the new plan. Push to Talk Plus calls may only be made with other Verizon Wireless Push to Talk Plus subscribers. Push to Talk Plus Subscribers may initiate
or participate on a call, simultaneously, with as many as 250 total participants (total is limited to (50) if interoperating between 3G and 4G participants). Administrators
can be designated to manage the Push to Talk contact lists via a single website interface with a single user name/password. . Existing Push to Talk Subscriber
Equipment may require a software upgrade to use Push to Talk Plus or replacement with a Push to Talk Plus capable device. Push to Talk Plus is only available within
the National Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area and WiFi access points. There will be a delay from the time a Push to Talk Plus call is initiated until the Push
to Talk Plus call is first received by the called party. If an incoming voice call is received while on a Push to Talk Plus call the voice call may be answered and the Push
to Talk Plus placed on hold. If an incoming Push to Talk Plus call is received while on a Push to Talk Plus call the PTT call icon can be selected to connect to the Push
to Talk Plus call. If the incoming voice or Push to Talk Plus call is not answered a missed call alert will display. Network registration information will be sent to the
Equipment each time it is powered on in the National Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area, each time the Subscriber travels into the National Enhanced
Services Rate and Coverage Area, and every 12 hours if the Subscriber stays within the National Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area. While the updated
network registration information is being sent to the Equipment, incoming voice calls will go directly to voice mail. Contact list cannot be modified from certain Equipment.
Subscriber cannot prevent others who have the Subscriber's MTN from entering the MTN into their Push to Talk contact list. Only one person can speak at a time
during a Push to Talk Plus call. In-Call Talker Override (Talker Priority) allows a pre-determined user priority to take the floor to communicate urgent message over
participant. Push to Talk Plus services cannot be used for (i) access to the Internet, intranets or other data networks, except as the device’s native applications &
capabilities permit, (ii) any applications that tether Equipment to laptops, personal computers or other devices for any purpose. Please visit our website
www.verizonwireless.com for additional Push to Talk Plus information.

Text Messaging: Text Messaging includes Short Message Service (SMS up to 160 characters) and Enhanced Messaging Service (EMS up to 1120
characters). Enhanced Text Messages sent to most SMS handsets will be delivered as multiple Text messages of up to 160 characters each.
Subscribers have the option to have text messages disabled entirely without affecting voicemail or other related services. Text Messaging plans do
not include Operator Assisted Messaging or International Messaging, which is available for 25¢ per message sent and 20¢ per message received; see
www.vtext.com for details and countries. Verizon Wireless is not responsible for information sent using Text Messaging or Enhanced Text Messaging.
Verizon Wireless cannot guarantee that messages will be received and is not responsible for messages that are lost or misdirected. Messages not

August 27, 2018 State of CA Participating Addendum 7-10-70-16 Page 5 of 7




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



delivered after 5 days are automatically deleted. Airtime charges do not apply to the sending or receiving of text messages. When sending messages
from Equipment, the sender's MTN will always be sent to the destination, even if Caller ID is used to block voice calls.

Mobile to Mobile Messaging: Cannot be combined with any other package that includes a Text or Picture & Video message allowance. Mobile to
Mobile Messaging applies only to Text/ Picture/ Video messages sent to and received from other Verizon Wireless subscribers’ wireless phones while
both wireless subscribers are within the National Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area. Additional messages apply to PIX Place, VTEXT/ Text
Alerts/ getAlerts, Instant Messaging (IM), Email, Premium Text Services, and Text/Picture/Video messages sent to non-Verizon Wireless customers,
and these messages will be decremented from the subscriber’s Additional Message allowance or billed as overage. Additional Messages may not be
applied toward International Text Messaging, which costs 25¢ per message sent and 20¢ per message received; please see www.vtext.com for
additional details and countries.

Multi-Media Messaging (MMS): Multi-Media Messaging (MMS) includes picture and video messaging and is only available within the National
Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area. In addition, MMS messages are $0.25 per message, per address. In addition to the MMS per message
charges, MMS uses calling plan Anytime Minutes or kilobytes. Canceling an MMS message after pressing SEND may result in sent messages that
contain only partial content. Subscriber will be charged for outgoing MMS message, even if not received by the intended recipient, or even if only
partial content is delivered. Subscriber will not be charged for incoming MMS message unless received. An MMS message that cannot be delivered
within 5 days will be deleted. MMS is not available for use with a Mobile Office Kit. Camera phones are prohibited in some places. Subscribers are
solely responsible for complying with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and policies regarding camera phone use.

International Roaming (Global Phone/ GlobalAccess/ GlobalEmail): International roaming requires digital or tri-mode phone with current software.
Global Phone requires GSM- capable phones and compatible SIM card. I-Dial required for GSM roaming, and for roaming in many destination. Rates,
terms and conditions apply only when roaming on participating GSM and networks in published destinations. Availability of service, calling features,
and Text messaging varies by country and network and may be restricted without notice. Premium text messaging programs that are accessible
domestically are also accessible when roaming internationally and charges will be in addition to text messaging roaming charges. Where available
calls placed to directory assistance, entertainment lines and any third-party services are billed (along with applicable toll charges) in addition to roaming
rates. Message waiting indicator service is not available where text messaging is not available. Availability of services and features, including the ability
to make and receive international calls, varies by serving carrier and locaton and may be restricted without notice. See
versionwireless.com/international for rates and destinations, which are subject to change without notice. Existing subscribers who purchase a Global
Phone may have to set up a new voice mailbox and, if so, will lose access to previously stored messages upon activation of Global Phone. Voice mail
messages will be time-stamped Eastern Time. Calls to voice mail will appear on the bill as calls to the subscriber's MTN or to 000-000-0086 Taxes,
surcharges and other regulatory fees may apply and may vary by country. Billing for airtime used when roaming may be delayed up to two billing
cycles. By using Equipment outside the United States, subscriber is solely responsible for complying with all applicable foreign laws, rules and
regulations (“Foreign Laws”), including Foreign Laws regarding use of wireless phones while driving and use of wireless camera phones. Verizon
Wireless is not liable for any damages that may result from subscriber’s failure to comply with Foreign Laws.

Roaming in GSM countries: GSM International Phone, activated in the United States with compatible subscriber Identity Module (SIM) card required.
Rates, terms and conditions apply only when roaming on participating GSM networks in published Global Phone countries. Service may be available
in additional countries, but airtime rates, availability of calling features, and ability to receive incoming calls (including return calls from emergency
services personnel) may be restricted. See www.verizonwireless.com for coverage and airtime rates. Service in certain countries may be blocked
without prior notice. Where Text messaging is available, Customer will be charged $0.50 for each message sent and $0.05 for each message received.
Text messaging rates are subject to change. Text messages cannot exceed 140 characters and may be sent only to MTNs of (i) Verizon Wireless
customers, and (i) customers of foreign wireless carriers that participate in international text messaging. Check www.vtext.com for the most current
list of participating foreign carriers. Text messages cannot be sent to e-mail addresses.

DATA PLANS AND FEATURES

Data Plans and Features: Data Plan and Feature usage is subject to Acceptable Use Policy, available on www.verizonwireless.com. Monthly
Megabyte allowances apply only to Mobile Broadband data transmissions. Other data (Quick 2 NetSM or dial-up) transmissions and voice calls will be
billed at the per-minute overage rate according to the plan. For optional data features, “other data” will be billed as Anytime Minutes or at the per-
minute overage rate according to the underlying calling plan. Mobile Broadband data sessions require Mobile Broadband capable Equipment and must
be placed within Mobile Broadband service area. Subscriber MUST press or click END or DISCONNECT button to ensure that session disconnects
and charges cease. Third-party applications may automatically reinitiate data sessions without the subscriber pressing or clicking SEND or CONNECT
button. Customer must maintain virus protection when accessing the service.

Permitted Uses: Wireless Email and Data Plans and Features may be used for accessing the Internet and for such uses as: (i) Internet browsing; (i)
email; (iii) intranet access (including accessing corporate intranets, email and individual productivity applications made available by your company);
(iv) uploading, downloading and streaming of audio, video and games; and (v) Voice over Internet Protocol (VolIP).

Prohibited Uses: While most common uses for Internet are permitted by a subscriber’s Data Plan, there are certain uses that cause network
capacity issues and interference with the network. These are not uses intended for Data Access plans and are therefore prohibited.
Examples of prohibited uses include the following: (i) server devices or host computer applications, including, but not limited to, continuous
Web camera posts or broadcasts, automatic data feeds, automated machine-to-machine connections or peer-to-peer (P2P) file sharing

August 27, 2018 State of CA Participating Addendum 7-10-70-16 Page 6 of 7




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.vtext.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



applications that are broadcast to multiple servers or recipients such as they could enable “bots” or similar routines (as set forth in more
detail in (iii) below) or otherwise denigrate network capacity or functionality; (ii) as a substitute or backup for private lines or dedicated data
connections; (iii) “auto-responders,” “cancel-bots,” or similar automated or manual routines which generate amounts of net traffic that
could disrupt net user groups or email use by others; (iv) generating “spam” or unsolicited commercial or bulk email (or activities that
facilitate the dissemination of such email); (v) any activity that adversely affects the ability of other users or systems to use either Verizon
Wireless Services or other parties’ Internet-based resources, including the generation or dissemination of viruses, malware, or “denial of
service” (DoS) attacks; (vi) accessing, or attempting to access without authority the information, accounts or devices of others, or to
penetrate, or attempt to penetrate, security measures of Verizon Wireless’ or another entity’s network or systems; or (vii) running software
or other devices that maintain continuous active Internet connections when a computer’s connection would otherwise be idle or “keep
alive” functions, unless they adhere to Verizon Wireless’ requirements for such usage, which may be changed from time to time. This
means, by way of example only, that using these Data Plans or Features for P2P file-sharing services, web broadcasting, or for the operation
of servers, telemetry devices and/or Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition devices is prohibited. Mobile Broadband and NationalAccess
data sessions automatically terminate after 2 hours of inactivity, unless subscriber has Mobile IP (MIP) capable Equipment. Verizon Wireless
reserves the right to take measures to protect our network and other users from harm, compromised capacity or degradation in performance.
These measures may impact your service, and we reserve the right to deny, modify or terminate service, with or without notice, to anyone
we believe is using Data Plans or Features in a manner that adversely impacts our network. We may monitor your compliance, or the
compliance of other users, with these terms and conditions, but we will not monitor the content of your communications except as otherwise
expressly permitted or required by law. [See verizonwireless.com/privacy.]

For individual use only and not for resale. We will protect our network from harm, which may impact legitimate data flows. We will limit throughput or
amount of data transferred exceeding 25 GB in any given billing cycle on any line, in any given billing cycle, for all additional usage for the remainder
of the then-current bill cycle for the line that exceeds the data usage, and reserve the right to deny or terminate service, without notice, to anyone we
believe is using an Unlimited Data Plan or Feature in any manner prohibited above or whose usage adversely impacts our network or service levels.
Anyone using more than 25 GB per line in a given billing cycle is presumed to be using the service in a manner prohibited above, and we reserve the
right to immediately terminate the service of any such person without notice. We reserve the right to adjust data throughput limitation thresholds to as
low as 5GB in with prior written notice. We also reserve the right to terminate service upon notification to the customer.

Megabyte (MB) Data Plans: Megabyte allowance and charges for kilobytes over the monthly allowance apply to NationalAccess and Mobile
Broadband data sessions and are rounded to next full kilobyte at end of each billing cycle. Only total of kilobytes transmitted above allowance each
billing cycle may appear on bill.

Data Roaming: In the Canadian Broadband and Canadian Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Areas, usage will be charged at a rate of $0.002/KB
or $2.05/MB. In the Mexican Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area, usage will be charged at a rate of $0.005/KB or $5.12/MB. In other available
countries, usage will be billed at a rate of $0.02/KB or $20.48/MB. International Eligibility is needed to roam in many destinations. Current coverage
details, and list of Other Available Countries can be found at www.verizonwireless.com/International.

International Data Optional Features: International PC Card required for international use. International PC Cards will not work in the United States
or Canada and International Data Optional Features subscribers will need a NationalAccess or Mobile Broadband PC card for domestic use. The
domestic and International PC Cards cannot be used at the same time. Prior to leaving the United States, subscribers must install International Data
Optional Features VZAccess Manager™ and run the OTA wizard. International Data Optional Features subscribers must activate and update their
Preferred Roaming lists while in the National Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area every three months. Verizon Wireless reserves the right to
terminate the service of any subscriber whose total usage is less than half on the Verizon Wireless National Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage
Area over three consecutive billing cycles. .

International Email SIM Cards: SIM Cards are available for use with your International PC Card, International Smartphone, or International Phone.
Verizon Wireless is not responsible for any unauthorized use of subscriber's SIM Cards and subscriber must safeguard security codes. Placing your
InternationalEmail SIM in any other non BlackBerry or Smartphone device could result in additional charges or termination of service. Upon termination
of service, subscriber must destroy SIM Card

August 27, 2018 State of CA Participating Addendum 7-10-70-16 Page 7 of 7




http://www.verizonwireless.com/global




Custom 4G Unlimited Smartphone Plan with Mobile Broadband Priority for

National Security, Public Safety, and First Responders
Government Liable Subscribers Only
This plan is not eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Only 4G LTE GSM/UMTS global-capable smartphones can be activated on this plan.

Monthly Access Fee $39.99 (16807)
Monthly Minutes in U.S Unlimited
Domestic Data Allowance!!! Unlimited
Domestic Messaging Allowance Unlimited
Optional Features
Domestic Mobile Hotspot $5.00 additional per month (76440)
Push-to-Talk $2.00 additional per month (81129/81174)

Notes: Current coverage details and non-domestic data rates can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. No domestic roaming or long distance
charges. Coverage includes the Verizon Wireless 4G network; and the 3G and 3G Extended networks, while available. () Data usage on this rate
plan is not subject to speed reductions (‘throttling”) within a given billing cycle. However, in the event data usage exceeds 25GB each billing cycle for
three (3) consecutive billing cycles, data throughput speeds will automatically be reduced for data usage exceeding.25GB.perbilling:cycle-on-a-go-
forward basis. Data usage for actively engaged and deployed fire, police, emergency medical technicians, emerge anagement agency, and
assigned federal law enforcement users on this plan will not be subject to speed reductions regardless of data usage during any billing cycle. To
ensure Users are able to maximize their high-speed data use for business applications, video applications will stream at 480p. This service plan
includes Mobile Broadband Priority. Mobile Broadband Priority ensures customers can connect to the network with priority by leveraging a pool of
radio resources dedicated to enable their connection. Mobile Broadband Priority identifies the user with an Access Priority setting, giving them higher
priority for network access than lower Access Class users. This service plan is available to National Security, Public Safety, and First Responders
customers only as defined by the following NAICS (formerly SIC) Codes:

21910 Ambulance Services 22190 Other Justice, Public Order, and Safety Activities -
922110 Courts 28110 National Security
922120 Police Protection 26120 Regulation and Administration of Transportation Programs
922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution 926150 Regulation, Licensing, and Inspection of Misc. Commercial Sectors
922140 Correctional Institutions 26130 Regulation and Administration of Comms, Electric, Gas, and Other Utilities
922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices 21190 Other General Government Support
922160 Fire Protection {except private) 21110 Executive Offices DA

Verizon Wireless offers lljas pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www. naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 11 of 48




cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight





Custom 4G Unlimited Mobile Broadband Plan with Mobile Broadband Priority for

National Security, Public Safety, and First Responders
Government Liable Subscribers Only
This plan is not eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Only 4G LTE GSM/UMTS global-capable devices can be activated on this plan.

Monthly Access Fee $37.99

Domestic Data Allowance!(!) Unlimited

go-forward basis. Data usage for actively engaged and deployed fire, police, emergency medical technician

Notes: Current coverage details and non-domestic data rates can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. No domestic roaming or long distance
charges. Coverage includes the Verizon Wireless 4G network: and the 3G and 3G Extended networks, while available. () Data usage on this rate
plan is not subject to speed reductions (‘throttling”) within a given billing cycle. However, in the event data usage exceeds 25GB each billing cycle
for three (3) consecutive billing cycles, data throughput speeds will automatically be reduced for data usage exceeding 25GB per pilling cycle on a

and assigned federal law enforcement users on this plan will not be subject to speed reductions regardless of data usage during iny billing cycle.
To ensure users are able to maximize their high-speed data use for business applications, video applications will stream at 720p. This service plan
includes Mobile Broadband Priority. Mobile Broadband Priority ensures customers can connect to the network with priority by leveraging a pool of
radio resources dedicated to enable their connection. Mobile Broadband Priority identifies the user with an Access Priority setting, giving them
higher priority for network access than lower Access Class users. Devices utilized in conjunction with this plan are limited to mobile device
applications. Dedicated internet connections (including but not limited to, stationary wireless networking router devices), streaming video on non-
smartphone devices (including but not limited to, body cameras and station ary video surveillance cameras), and loT devices are expressly prohibited
on this rate plan. This plan is only available to National Security, Public Safety, and First Responder customers only as defined by the following

NAICS (formerly SIC) Codes: Plan# 20312
21910 Ambulance Services 22130 Other Justice, Public Order, and Safety Activities ﬁ
922110 Courts 928110 National Security
922120 Police Protection 926120 Regulation and Administration of Transportation Programs
922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution 926150 Regulation, Licensing, and Inspection of Misc. Commercial Sectors
922140 Correctional Institutions 926130 Regulation and Administration of Comms, Electric, Gas, and Other Utilities
922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices 921190 Other General Government Support
922160 Fire Protection (except private) 921110 Executive Offices =,
obille Broadband fo s e 1o 5 & 4 u
A B, O B
obille Broadband fo 3 e to 5 e Pla O1 eligible fo 0 A = ee D O
Monthly Access Data Allowance Overage Rate per GB Data Roaming per KB (Canada)
$37.99 (85975) 5GB $10.00/GB $0.002

Current data coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com.

Note: Machine to Machine coverage included the Verizon Wireless 4G, 3G and 3G Extended networks. 4G and 3G Mobile Broadband coverage
details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. 4G service requires 4G equipment and 4G coverage. Typical 4G speeds: 5 to 12 Mbps download,
2 to 5 Mbps upload. When traveling in the 3G Coverage Area, you can expect download speeds of 600 Kbps to 1.4 Mbps and upload speeds of 500
to 800 Kbps. When traveling in the Extended 3G Coverage Area, you can expect download speeds of 400 to 700 Kbps and upload speeds of 60 to
80 Kbps. Qutside the Mobile Broadband Rate and Coverage Area, the NationalAccess network allows connections at typical speeds of 60 to 80 Kbps.

Government 3G/4G Email Feature for BlackBerry & Smartphones
STATE OF CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT LINES ONLY

The Government Email Feature is NOT eligible for monthly access fee discounts
| Includes Wireless Sync or BlackBerry Solution compatible with Microsoft Outlook, Lotus Notes, POP3, and IMAP email accounts

As a feature added to an eligible plan
Monthly Access Fee $24.99 (73419)
MB Allowance Unlimited*
Per Minute Ratett Per the Voice Calling Plan

distance.

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information
about calling plans, features and options. ' Optional Feature may only be added to WSCA CA Nationwide Consumption Plan or to the WSCA
Nationwide Unlimited Calling Plan. For optional features, the underlying calling plan determines the rates for voice airtime, and domestic long

August 27, 2018 State of CA Participating Addendum 7-10-70-16 Page 2 of 7




cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight










Verizon Wireless Pricing Sheet
NASPO ValuePoint or NVLPT (f/k/a WSCA)

Contract for Services #1907
22% NVLPT Discount Offer

WIRELESS VOICE CALLING PLANS
NVLPT Nationwide for Government Share Calling Plans |

The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

NVLPT Nationwide for Government

Account Share 0 Minutes 100 Minutes ‘ 200 Minutes

Monthly Access Fee $15.991 (86137) $23.98 (80006) $27.29 (73736)

NVLPT Nationwide for Government . . )
EVP (Profile) Share 0 Minutes 100 Minutes ‘ 200 Minutes ‘

Monthly Access Fee $15.991 (86136) $23.98 (80010) $27.29 (73575)
Monthly Anytime Voice Minutes 0 100 200
Domestic Voice Overage Rate $0.25 per minute

Domestic Mobile to Mobile Unlimited

Domestic Night & Weekend Minutes Unlimited

Domestic Long Distance Included

Data Sent or Received $1.99/ MB or per data package?

Domestic Text, Picture and Video 100 Included (76678)

Messages Overage per message: Incoming Text $0.02/ Outgoing Text $0.10 / Pic & Video $0.25

Optional Features

Domestic Text, Picture and Video Unlimited (75439) $12.00 per line
Messages

Domestic Push To Talk Plus Not Available | $2.00 (Basic phone- 83270)

Notes Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling plans,
features and options. 1The $15.99 zero access plan can only be 50% of an accounts total share lines. 2Smartphones and Data Multimedia Phones require a data
package. 4G service requires 4G Equipment and 4G coverage.

Account Share Voice Sharing: At the end of each bill cycle, any unused voice allowances for lines sharing on the same account will be applied to the overages of
the other lines on the same account beginning with the line with the highest overage need.

EVP (Profile) Share - Voice Sharing (Domestic Only): At the end of each bill cycle, any unused voice allowances for lines sharing across multiple accounts will be
applied proportionally to all lines with overages.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 1 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight





NVLPT Nationwide for Government Calling Plans |

The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

NVLPT Nationwide for Government 400 Voice Minutes \ 600 Voice Minutes 1000 Voice Minutes |

Monthly Access Fee (non-share) $35.88 (74538) $52.56 (74540) $67.94 (74542)

Monthly Access Fee less discount (non-share) $27.98 $40.99 $52.99

Monthly Access Fee (share) $38.45 (74539, 76363) $55.12 (74541, 76364) $70.50 (74543, 76365)

Monthly Access Fee less discount (share) $29.99 $42.99 $54.99

Monthly Anytime Voice Minutes 400 600 1000

Friends & Family (up to 10 numbers per account) Not Included Included!

Voice Overage Rate $0.25 per minute

Domestic Mobile to Mobile Unlimited

Domestic Night & Weekend Minutes Unlimited

Domestic Long Distance Included

Data Sent or Received $1.99/ MB or per data package?

Domestic Text, Picture and Video 100 Included (76678)

Messages Overage per message: Incoming Text $0.02/ Outgoing Text $0.10 / Pic & Video $0.25
Optional Features

Domestic Text, Picture and Video Unlimited (75439) $12.00 per line

Messages

Domestic Push To Talk Plus $2.00 (Basic phone- 83270)

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling
plans, features and options. 1Friends & Family eligibility varies on selected calling plan. 2Smartphones and Data Multimedia Phones require a data package. 4G service
requires 4G Equipment and 4G coverage.

Account Share Voice Sharing: At the end of each bill cycle, any unused voice allowances for lines sharing on the same account will be applied to the overages of
the other lines on the same account beginning with the line with the highest overage need.

NVLPT Nationwide for Business Calling Plans |

The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Nationwide for Business 450 Voice Minutes | 900 Voice Minutes Unlimited Voice Minutes

Monthly Access Fee (Talk) $39.99 (73713) $59.99 (73714) $69.99 (83233)

Monthly Access Fee less discount (Talk) $31.19 $46.79 $54.59

Monthly Access Fee (Talk & Text) $59.99 (73761) $79.99 (73762) $89.99 (83234)

Monthly Access Fee less discount (Talk & Text) $46.79 $62.39 $70.19

Domestic Anytime Voice Minutes 450 900 Unlimited

Friends & Family (up to 10 numbers per account) Included with share plan only Included!?

Voice Overage Rate $0.25 per minute

National Mobile to Mobile Unlimited

Domestic Night & Weekend Minutes Unlimited

Domestic Long Distance Included

Data Sent or Received $1.99/ MB or per data package?

Domestic Text, Picture and Video 100 Included (76678)

Messages Overage per message: Incoming Text $0.02/ Outgoing Text $0.10 / Pic & Video $0.25
Optional Features |

Domestic Text, Picture and Video Unlimited (75439) $12.00 per line

Messages

Domestic Push To Talk Plus $2.00 (Basic phone- 83270)

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling

plans, features and options. LFriends & Family eligibility varies on selected calling plan. 2Smartphones and Data Multimedia Phones require a data package. 4G service

requires 4G Equipment and 4G coverage.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 2 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight





Custom Unlimited Basic Phone Plan for
National Security, Public Safety, and Emergency Preparedness

Government Liable Subscribers Only

This plan is not eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Monthly Access Fee $22.99 (16810)
Monthly Minutes in U.S Unlimited
Domestic Data Allowance 100MB
Domestic Messaging Allowance Unlimited
Domestic Data Overage $10.00 per GB

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. No domestic roaming or long distance charges. Coverage includes the
Verizon Wireless 4G network; and the 3G and 3G Extended networks, while available. This service plan is available to National Security, Public Safety,
and Emergency Preparedness customers only as defined by the following NAICS (formerly SIC) Codes:

621910 Ambulance Services

922110 Courts

922120 Police Protection

922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution
922140 Correctional Institutions

922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices
922160 Fire Protection

922190 Other Justice, Public Order, and Safety Activities

928110 National Security

926120 Regulation and Administration of Transportation Programs

926150 Regulation, Licensing, and Inspection of Misc. Commercial Sectors
926130 Regulation and Administration of Comms, Electric, Gas, and Other Utilities
921190 Other General Government Support

921110 Executive Offices

Custom Unlimited Push to Talk Only Plan for
National Security, Public Safety, and Emergency Preparedness

Government Liable Subscribers Only

This plan is not eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Monthly Access Fee

$17.99 (96626/ 4G, 96625/ 3G/4G)

Monthly Push to Talk Minutes

Unlimited

Domestic Voice Per Minute Rate

$0.25

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. No domestic roaming or long distance charges. Coverage includes the
Verizon Wireless 4G network; and the 3G and 3G Extended networks, while available. This service plan is available to National Security, Public Safety,
and Emergency Preparedness customers only as defined by the following NAICS (formerly SIC) Codes:

621910 Ambulance Services

922110 Courts

922120 Police Protection

922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution
922140 Correctional Institutions

922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices
922160 Fire Protection

922190 Other Justice, Public Order, and Safety Activities

928110 National Security

926120 Regulation and Administration of Transportation Programs

926150 Regulation, Licensing, and Inspection of Misc. Commercial Sectors
926130 Regulation and Administration of Comms, Electric, Gas, and Other Utilities
921190 Other General Government Support

921110 Executive Offices

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government

Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 3 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



WIRELESS VOICE & DATA PLANS

Unlimited Plan for Smartphones - Government

Government Subscribers Only
This plan is not eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Monthly Access Fee $70.00 (99719)
Monthly Anytime Minutes — Domestic, Canada and Mexico Unlimited
Domestic Data and Messaging Allowance* Unlimited
Canada & Mexico Data and Messaging Allowance** Unlimited
Mobile Hotspot” Included
Domestic, Canada and Mexico Long Distance Toll Free" Included
International Messaging Allowance™" Unlimited

Notes: Coverage area includes the Verizon Wireless 4G network; and the 3G and Extended partner networks, while available. Data speeds are not
guaranteed while on Extended or roaming partner networks. Only a 4G LTE GSM/UMTS global-capable smartphone can be activated on this plan.
No domestic roaming or long distance charges.

*After 25 GB of data usage on a line during any billing cycle usage may be prioritized behind other customers in the event of network congestion.
To ensure users are able to maximize their high-speed data use for business applications, video applications will stream at up to 480p.

*For data usage in Canada and Mexico, after the first 512 MB of usage in a day, throughput speeds will be reduced for the remainder of the day.
Mobile Hotspot is available on all capable devices and allows the line to share data allowance with multiple Wi-Fi enabled devices. If 15 GB of
Mobile Hotspot data usage is exceeded on any line in any given billing cycle, Verizon Wireless will limit the data throughput speeds for additional
usage for the remainder of the then-current billing cycle for the line that exceeds the data usage.

MToll free calling from the US to Canada and Mexico, from Mexico to the US and Canada, and from Canada to the US and Mexico.

MAUnlimited Messaging from within the United States to anywhere in the world where messaging services are available. For other messaging rates
go to www.verizonwireless.com.

***Plan 99719 is eligible to use Travel Pass SPO 988. Please visit verizonwireless.com/international for rates and destinations, which are subject to
change without notice.***

Custom 4G Verizon Unlimited Smartphone Plan for Public Sector

Government Subscribers Only
The calling plan below reflects the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Only 4G LTE GSM/UMTS global-capable smartphones can be activated on this plan.

Monthly Access Fee $65.00 (13656)
Monthly Access Fee (Discount Applied) $50.70
Monthly Minutes in U.S Unlimited
Domestic Data Allowance Unlimited®
Domestic Mobile Hotspot Unlimited®
Domestic and International Messaging Allowance Unlimited®

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. No domestic roaming or long distance charges. Coverage includes the
Verizon Wireless 4G network; and the 3G and 3G Extended networks, while available.

() In the event of network congestion, after 10GB of data usage on a line during any hilling cycle, usage on such line may result in slightly slower
download speeds relative to another user. To ensure users are able to maximize their high-speed data use for business applications, video applications
will stream at 480p.

() Mobile Hotspot is available on all capable devices and allows Corporate Subscribers to use their device and share data allowance with multiple Wi-
Fi enabled devices. If 10GB of Mobile Hotspot data usage is exceeded on any line in any given billing cycle, Verizon Wireless will limit the data
throughput speeds for additional usage for the remainder of the then-current billing cycle for the line that exceeds the data usage.

@ Unlimited Messaging from within the United States to anywhere in the world where messaging services are available. For other messaging rates
go to www.verizonwireless.com.

***Plan 13656 is eligible to use Travel SPO 383. Please visit verizonwireless.com/international for rates and destinations, which are subject to
change without notice.***

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 4 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight





The New Verizon Plan - Talk, Text and Data: Government Subscribers

(Up to 10 Phone/Internet Devices/20 Connected Devices)

Select Device Type
Smartphones Jetpacks/Netbooks/
Smartphones Purchased at /Notebooks/
Purchgsed at Full Retail Basic 46 LT:? Routers - 5 4G dIBTE " USBs (SFO 84022, 84023, | Wireless Select
Discounted Price or Phones |WI voiee - ros gn ¢ g4024) and Tablets Home Conn_ectesd
Price (Matrix) Customer (SFO O\?Q%S;Zﬁ?g;tgr (())l:ﬂer-SFg a | (including Google Chromebook) | Phone? S (2?(‘)”;%?6
(SFO 84014) Provided 84016) (SFO 84020) 84%1(8) (SFosdo2n)/ FOB40LD) | 44027, 8a028)
Equipment 4G LTE Internet device
(SFO 84015**) (Installed)! (SFO 84025)
Monthly Line Access Fee |
$40.00 per $20.00 per $20.00 $20.00 $10.00 $10.00 $20.00 $5.00
device device per per device per device per device per per device
device device
Select Data Amount (Talk and Text are Unlimited) |
The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.
Maximum Domestic Safety
Monthly Account Number of Lines Shared Data Data Modet Safety Carryover Data
Access Fee (per billing Allowance Modes$ (672) Data (671) Boost” (681)
Overage (682)
account)
$35.00¢ $27.30 (96325) Up to 10 Phone/ 2 GB (Small) $5.00 N/A
Internet devices ) $15.00 per 1 $15.00 for 1
$50.00 $39.00 (96327) Up to 20 4 GB (Medium) : GBP $5.00 N/A Included GB
Connected (optional)
$70.00 $54.60 (96328) Devices 8 GB (Large) $5.00 N/A
General Allowance Minutes Unlimited
Domestic Long Distance Included
BlackBerry Enterprise Server $15.00 per line (77515)
Cloud Storage 5 GB per line
Unlimited Domestic Text and
Multimedia Messages and Included
International Text Messages
Domestic Mobile Hotspot Included
Notes: Data-only devices on these plans share in the data allowance but do not share the minutes or message allowance unless the device is capable. LTE Internet (Installed)
require the new Verizon Plans 8 GB or higher.2Wireless Home Phone shares in the unlimited voice minutes but not the message or data allowance. 30Only approved connected
devices are eligible. 4No additional discounts apply. 6Safety Mode speeds do not impact the quality of HD calls; however, the speeds will impact HD video calling experience.
While in Safety Mode customer can return to full 4G LTE speed by purchasing Data Boost or switching to a plan with a higher data allowance. 7Data Boost allows additional 4G
LTE data to be purchased when needed. Accounts with Data only devices must use the data only plans. Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com.
Access fee discounts applied at the account level only. Text Messages originating from Mexico are $0.50 per message sent (per recipient) and $0.05 per message received on
the 2GB, 4GB, and 8 GB plans. Data allowances from new Verizon Plans with not share with any other Verizon Plans. The new Verizon Plan is not compatible with Private
Network Traffic Management.
Sharing: Sharing is available only among Government Subscribers on Verizon Plans — Talk Text and Data for up to 10 lines on the same account.
**The $40.00 monthly line access for Smartphones will automatically change to $20.00 monthly line access once the line term is fulfilled. Proration may occur.
Promotions may be available for Monthly Line and Account Access Fees. Please contact your Government Account Manager.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 5 of 48






The New Verizon Plan for Business Plan - Talk, Text and Data Plans: Government Subscribers
(Up to 25 Phone/Internet Devices/50 Connected Devices)

Select Device Type
Smartoh AG LTE Jetpacks(sFo
P?rirhgsggi Routers - with 84022)/
Smartphones Full Retail voice only(sFo . Netbooks/
Purchased at Price or Basic Phones o 4 Routers (data Notebooks(sro Wireless select
Discounted S0 LTE Routers 84024)USBS(SFO Home Connected
Price (Matrix) Cust(_)mer ( ) (with voice il 84023) Phonel(sFo Devices?
SFO Provided (SFO 84018) Tablets (SFO 84026,
(SFO 84040) _ and data B EATRS) 84027, 84028
Equipment (including Google ] )
(SFO 84041%%) bundle) Chromebook)
(SFO 84045) (SFO 84021)
Monthly Line Access Fee ‘
$35.00 per $15.00 per $15.00 per $15.00 $10.00 $10.00 $15.00 $5.00
device device device per device per device per device per device per device

Select Data Amount (Talk and Text are Unlimited)
The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Maximum Number Shared Data Domestic Data Safety Carryover Data
Monthly Account Access of Lines (per billing Mode3 Data Boost*
Allowance Overage
account) (672) (671) (681)
$175.00 $136.50 (96345) 25 GB3
$245.00 $191.10 (96366) Upto 25 Phpne/ 35 GB3
$350.00 $273.00 (96368) Intermet devices 50 GB? $15.00 for
$390.00 Py $15.00 per LGB | Included Included 1GB
Soet 0 (96369) Up to 50 Connected (optional)
$750-00 $585.00 (96370) Devices 150 GB3
$1000.00 $780.00 (96371) 200 GB?
General Allowance Minutes Unlimited
Domestic Long Distance Included
BlackBerry Enterprise Server $15.00 per line (77515)
Cloud Storage 5 GB per line
Unlimited Domestic Text and
Multimedia Messages and Included
International Text Messages
Domestic Mobile Hotspot Included

Notes: Data-only devices on these plans share in the data allowance but do not share the minutes or message allowance unless the device is capable. Wireless
Home Phone shares in the unlimited voice minutes but not the message or data allowance. 20nly approved connected devices are eligible. All Talk, Text and Data
allowances on the new Verizon Plan for Business Plan include Mexico and Canada, and unlimited calling from the US to Mexico and Canada at no additional charge.
TravelPass (including Canada and Mexico) may be added to the new Verizon Plan for Business plans for access to additional countries. 3Safety Mode speeds do not
impact the quality of HD calls; however, the speeds will impact HD video calling experience. While in Safety Mode customer can return to full 4G LTE speed by
purchasing Data Boost or switching to a plan with a higher data allowance. “Data Boost allows additional 4G LTE data to be purchased when needed. Accounts with
Data only devices must use the data only plans. Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. Access fee discounts applied at the account
level only. Included Text Messages originating in the U.S. to Canada and Mexico. The new Verizon Plan is not compatible with Private Network Traffic Management.
Sharing: Customers subscribing to Verizon Plan for Business will be billed on separate billing accounts and invoices. Sharing is available only among Government
Subscribers on these Verizon Plan for Business — Talk Text and Data with 11 or more lines on the same account.

**The $35.00 monthly line access for Smartphones will automatically change to $15.00 monthly line access once the line term is fulfilled. Proration may occur.
Promotions may be available for Monthly Line and Account Access Fees. Please contact your Government Account Manager.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 6 of 48






The New Verizon Single Basic Phone Plan: Unlimited Talk and Text Only

The calling plan below reflects the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Basic Phones Only

3G or 4G LTE Basic Phone 4G LTE Basic Phone Only
Monthly Device Access Fee $30.00 (98245) $50-00 $39.00 (98817)
Domestic Anytime Voice Allowance Per Month Unlimited
Voice Per Minute Rate (after allowance) N/A
Domestic Data Allowance 500 MB | 4GB
Data Overage $5.00 per 500 MB
Domestic Long Distance Included
Domestic Text Messages Unlimited

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. Not eligible for monthly access discounts.

The new Verizon Basic Plan is not available for accounts with Smartphones data devices, or connected devices- Customers subscribing to the new Verizon Single

Basic Plan and non- new Verizon Basic Plan will be billed on separate billing accounts and invoices.
The New Verizon Single Basic Plan is a standalone plan.

NVLPT Local Flat Rate Calling Plan

The calling plan below reflects the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

NVLPT Local Flat Rate Calling Plan
Monthly Access Fee

Government Subscribers Only
$8.99 (Market specific)

Domestic Anytime Minutes 0
Per Minute Rate $0.10
Domestic Long Distance Included
National Access Roaming $0.69

Domestic Data Sent or Received

1000 Domestic Night & Weekend Minutes
OR 1000 Nationwide Mobile to Mobile

$1.99 / MB or per data package!

$5.00 additional monthly access fee per line (72062)

Optional Features

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling
plans, features and options. 13G/4G Smartphones and 3G/4G Multimedia Phones require a data package.

Nationwide Flat Rate Calling Plan

The calling plan below reflects the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Nationwide Flat Rate

Government Subscribers Only

Monthly Access Fee $11.99 (73809)
Monthly Anytime Voice Minutes 0
Domestic Voice Per Minute Rate $0.25
Domestic Long Distance Included

Data Sent or Received

$1.99/ MB or per data package!

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling

plans, features and options. 1Smartphones and Multimedia Phones require a data package.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government

Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 7 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



Nationwide Push to Talk Plus Calling Plan (non-share) |

The calling plan below reflects the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Nationwide Push to Talk Plus (non-share) Government Subscribers Only |
Monthly Access Fee $19.99 (94244/92857)
Monthly Anytime Voice Minutes! 0
One to One & Group Talk Unlimited
Data Sent or Received $1.99/ MB or per data package?

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling
plans, features and options. Push to Talk Plus terms and conditions apply. 1Subscribers to the Push to Talk Plus Unlimited Calling Plan cannot place or receive regular
cellular wireless calls other than to 611 and 911. (These calls may be placed anywhere in the Nationwide Rate and Coverage Area). If the voice block feature is
removed, subscribers will be charged $0.25 per minute for non-Push to Talk Plus voice calls. 2Smartphones and Multimedia Phones require a data package.

Nationwide Add-a-Line Voice Plan with Push to Talk Plus |

Nationwide Add-a-Line Voice Plan with Push to Talk

Government Subscribers Only

Plus

Monthly Access Fee $18.991 (94990/92904)

. . . 0 Minutes
Monthly Anytime Voice Minutes Minutes can share minutes from voice and/or voice & data bundle plans
Push to Talk Plus Unlimited
Domestic Voice Per Minute Rate $0.25
Domestic Night & Weekend Minutes Unlimited
Domestic Nationwide Mobile to Mobile Unlimited
Domestic Long Distance Included
Domestic Roaming Rate per minute $0.25

. - 100 Included

Domestic Text (SMS) and Multimedia (MMS) Messages Overage: $0.20 (SMS) Text, $0.25 (MMS) senthreceived
Data Sent or Received $1.99/ MB or per data package?
Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling
plans, features and options. Push to Talk Plus terms and conditions apply. No More than 50% of plans on a single account can be placed on the $18.99 Additional
Line Voice & Push to Talk Plus plans 2Smartphones and Data Multimedia Phones require a data package.
Account Share Voice Sharing: At the end of each hill cycle, any unused voice allowances for lines sharing on the same account will be applied to the overages of
the other lines on the same account beginning with the line with the highest overage need.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 8 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



NVLPT 3G/4G Nationwide Email for Government Calling Plans

The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

NVLPT Nationwide for Government | 400 Voice Minutes 600 Voice Minutes | 1000 Voice Minutes

Monthly Access Fee (non-share) $61.53 (74510) $78.19 (74512) $93.58 (74514)
Monthly Access Fee less discount (non-share) $47.99 $60.99 $72.99
Monthly Access Fee (Account share) $64.09 (74511) $80.76 (74513) $96.16 (74515)
Monthly Access Fee less discount (share) $49.99 $62.99 $75.00
Monthly Access Fee (EVP (Profile) share) $64.09 (76369) $80.76 (76370) $96.16 (76371)
Monthly Access Fee less discount (EVP (Profile) share) $49.99 $62.99 $75.00
Monthly Anytime Voice Minutes 400 600 1000
Friends & Family (up to 10 numbers per account) Included
Voice Overage Rate $0.25 per minute
Domestic Mobile to Mobile Unlimited
Domestic Night & Weekend Minutes Unlimited
Domestic Long Distance Included
Domestic Data Allowance Unlimited*
Domestic Text (SMS) and Multimedia (MMS) Messages Unlimited

Optional Features |
Domestic Push To Talk Plus $2.00 (Smartphone- (76785/81129/81174)
Unlimited Hotspot/Tethering $10.00 per line (82219 3G) (76445 4G)

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling
plans, features and options.

Account Share Voice Sharing: At the end of each bill cycle, any unused voice allowances for lines sharing on the same account will be applied to the overages of
the other lines on the same account beginning with the line with the highest overage need.

EVP (Profile) Share - Voice Sharing (Domestic Only): At the end of each bill cycle, any unused voice allowances for lines sharing across multiple accounts will be
applied proportionally to all lines with overages.

*Verizon Wireless will limit the data throughput speeds should 25 GB of data usage be reached in any given billing cycle on any line. Data throughput speeds for
additional usage will be limited for the remainder of the then-current bill cycle for the line(s) that exceed the 25 GB high-speed data usage threshold. We reserve the
right to adjust data throughput limitation thresholds to as low as 5GB with prior written notice.

NVLPT 3G/4G Nationwide Email for Government Nationwide Add-a-Line Plan

The calling plan below reflects the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

NVLPT 3G/4G Nationwide Email for Government Add-a-Line Plan Government Subscribers Only |
Monthly Access Fee $35.991 (86140)
. - 0 Minutes
Monthly Anytime Voice Minutes Minutes can share minutes from voice & data bundle plans
Domestic Voice Per Minute Rate $0.25
Domestic Night & Weekend Minutes Unlimited
Domestic Nationwide Mobile to Mobile Unlimited
Domestic Long Distance Included
Domestic Data Allowance Unlimited*
Domestic Text (SMS) Unlimited

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling
plans, features and options. 1The $35.99 Add-a-Line plan can only be 50% of an accounts total share lines. The $35.99 Add-A-Line plan shares with the NVLPT
Nationwide for Government 400, 600 and 1000 minute plans.

* Verizon Wireless will limit the data throughput speeds should 25 GB of data usage be reached in any given hilling cycle on any line. Data throughput speeds for
additional usage will be limited for the remainder of the then-current hill cycle for the line(s) that exceed the 25 GB high-speed data usage threshold. We reserve the
right to adjust data throughput limitation thresholds to as low as 5GB with prior written notice.

Account Share Voice Sharing: At the end of each bill cycle, any unused voice allowances for lines sharing on the same account will be applied to the overages of
the other lines on the same account beginning with the line with the highest overage need.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 9 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight



cxlu1

Highlight





NVLPT Smartphone Calling Plans for Government Subscribers

The calling plan below reflects the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Includes Wireless Sync or BlackBerry Solution compatible with Microsoft Outlook, Lotus Notes, POP3, and IMAP email accounts. .

Monthly Access Fee $35.99 (86139)
Domestic MB Allowance Unlimited*
Domestic Voice Per Minute Rate! $0.12
Domestic Nationwide Mobile to Mobile Unlimited
Domestic Text (SMS) and Multimedia (MMS) -
Unlimited
Messages
Domestic Long Distance? Included

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling
plans, features and options. Subject to the Data Services terms and conditions; additional terms and conditions apply to Unlimited, Megabyte (MB), Smartphone and
BlackBerry Plans. Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. Per minute roaming applies to Voice calls.2Domestic long distance is included
when placing calls in the America’s Choice home airtime rate and coverage area.

* Verizon Wireless will limit the data throughput speeds should 25 GB of data usage be reached in any given billing cycle on any line. Data throughput speeds for
additional usage will be limited for the remainder of the then-current bill cycle for the line(s) that exceed the 25 GB high-speed data usage threshold. We reserve the
right to adjust data throughput limitation thresholds to as low as 5GB with prior written notice.

Flexible Business Plans For Basic & Smartphones

The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

| Basic Phones* | Smartphones!
Monthly Access Fee $35.00 (92731) | $65.00(92732) | $75.00(92736) | $85.00 (92737) | $95.00 (92738) %g%g?
Monthly Access Fee less discount $27.30 $50.70 $58.50 $66.30 $74.10 $81.90
Shared Data Allowance 100 MB 2 GB 4GB 6 GB 8 GB 10 GB
Data Overage $10.00 per GB
Mobile Hotspot? Included
Monthly Anytime Minutes Unlimited
Messaging Allowance? Unlimited Domestic and International Messaging

Optional Features
Additional monthly access fee per line $5.00 per line
Notes: Current coverage details and additional plan and feature information can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. No Domestic Roaming or Long Distance

Domestic Push to Talk Plus

Charges. 4G service requires 4G Equipment and 4G coverage. Government subscribers only.

* Basic phones may only be added to an account with at least 1 Smartphone (bill account level).

1. Access to corporate email using BlackBerry Enterprise Server (BES) is available for an additional $15.00 per line.

2. Mobile Hotspot is available on all capable devices and allows you to use your device and share data allowance with multiple Wi-Fi enabled devices.

3. Unlimited Messaging from within the United States to anywhere in the world where messaging services are available.

Data Sharing: Lines activated on these plans can only share with other lines on these plans and with lines on the Flexible Business Plans for Data Devices. At the
end of each bill cycle, any unused data allowances for lines sharing on the same account will be applied to the overages of the other lines on the same account
beginning with the line with the lowest overage need. Plan changes may not take effect until the billing cycle following the change request.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 10 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



Custom 4G Unlimited Smartphone Plan with Mobile Broadband Priority for
National Security, Public Safety, and First Responders

Government Liable Subscribers Only
This plan is not eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Only 4G LTE GSM/UMTS global-capable smartphones can be activated on this plan.

Monthly Access Fee $39.99 (16807)
Monthly Minutes in U.S Unlimited
Domestic Data Allowance® Unlimited
Domestic Messaging Allowance Unlimited
Optional Features
Domestic Mobile Hotspot $5.00 additional per month (76440)
Push-to-Talk $2.00 additional per month (81129/81174)

Notes: Current coverage details and non-domestic data rates can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. No domestic roaming or long distance
charges. Coverage includes the Verizon Wireless 4G network; and the 3G and 3G Extended networks, while available. V'Data usage on this rate
plan is not subject to speed reductions (“throttling”) within a given billing cycle. However, in the event data usage exceeds 25GB each hilling cycle for
three (3) consecutive billing cycles, data throughput speeds will automatically be reduced for data usage exceeding 25GB per billing cycle on a go-
forward basis. Data usage for actively engaged and deployed fire, police, emergency medical technicians, emergency management agency, and
assigned federal law enforcement users on this plan will not be subject to speed reductions regardless of data usage during any billing cycle. To
ensure users are able to maximize their high-speed data use for business applications, video applications will stream at 480p. This service plan
includes Mobile Broadband Priority. Mobile Broadband Priority ensures customers can connect to the network with priority by leveraging a pool of
radio resources dedicated to enable their connection. Mobile Broadband Priority identifies the user with an Access Priority setting, giving them higher
priority for network access than lower Access Class users. This service plan is available to National Security, Public Safety, and First Responders
customers only as defined by the following NAICS (formerly SIC) Codes:

621910 Ambulance Services 922190 Other Justice, Public Order, and Safety Activities

922110 Courts 928110 National Security

922120 Police Protection 926120 Regulation and Administration of Transportation Programs

922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution 926150 Regulation, Licensing, and Inspection of Misc. Commercial Sectors
922140 Correctional Institutions 926130 Regulation and Administration of Comms, Electric, Gas, and Other Utilities
922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices 921190 Other General Government Support

922160 Fire Protection (except private) 921110 Executive Offices

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 11 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

bradyel

Highlight



bradyel

Highlight





WIRELESS DATA SERVICES

Data Only Plans: Government Subscribers

(Up to 10 Data Only Devices)

Select Device Type

Jetpackst
(SFO 77555)

USBs
(SFO 77555)

Netbooks/
Notebooks, LTE

Internet
(SFO 77555, 78045)

4G LTE Routers

with data only
(SFO 77555)

Verizon 4G LTE

Broadband
Routers with

data only
(SFO 79392)

Tablets (including
Google Chromebook
and Amazon Kindle
Fire)
(SFO 77567)

Connected
Devices
(SFO 78303)

Monthly Line Access Fee

$20.00
per device

$20.00
per device

$20.00
per device

$20.00
per device

$20.00
per device

$10.00
per device

$5.00
per device

Select Data Amount
The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Monthly Account Access W ERTLIT) Ngmber aDenEss Shared Data Allowance Domestic Data Overage
(per billing account)
$20.002 (90525)
Tablet & Connected Devices only 2GB
$30.002 (86504) 4GB
$40.00  $31.20 (86505) 6 GB
$50:00  $39.00 (86506) 8GB
$60.00  $46.80 (86507) 10 GB
$70.00 $54.60 (86508) 12 GB
$80.00 $62.40 (86509) 14 GB
$90.00 $70.20 (86510) Upto 10 16 GB $15.00 per 1 GB
$100.00 $78.00 (86511) 18 GB
$110.00 $85.80 (86512) 20 GB
$185.00 $144.30 (86513) 30GB
$260-00 $202.80 (87271) 40 GB
$335.00 $261.30 (87272) 50 GB
$410:00 $319.80 (90910) 60 GB
$560.00 $436.80 (90911) 80 GB
$710.00 $553.80 (90912) 100 GB
Domestic Messaging (Text and $10.00 for 1000 message package
Multimedia) Pay as you go or message package overage: $0.20 (SMS) Text, $0.25 (MMS) sent/received
Cloud Storage 5 GB per line (must be selected)

Notes: Data-only devices on these plans share in the data allowance but do not share the minutes or message allowance unless the device is capable. Verizon Plans
data-only plans are not available for accounts with Smartphones, basic phones or connected devices with voice. ILTE Internet (installed) devices require a data
package of 10 GB or higher. 2No additional discounts apply. Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. Access fee discounts applied at the
account level only. Sharing: Customers subscribing to Verizon Plans - Data Only - will be billed on separate billing accounts and invoices. Sharing is available only
among Government Subscribers to these Data Only Plans - Data Only on the same account.

Promotions may be available for Monthly Line and Account Access Fees. Please contact your Government Account Manager.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 12 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/



Business Data Only Plans: Government Subscribers

(Up to 25/50/100 Data Only Devices)

Select Device Type
Netbooks/ 4G LTE . -
Jetpacks USBs Notebooks, LTE Broadband Verizon 4G LTE | Tablets (including Connected
(SFO 77555) (SFO 77555) Internet Router ?;‘F)gggfgg? St (SDF%V;E,?;)
(SFO 77555, 78045) (SFO 77555)
Monthly Line Access Fee
$20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $20.00 $10.00 $5.00
per device per device per device per device per device per device per device

Select Data Amount
The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Monthly Account Access W ERTLIT) Ngmber e DenEss Shared Data Allowance Domestic Data Overage
(per billing account)
$185.00 $144.30 (87184) 30GB
$260.00 $202.80 (87185) Upto 25 40 GB
$335.00 $261.30 (87186) 50 GB
$410.00 $319.80 (90430) 60 GB
$15.00 per 1 GB
$560.00 $436.80 (90431) Up to 50 80 GB
$710.00 $553.80 (90429) 100 GB
$1.025.00 $799.50 (91521) 150 GB
Up to 100
$1.400.00 $1,092.00 (91520) 200 GB
Domestic Text Messagin 10.00 for 1000 text and multi media
ging Overage: $0.20 (SMS) Text, $0.25 (MMS) sent/received
Optional Cloud Storage 25 GB per line (must be selected)

Notes: Data-only devices on these plans use the data allowance but do not use the minutes or message allowance unless the device is capable. The Small Business
for data-only devices is not available for accounts with Smartphones, basic phones or connected devices with voice. Current coverage details can be found at
www.verizonwireless.com. Access Fee discounts applied at the account level only.

Sharing: Sharing is available only among Government Subscribers to these Business Data Only Plans - Data Only. Calling plan changes may not take effect until the
hilling cycle following the change request. Text, Picture and Video messages are not eligible for sharing. Data allowances from Business Data Only plans will not
share with any non- Business Data Only Plans. Safety Mode, Carryover Data and Data Boost features cannot be added to data-only plans.

Promotions may be available for Monthly Line and Account Access Fees. Please contact your Government Account Manager.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 13 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/



Flexible Business Plans For Data Devices

The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Connected Connected Devices, Connected Devices, Tablets, Netbooks, Notebooks, Jetpacks,
. Tablets, Netbooks, ; .
Devices USBs, Mobile Broadband Devices
Notebooks
$5.00 $10.00 $35.00 $45.00 $55.00 $65.00 $75.00
Monihly Access Fee (92739) (92741) (02742) (92744) (92745) (92746) (92747)
Monthly Access Fee less discount $5.00 $10.00 $27.30 $35.10 $42.90 $50.70 $58.50
Shared Data Allowance 1 MB 100 MB 2GB 4GB 6 GB 8 GB 10 GB
Data Overage Rate $10.00 per GB

Notes: Current coverage details and additional plan and feature information can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. 4G service requires 4G Equipment and 4G
coverage. Government subscribers only.

Data Sharing: These plans only share with other lines on these plans and with lines on the Flexible Business Plans for Basic & Smartphones. At the end of each bill
cycle, any unused data allowances for lines sharing on the same account will be applied to the overages of the other lines on the same account beginning with the
line with the lowest overage need. Plan changes may not take effect until the billing cycle following the change request.

Flexible Business Plans For Data Devices - Connected Device / Internet with Voice

The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Connected Device* Broadband Router
$5.00 $65.00 $75.00 $85.00 $95.00 $105.00
Monthly Access Fee (94532) (94495) (94496) (94497) (94500) (94504)
Monthly Access Fee less discount $5.00 $50.70 $58.50 $66.30 $74.10 $81.90
Shared Data Allowance 1 MB 2 GB 4 GB 6 GB 8 GB 10 GB
Domestic Data Overage Rate $10.00 per GB

Notes: Current coverage details and additional plan and feature information can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. 4G service requires 4G Equipment and 4G
coverage. Government subscribers only.

Data Sharing: These plans only share with other lines on these plans and with lines on the Flexible Business Plans for Basic & Smartphones. At the end of each bill
cycle, any unused data allowances for lines sharing on the same account will be applied to the overages of the other lines on the same account beginning with the
line with the lowest overage need. Plan changes may not take effect until the billing cycle following the change request.

Custom Flat Rate Mobile Broadband - Government

Government Subscribers Only
This plan is not eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Monthly Access Fee $34.99 (99716)

Domestic Data Allowance* Unlimited

Overage Rate per KB NA

NOTE: Subject to the Mobile Broadband terms and conditions; additional terms and conditions apply to Unlimited, Megabyte (MB), and Smartphone
data Plans. Throughput speeds on the Custom Flat Rate Mobile Broadband will be limited up to 600kbps throughout the duration of each billing cycle
while on the Verizon Wireless 4G network only. Data speeds are not guaranteed while on Extended or roaming partner networks. Devices utilized in
conjunction with the Custom Flat Rate Mobile Broadband plan are limited to mobile (non-stationary) applications. Dedicated internet connections on
stationary router devices and streaming video on stationary video surveillance cameras are expressly prohibited on this rate plan.

Custom Mobile Broadband Plan Il - Government

Government Subscribers Only
This plan is not eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Monthly Access Fee $44.99 (99717)

Domestic Data Allowance Unlimited

Overage Rate Per KB NA

NOTE: Subject to the Mobile Broadband terms and conditions; additional terms and conditions apply to Unlimited, Megabyte (MB), and Smartphone
data Plans. Verizon Wireless will limit throughput of data speeds should 30GB of data be used within a given bill cycle. Devices utilized in conjunction
with the Custom Mobile Broadband Plan Il are limited to mobile (non-stationary) applications. Data speeds are not guaranteed while on Extended or
roaming partner networks. Dedicated internet connections on stationary router devices and streaming video on stationary video surveillance cameras
are expressly prohibited on this rate plan.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 14 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



Custom 4G Unlimited Mobile Broadband Plan with Mobile Broadband Priority for
National Security, Public Safety, and First Responders

Government Liable Subscribers Only
This plan is not eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Only 4G LTE GSM/UMTS global-capable devices can be activated on this plan.

Monthly Access Fee $39.99 (20300)

Domestic Data Allowance(® Unlimited

Notes: Current coverage details and non-domestic data rates can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. No domestic roaming or long distance
charges. Coverage includes the Verizon Wireless 4G network; and the 3G and 3G Extended networks, while available. Data usage on this plan is
restricted to Verizon Wireless network use only; roaming is not available. ) Data usage on this rate plan is not subject to speed reductions (“throttling”)
within a given hilling cycle. However, in the event data usage exceeds 25GB each hilling cycle for three (3) consecutive billing cycles, data throughput
speeds will automatically be reduced for data usage exceeding 25GB per billing cycle on a go-forward basis. Data usage for actively engaged and
deployed fire, police, emergency medical technicians, emergency management agency, and assigned federal law enforcement users on this plan will
not be subject to speed reductions regardless of data usage during any billing cycle. To ensure users are able to maximize their high-speed data use
for business applications, video applications will stream at 720p. This service plan includes Mobile Broadband Priority. Mobile Broadband Priority
ensures customers can connect to the network with priority by leveraging a pool of radio resources dedicated to enable their connection. Mobile
Broadband Priority identifies the user with an Access Priority setting, giving them higher priority for network access than lower Access Class users.
Devices utilized in conjunction with this plan are limited to mobile device applications. Dedicated internet connections (including but not limited to,
stationary wireless networking router devices), streaming video on non-smartphone devices (including but not limited to, body cameras and stationary
video surveillance cameras), and 10T devices are expressly prohibited on this rate plan. This plan is only available to National Security, Public Safety,
and First Responder customers only as defined by the following NAICS (formerly SIC) Codes:

621910 Ambulance Services 922190 Other Justice, Public Order, and Safety Activities

922110 Courts 928110 National Security

922120 Police Protection 926120 Regulation and Administration of Transportation Programs

922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution 926150 Regulation, Licensing, and Inspection of Misc. Commercial Sectors
922140 Correctional Institutions 926130 Regulation and Administration of Comms, Electric, Gas, and Other Utilities
922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices 921190 Other General Government Support

922160 Fire Protection (except private) 921110 Executive Offices

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 15 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/



Data Packages for Feature Phones and Smartphones

The Data Packages are eligible for monthly access fee discounts and promotions, when available!

Monthly Access Per Line when
added to an eligible voice plan

Data Allowance

Rate After Allowance

Optional Business Email Feature
Compatible with server based email

solutions
N/A -0- $1.99 per MB N/A
$10.00 75 MB $10.00 per each additional 75 MB of N/A
(77810) usage
.$12'.OO i 300 MB $15.00 per each additional GB of N/A
(Basic Devices Only) usage
$30.00 $23.4023 $10.00 per each additional GB of
(Smartphone 76375) (Basic 76381) 2 GB? usage $15.00

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling
plans, features and options. 1The $12.00/300MB data package for Basic Devices can be added to a voice only price plan with a monthly access fee of $15.99 or
higher, this feature cannot be activated on a Smartphone Device. 2The $30.00/2GB data package is eligible for a monthly access fee discounts when combined with
select Business calling plans Smartphone Subscribers require a data package with a minimum allowance of 2GB. Personal Email Feature is included with all data
packages contained herein.

Mobile Broadband Data Plans
The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Mobile Broadband Pricing for Tablets, Netbooks, 4G LTE Modems, 3G & 4G LTE Dedicated Mobile Hotspots ‘

Monthly Access Fee

$30.001 (85320/85322)

$39.99 (84357/ 98715)

Domestic Monthly Data Allowance 2GB Unlimited*
Per GB Rate After Allowance $10.00 per each additional GB of usage N/A
Domestic Per Minute Rate? $0.25 per minute

Domestic Long Distance Included

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling
plans, features and options. 4G and 3G Mobile Broadband coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. 4G service requires 4G equipment and 4G
coverage. 2Per Minute Rate applies to voice calls and other non-NationalAccess data usage in the United States.

* Verizon Wireless will limit the data throughput speeds should 25 GB of data usage be reached in any given billing cycle on any line. Data throughput speeds for
additional usage will be limited for the remainder of the then-current bill cycle for the line(s) that exceed the 25 GB high-speed data usage threshold. We reserve the
right to adjust data throughput limitation thresholds to as low as 5GB with prior written notice.

Public Sector Mobile Broadband Share Plans: Government Subscribers Only |

The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Public Sector Mobile Broadband

5 Gigabytes

10 Gigabytes

20 Gigabytes

Monthly Access Fee $39.99 (90239) $59.99 (90240) $99.99 (90241)
Shared Domestic Data Allowance 5GB 10GB 20GB
Overage Per Gigabyte $8.00 Per Gigabyte

Note: This plan is available for domestic data only devices, on the Verizon Wireless network only. Data Sharing: At the end of each bill cycle, any unused data
allowances for lines sharing on the same account will be applied to the overages of the other lines on the same account beginning with the line with the lowest overage
need. Plan changes may not take effect until the billing cycle following the change request. Current NationalAccess and Mobile Broadband coverage details can be
found at www.verizonwireless.com. New activations on these service plans require 4G LTE devices. Existing customers transitioning to one of these service plans
are able to utilize existing 3G devices. The 5GB, 10GB, and 20GB Public Sector Mobile Broadband Plans are able to share with each other.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 16 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



Monthly Access Fee $0.00

Verizon Wireless Private Network Core Service for National Security, Public Safety, and Emergency Preparedness (“Private Core”): Private
Core extends Customer’s IP network to its wireless equipment by segregating the data between such devices and Customer’s servers from the public
Internet (the “Internet”). Customer's use of Private Core is subject to the Private Core Roles and Responsibilities Customer Guidelines, which are
available from your sales representative. This service is available to National Security, Public Safety, and Emergency Preparedness customers only

as defined by the following NAICS (formerly SIC) Codes:

National Security/ First Responders / Public Safety
* 621910 Ambulance Service

+ 922110 Courts

+ 922120 Police Protection

+ 922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution

+ 922140 Correctional Institutions

+ 922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices

+ 922160 Fire Protection (except private)

+ 922190 Other Justice, Public Order and Safety Activities
+ 928110 National Security

+ 921190 Other General Government Support

+ 921110 Executive Offices

Water

* 924110 Water Infrastructure

+ 221320 Sewage Treatment Facilities

¢ 221310 Water Supply and Irrigation Systems
Transportation

+ 482111 Railway Transportation

+ 481111 Passenger Air Transportation

+ 481112 Freight Air Transportation

+ 483111 Shipping Transportation

+ 926120 Transportation Administration

+ 491110 Postal Service

+ 926120 Public Transportation

+ 926120 Regulation and Administration of Transportation Programs
Information Technology

* 541512 Computer Integration

+ 541519 Computer Disaster Recovery

Chemical

+ 561612 Protective Services

+ 541330, 541690 Chemical Engineering and Consulting

* 239210 Pharmaceutical

Communications

+ 517110 Telecommunications, Wired

+ 517212 Cellular and other Wireless Telecommunications
+ 238210, 334290 and 561620 Alarm Systems

Critical Manufacturing

+ 237310 Highway, Street and Bridge Construction

¢ 811310 Industry Equipment Repair

+ 236210 Industrial Building Construction

+ 211113 Extraction; 236220 Construction Management

+ 926150 Regulation, Licensing and Inspection of Miscellaneous
Commercial Sectors

Energy

+ 333611 Wind Turbine

+ 221111 Hydroelectric Power Generation

+ 221122 Electric Power Distribution

+ 221118 Other Electric Power Generation

+ 221210 Natural Gas Distribution

+ 926130 Regulation and Administration of Communications, Electric,
Gas and Other Utilities

+ 221113 Nuclear Electric Power Generation

+ 562211 Hazardous Waste Treatment and Disposal
Healthcare and Public Health

* 621112 Health Care Practitioners

+ 923120 Public Health Programs

Monthly Access Fee $0.00 (86124)

Mobile Broadband Priority ensures customers can connect to the network with priority by leveraging a pool of radio resources dedicated to enable
their connection. Mobile Broadband Priority identifies the user with an Access Priority setting, giving them higher priority for network access than lower
Access Class users. This feature is available to National Security, Public Safety, and Emergency Preparedness customers only as defined by the
following NAICS (formerly SIC) Codes:

621910 Ambulance Services

922110 Courts

922120 Police Protection

922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution
922140 Correctional Institutions

922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices
922160 Fire Protection

922190 Other Justice, Public Order, and Safety Activities

928110 National Security

926120 Regulation and Administration of Transportation Programs

926150 Regulation, Licensing, and Inspection of Misc. Commercial Sectors
926130 Regulation and Administration of Comms, Electric, Gas, and Other Utilities
921190 Other General Government Support

921110 Executive Offices

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 17 of 48






MACHINE TO MACHINE (M2M)

Mobile Broadband Machine to Machine (M2M) Share Group 1 Plans - Low Usage
The data plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Mobile Broadband Machine-to-Machine Plans 1 Megabyte | 5 Megabytes 25 ‘ 50 150 Megabytes
Megabytes Megabytes
Domestic Profile Shared Data Allowance 1 MB (87660) | 5 MB (87661) | 25 MB (87662) | 50 MB (87663) 150MB (87664)
Monthly Access Fee $5.00 $7.00 $10.00 $15.00 $18.00
Domestic Account Shared Data Allowance 1 MB (87640) | 5 MB (87641) | 25 MB (87642) | 50 MB (87643) 150MB (87644)
Monthly Access Fee $5.00 $7.00 $10.00 $15.00 $18.00
Overage Rate Per Megabyte $1.00

Mobile Broadband Machine to Machine (M2M) Share Group 2 Plans - High Usage

The data plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Mobile Broadband Machine-to-Machine Plans | 250 Megabytes 1Gigabyte | 5Gigabytes | 10 Gigahytes

Domestic Profile Shared Data Allowance 250 MB (87665) 1 GB (87668) 5 GB (87671) 10 GB (87673)
Monthly Access Fee $20.00 $25.00 $50.00 $80.00
Monthly Access Fee less discount $20.00 $25.00 $39.00 $62.40
Domestic Account Shared Data Allowance 250 MB (87645) 1 GB (87646) 5 GB (87647) 10 GB (87648)
Monthly Access Fee $20.00 $25.00 $50.00 $80.00
Monthly Access Fee less discount $20.00 $25.00 $39.00 $62.40
Overage Rate Per Megabyte $0.015

Note: Machine to Machine coverage included the Verizon Wireless 4G, 3G and 3G Extended networks. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important
information about calling plans, features and options. Government Subscribers may supply their own authenticated Equipment (CPE) approved by Verizon Wireless
to be activated on these plans. Netbook, Smartphone, and Tablet devices are not eligible for Mohile Broadband M2M pricing. 4G service requires 4G Telemetry
equipment and 4G coverage. All terms and conditions of the Agreement apply to M2M service and M2M Lines as a Wireless Service. Sharing. Customer may select
either the Account Share or Multi-Account Share option on the Mobile broadband Machine-to-Machine (M2M) Share Plans. Please note that the low usage cannot
share with the high usage plans on profile share.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 18 of 48






Public Sector Mobile Broadband Machine to Machine (M2M) Share Plans:
Government Subscribers Only

The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Public Sector Mobile Broadband 5 Gigabytes 10 Gigabytes 20 Gigabytes |

Monthly Access Fee $39.99 (90233) $59.99 (90234) $99.99 (90235)
Shared Domestic Data Allowance 5GB 10GB 20GB
Overage Per Gigabyte $8.00 Per Gigabyte

Note: This plan is available for domestic data only devices, on the Verizon Wireless network only. Data Sharing: At the end of each bill cycle, any unused data
allowances for lines sharing on the same account will be applied to the overages of the other lines on the same account beginning with the line with the lowest overage
need. Plan changes may not take effect until the billing cycle following the change request. Current NationalAccess and Mobile Broadband coverage details can be
found at www.verizonwireless.com. New activations on these service plans require 4G LTE devices. Netbook, Smartphone, and Tablet devices are not eligible for
Mobile Broadband M2M pricing. Existing customers transitioning to one of these service plans are able to utilize existing 3G devices. Sharing. The 5GB, 10GB, and
20GB Public Sector Mobile Broadband Machine to Machine Plans are able to share with each other.

3G/4G Mobile Broadband Machine-to-Machine (M2M) Wireless Backup Router Plan:
Government Subscribers Only

The data plan below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

3G/4G M2M Wireless Backup Router Plan

Monthly Access Fee (non-pooled) $10.00 (868473G/8684846G)

Domestic Data Allowance Per Month 25 MB

Share Option N/A

Domestic Overage Rate Per GB $10.00 per GB

Domestic Voice Rate Per Minute $0.25 per minute (Device Dependent)

Text Messaging Per Message $0.20 per message sent or received (Device Dependent)
International Roaming N/A. Verizon Wireless network only.

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See the attached M2M Data Plan and Feature Details as well as Calling Plan and Feature
Details in your Agreement for important information about calling plans, features and options. During an outage of the primary connection, all usage within the billing
cycle in excess of the 25 MB allowance will be charged at the overage rate of $10.00 per GB. Text messaging feature packages may be added to this plan. The
Wireless Router Plan is approved for use as a backup solution for business continuity only and is not to be used for primary connectivity. Verizon Wireless reserves
the right to move Customer to the standard commercial 5 GB M2M price plan should usage on the lines provisioned on the M2M Wireless Backup Router Plan exceed
1 GB for three (3) consecutive months. M2M Wireless Backup Router Plan may be used with Private Network. M2M router devices must be approved for use on
Verizon Wireless' network; no other device types may be activated on this plan. Not eligible for Verizon Wireless Government Equipment Matrix pricing.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 19 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



INTERNATIONAL WIRELESS SERVICES

NVLPT Nationwide International Email for Government Calling Plans

The calling plans below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

NVLPT Nationwide for Government 400 Voice Minutes 600 Voice Minutes 1000 Voice Minutes

Monthly Access Fee (non-share) $84.14 (745241 86740) $99.99 (74526/86742) $114.62 (74528/ 86744)
Monthly Access Fee (non-share) less discount $65.63 $77.99 $89.40
Monthly Access Fee (share) $86.57 (74525/86741) $102.43 (745271 86743) $117.06 (74529/ 86745)
Monthly Access Fee (share) less discount $67.52 $79.90 $91.31
Monthly Anytime Voice Minutes 400 600 1000

Friends & Family (up to 10 numbers per account) Included

Voice Overage Rate $0.25 per minute

Domestic Mobile to Mobile Unlimited

Domestic Night & Weekend Minutes Unlimited

Domestic Long Distance Included

Domestic Email Allowance Unlimited?!

International Email Allowance Unlimited

Domestic Messaging Unlimited

Optional Features
$2.00 (Smartphone- 76785/81129/81174)

Domestic Push To Talk Plus

Notes: Requires a 4G Global capable smartphone. Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature

Details for important information about calling plans, features and options.
The domestic data allowance applies in the United States.

TThe international travel data allowance applies in Canada, Mexico, and the rest of the world where coverage is available. To see supported countries and rates for
services such as voice and messaging, go to verizonwireless.com/international. Verizon Wireless will terminate a line of service if more than half of the usage over
three consecutive hilling cycles is outside of the United States.

1Domestic Data Allowance: Verizon Wireless will limit the data throughput speeds should 25 GB of data usage be reached in any given hilling cycle on any line. Data
throughput speeds for additional usage will be limited for the remainder of the then-current hill cycle for the ling(s) that exceed the 25 GB high-speed data usage
threshold. We reserve the right to adjust data throughput limitation thresholds to as low as 5GB with prior written notice.

Account Share - Voice Sharing (Domestic Only): At the end of each bill cycle, any unused voice allowances for lines sharing on the same account will be applied
to the overages of the other lines on the same account beginning with the line with the highest overage need.

Profile Share - Voice Sharing (Domestic Only): At the end of each bill cycle, any unused voice allowances for lines sharing across multiple accounts will be applied
proportionally to all lines with overages.

Zone 1 Countries are as follows: Aland Islands, Albania, American Samoa, Andorra, Anguilla, Antigua, Antarctica, Argentina, Aruba, Australia, Austria, Bahamas,
Barbados, Belarus, Belgium, Belize, Bermuda, Bolivia, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Brazil, British Virgin Islands, Brunei, Bulgaria, Cambodia, Cayman Islands, Chile,
China, Christmas Island, Colombia, Cook Islands, Costa Rica, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech Republic, Denmark, Dominica, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, El Salvador,
England, Estonia, Falkland Islands, Faroe Islands, Fiji Islands, Finland, France, French Guiana, French Polynesia, Germany, Gibraltar, Greece, Greenland, Grenada,
Guadeloupe, Guam, Guatemala, Guernsey, Guyana, Haiti, Honduras, Hong Kong, Hungary, Iceland, India, Ireland, Isle of Man, Italy, Jamaica, Jersey, Latvia,
Liechtenstein, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Macau, Macedonia, Malaysia, Malta, Martinique, Moldova, Monaco, Montenegro, Nauru, Netherlands, Netherlands Antilles,
New Caledonia, New Zealand, Nicaragua, Norfolk Island, Northern Ireland, Northern Mariana Island, Norway, Palau, Panama, Papua New Guinea, Paraguay, Peru,
Poland, Portugal, Reunion, Romania, Russia, Samoa, San Marino, Scotland, Serbia, Singapore, Slovakia, Slovenia, Solomon Islands, Spain, South Korea, St.
Barthelemy, St. Kitts and Nevis, St. Lucia, St. Martin, St. Vincent & Grenadines, Suriname, Svalbard, Sweden, Switzerland, Taiwan, Thailand, Tonga, Turkey, Turks
and Caicos Islands, Ukraine, Uruguay, Vanuatu, Vatican City, Venezuela, Vietnam and Wales.

Zone 2 Countries are as follows: Afghanistan, Algeria, Angola, Armenia, Azerbaijan, Bahrain, Bangladesh, Benin, Bhutan, Botswana, Burkina Faso, Burundi,
Cameroon, Cape Verde Islands, Central African Republic, Chad, Comoros, Congo, Cuba, Djibouti, East Timor, Egypt, Equatorial Guinea, Ethiopia, Gabon, Gambia,
Georgia, Ghana, Guinea, Guinea Bissau, Indonesia, Iraq, Israel, Ivory Coast, Japan, Jordan, Kazakhstan, Kenya, Kuwait, Kyrgyzstan, Laos, Lebanon, Lesotho,
Liberia, Libya, Madagascar, Malawi, Maldives, Mali, Mauritania, Mauritius, Mayotte Island, Micronesia, Mongolia, Montserrat, Morocco, Mozambique, Myanmar,
Namibia, Nepal, Niger, Nigeria, Oman, Pakistan, Philippines, Qatar, Rwandese Republic, Sao Tome and Principe, Saudi Arabia, Senegal, Seychelles, Sierra Leone,
South Africa, Sri Lanka, South Sudan, Sudan, Swaziland, Syria, Tajikistan, Tanzania, Togo, Trinidad and Tobago, Tunisia, Turkmenistan, Uganda, United Arab
Emirates, Uzbekistan, Western Sahara, Yemen, Zambia and Zimbabwe. Other available countries will be billed at the Zone 2 rates. The list of countries is subject to
change.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 20 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/



International Options Monthly Features: Mexico and Canada |

The calling features below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

Internan.onal th|ons Monthly 0 Voice Minutes 0 Voice Minutes 100 Voice Minutes = 250 Voice Minutes 50(.) Volce ‘
Feature: Mexico and Canada Minutes
Monthly Access Fee (1 Month)* $10.00 (SPO 428)* | $20.00 (SPO 426)* | $15.00 (SPO 441)* | $30.00 (SPO 425)* $25ffg§*SPO
Monthly Access Fee less discount $10.00 $20.00 $15.00 $23.40 $25.00
International Options Monthly 500 Voice
Recurring Feature: Mexico and 0 Voice Minutes 0 Voice Minutes 100 Voice Minutes | 250 Voice Minutes Minutes
Canada
1 *% *% *k *k *% $25'00 (SPO
Monthly Access Fee (Recurring) $10.00 (SPO 427) $20.00 (SPO 446) $15.00 (SPO 434) $30.00 (SPO 424) 442y
Monthly Access Fee less discount $10.00 $20.00 $15.00 $23.40 $25.00
Voice Overage Rate Pay Go $0.10/minute $0.05/minute
Data Allowance! 100 MB | 250 MB 100 MB | 250 MB 1GB
Data Overage Rate After Allowance? $10.00/100 MB $20.00/1 GB
. - 500 sent;
Messaging Allowance? Pay Go 100 sent; unlimited | 250 sent; unlimited unlimited
incoming incoming . X
incoming
Messaging Overage Rate After Pay Go $0.10/Sent Message $0.05/Sent
Allowance? Message
Notes: Current coverage details and additional information can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. 1The data allowance applies in Canada and Mexico only, where
coverage is available. All data usage, including dedicated Mobile Hotspot, deducts from the same data allowance. Requires an eligible domestic data plan or feature
and an International GSM capable device. 2The overage rate is not eligible for discounts. SMultimedia messages (MMS) are included in the allowance, but incur data
transport charges (deducts from the International data allowance). Pay Go rates for International Voice, International Messaging, and Data Roaming can be found at
www.verizonwireless.com/International.
“This is a monthly feature and will be removed from the account one month after being added to an account.
“This is a recurring feature and will remain on the account until removed.

International Options Monthly Features: 140+ Countries |

The calling features below reflect the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.

International Options Monthly
Feature: 140+ Countries
Monthly Access Fee (1 Month)*

0 Voice Minutes 0 Voice Minutes 100 Voice Minutes 250 Voice Minutes
$25.00 (SPO 431)* $50.00 (SPO 433)* $40.00 (SPO 445)* $85.00 (SPO 423)*

Monthly Access Fee less discount $19.50 $39.00 $31.20 $66.30
International Options Monthly

. . . 0 Voice Minutes 0 Voice Minutes 100 Voice Minutes 250 Voice Minutes
Recurring Feature: 140+ Countries
Monthly Access Fee (Recurring) $25.00 (SPO 412)** $50.00 (SPO 432)* $40.00 (SPO 444)* $85.00 (SPO 422)*
Monthly Access Fee less discount $19.50 $39.00 $31.20 $66.30
Voice Overage Rate Pay Go $0.25/minute
Data Allowance! 100 MB | 250 MB 100 MB | 250 MB
Data Overage Rate After Allowance? $25.00/100 MB

. 100 sent; unlimited 250 sent; unlimited
Messaging Allowance? Pay Go . ) . )

incoming incoming

Messaging Overage Rate After
Allowance?

Notes: Current coverage details and additional information can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. 1The data allowance applies in 140+ countries where coverage
is available. All data usage, including dedicated Mobile Hotspot, deducts from the same data allowance. Requires an eligible domestic data plan or feature and an
International GSM capable device. 2The overage rate is not eligible for discounts. 3Multimedia messages (MMS) are included in the allowance, but incur data transport
charges (deducts from the International data allowance). Pay Go rates for International Voice, International Messaging, and Data Roaming can be found at
www.verizonwireless.com/International.

1This is a monthly feature and will be removed from the account one month after being added to an account.

2This is a recurring feature and will remain on the account until removed.

Pay Go $0.25/Sent Message

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 21 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



Global Messaging? |

Global Text Messaging |
$0.20 per recipient per message sent and $0.20 per message received, or according to your
Domestic Messaging Plan

Other Countries $0.50 per recipient per message sent and $0.05 per message received

Global Picture and Video Messaging |

Canada, Mexico and Puerto Rico $0.25 per recipient per message sent or received, or gccording to your Domestic Messaging
Plan, plus global data roaming charges.
$0.50 per recipient to send, $0.25 per message to receive plus global data roaming charges.
Visit verizonwireless.com/internationalmms for supported countries.
Notes: Current coverage details, and list of Other Available Countries can be found at www.verizonwireless.com/International. See attached Calling Plan and Feature
Details for important information about calling plans, features and options. Applies to all global-capable devices. Must be added to a domestic 3G Mobile Broadband
calling plan with domestic 3G Mobile Broadband Connect/Mobile Hotspot.

Canada

Other Countries

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 22 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/global



ADDITIONAL WIRELESS OPTIONS

One Talk Solution: Government Subscribers Only

The plans/features below reflect any applicable discount. No additional discounts apply.

One Talk is a business telephone system that combines landline and mobile phone capabilities into a fully integrated mobile and office solution
providing a single telephone number (“Mobile Data Number/MDN”) with the same mobile and landline features.

One Talk Solution: Desk Phone/Mobile Client
Line Level Plans

Account Level Plans

Price Pan Type B e e Vo P o B
One Talk Primary MDN Monthly Access Monthly Access

One Talk Price Plan (100 MB Data) $10.00 $0.00 (the new Verizon Plans)
One Talk Feature $15.00 $15.00

One Talk Line Access Charge N/A $10.00

One Talk Solution: Auto Receptionist (AR)
Auto Receptionist
Line Level Plans

Account Level Plans

Price PlanType Business Plans, Naionuide, America's Choiet) (e, Verizon Plans, ore Everyhing)
One Talk Primary MDN Monthly Access Monthly Access
One Talk AR Price Plan (100 MB Data) $10.00 $0.00
One Talk AR Feature $10.00 $10.00
One Talk AR Line Access Charge N/A $10.00
One Talk Solution: Hunt Group (HG) |
Hunt Group

Every ECPD profile will be allowed to activate two Hunt Groups by default; additional Hunt Groups can be purchased as long as the ratio of active
One Talk lines to Hunt Groups is 3:1 respectively

Line Level Plans
Price Plan Type (e.- Flexible Business Plans, Custom Flexible g C;gg:glgéem: ePEI\z/ier:ySthi ng)
Business Plans, Nationwide, America’s Choice®) 7 '

One Talk Primary MDN Monthly Access Monthly Access

One Talk HG Price Plan (100 MB Data) $0.00 $0.00

One Talk HG Feature $0.00 $0.00

One Talk HG Line Access Charge N/A $0.00

Optional Features |

One Talk Premium Visual Voicemail $2.99

One Talk Voicemail Talk To Text $2.99

Additional Devices
For MDN's activated on a Smartphone, Desk Phone, Mobile Client, a maximum of up to eight (8) devices can be shared with the MDN as follows: 1
Smartphone, up to 2 desk phones and up to 5 mobile clients.

. Mobile Client? -
1
Smartphone Device Desk Phone (Includes Smartphones and Tablets) Auto Receptionist/ Hunt Group
Additional devices (endpoint) incur | $0.00 for additional devices $0.00 for additional devices N/A
a $10.00 monthly access (excluding Smartphone devices with (excluding Smartphone devices with
One Talk Basic Dialer) One Talk Basic Dialer)

Notes: One Talk service is applied to the Verizon Wireless MDN and is available on all of the user’s devices. One Talk is not compatible with Fax machines, credit
card POS solutions, or Security Systems. One Talk calls drop if either party leaves Verizon 4G LTE coverage. When outside of the 4G LTE coverage area and without
3G or WiFi service, the device operates as a standard device (1X calling) with standard voice and SMS messaging capabilities with no One Talk features available to
the user. Mobile client is the One Talk client. *One (1) additional Desk Phone can be added as an additional device per MDN. 2Mobile Client eligible devices (includes
devices from other carriers); Smartphones (without One Talk Basic Dialer), wireless and WiFi tablets; limit five (5) total per MDN (including primary device. Installing
the One Talk Mobile client consumes an estimated 50MB of data. For additional information regarding One Talk please visit: http://www.verizonwireless.com/onetalk

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 23 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/onetalk



Custom Wireless Home Phone for Government Plan*:

No Domestic Roaming or Long Distance Charges
This Plan is NOT eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Monthly Access Fee $20.00

Monthly Anytime Minutes Unlimited

Notes: Current coverage details and additional plan and feature information can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. Activation on this plan requires a separate
billing account. Activations on this plan are limited to no more than 9 lines per account. *May only be activated on a Verizon Wireless Home Phone Approved Device.
This is not a Home Phone service. This service is generally utilized to replace POTS lines.

4G Smartwatch with NumberShare! Unlimited Plan - Government

This plan is not eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Monthly Access Fee $10.00 (13413)
Domestic Anytime Minutes Unlimited
Domestic Data Allowance? Unlimited
Domestic and International Messaging Allowance? Unlimited

Notes: Current coverage details and additional plan information can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. This plan is for use only in the United States on the
Verizon Wireless 4G network. When NumberShare is active on a 4G Smartwatch, certain services will not work on the Smartwatch device including: Call Forwarding,
No Answer Transfer, Busy Transfer, Caller Name ID, Voicemail (access voicemail on the Smartwatch device by dialing the host smartphone number and pin)), and
RingBack Tones. Calls and messages to/from blocked contacts will not be blocked on the Smarthwatch when NumberSharing with a host smartphone. Verizon does
not guarantee that NumberShare will work at all times in every situation and the service works only with eligible devices.

1. Only lines on select smartwatches with the NumberShare service can be activated on this plan. Certain conditions must be met prior to activation. This plan can
only be used when paired with a Verizon Wireless Smartphone that has unlimited data.

2. Usage may be prioritized behind other customers in the event of network congestion.

3. Unlimited messaging from within the United States to anywhere in the world where messaging services are available.

Private Network/Dynamic Mobile Network Routing (DMNR)/Service Based Access(SBA)

Static IP - Isolated Pool w/Fixed End System (FES) [Internet Restricted]

The Account Set-Up Fees below reflect any applicable discount. No additional discounts apply.

Mobile Broadband and NationalAccess plans or features only

Configuration Cost
Per Account FES Connect Set-Up (One time fee) $1500.00
. Private Network with | Private Network with .
Private Network Only DVINR SBA Static IP Only
Per Account Level Set-Up (One time fee) V!I\{Ja:el\lgi?nftosru,\kl)écsrigrs $250.00 $250.00 Waived fosrul\tl),gCSrIiDb(Zr\S/aluePomt
DMNR or SBA (Per build) | $250.00 (Adding to existing Private Network Only)

Public Safety Subscribers Account Set-Up: Verizon Wireless will waive all account set-up fees including the $1500.00 connection fee, $500.00 Account Set-up Fee
and the DMNR/SBA for new Public Safety builds classified with the following NAICS (formerly SIC) Codes only.

e 621910 Ambulance Services e 922160 Fire Protection

e 922110 Courts . 922190 Other Justice, Public Order, and Safety Activities
e 922120 Police Protection . 928110 National Security

e 922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution . 922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices

. 922140 Correctional Institutions

Note: Set-Up fees apply to new Private Network/DMNR/SBA builds (Verizon Home Agent Portal (VHAP)). This applies to New Private Networks built as Standard,
Parent or Child. Subscribers that are placed into this pool will be limited to utilizing the Verizon Wireless Network for transport to and from their FES connections to
the Verizon Wireless Network. Static IP addresses will be available on remote access, Mobile Broadband and Unlimited NationalAccess plans or features only. Fees
may not apply in certain VPN environments. Fees are per account level (regardless of the number of IPs ordered) selecting Static IP, and may apply in addition to
$1500.00 Connect Fee in certain configurations. Does not include MPLS.

Static IP: Fees are per account level (regardless of the number of IPs ordered). Static IP addresses will be available on remote access, Mobile Broadband and
NationalAccess plans or features only. Static IP addresses may be reserved and should be assigned to the mobile numbers within 90 days. De-activated Static IP
addresses will go into an “ageing pool” for 24 hours. After 24 hours, these Static IP addresses will be returned to reserved status for the account. Reserved Static IP
addresses will be shown at the account level and can be viewed from the hilling system. Feature activations will be stored in the “data warehouse” database along
with the Static IP Address for reporting. A Static IP address is associated with the device’s MDN (Mobile Dialing Number). Each time the subscriber initiates a data
session the Static IP address that is associated with their MDN is assigned to their device for each session. Subscribers completing an ESN (Electronic Serial
Number) change will retain their Static IP address.

Eligible 3G/4G data service: Mobile Broadband, Mobile Broadband Wireless Router, Telemetry (M2M), Wireless Email, or usage-based Megabyte pricing. DMNR and
SBA are optional features that can co-exist on a Customer's Private Network profile.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 24 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



4G LTE Private Network Traffic Management (PNTM) Private IP Only (fixed WAN)

Government Subscribers Only
Metered Data Pricing only. Not compatible with Unlimited Data Plans
The plans below reflect any applicable discount. No additional discounts apply.
Customer can allocate bandwidth for applications into the Mission Critical CoS according to the PNTM
Service Option selected.

Class of service (“CoS”)

Mission Critical CoS Applications  [Recommended for video, Voice over IP, interactive services, and other mission critical applications.

Best Effort CoS Applications Suitable for best effort applications (e.g. email, web browsing)
Enhanced Premium Public Safety
PNTM Service Options: . (Highest Level)
(Entry Level) (Mid Level) " )
(Quallfylng Public Safety NAICS Only)

Monthly Access Fee (per line) Waived - $0.00 Waived - $0.00 Waived - $0.00
Mission Critical CoS Speeds Mapped Up to 0.5 Mbps Mapped Up to 2 Mbps Mapped Up to 2 Mbps

o Remaining available Remaining available Remaining available
Best Effort CoS Applications Speeds 4G LTE bandwidth 4G LTE bandwidth 4G LTE bandwidth

During heavy network

usage periods
Qualifying Public Safety NAICS: Public Safety Subscribers classified with the following NAICS codes, performing First Responder responsibilities
only. The Public Safety PNTM service option is not an on demand service. The Public Safety PNTM must be provisioned on the account prior to use
in the event of an emergency situation.

RF Priority on access network N/A N/A

621910 Ambulance Services 922190 Other Justice, Public Order, and Safety Activities

922110 Courts 928110 National Security

922120 Police Protection 926120 Regulation and Administration of Transportation Programs

922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution 926150 Regulation, Licensing, and Inspection of Misc. Commercial Sectors
922140 Correctional Institutions 926130 Regulation and Administration of Comms, Electric, Gas, and Other Utilities
922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices 921190 Other General Government Support

922160 Fire Protection 921110 Executive Offices

Notes. 4G LTE Private Network subscribers with unlimited data plans are ineligible for Private Network Traffic Management. This service is only
available while on Verizon Wireless’ 4G network and is not available while roaming. VZ Private IP (MPLS) connectivity required. PNTM relies on
customer’s applications (VolP, video, etc.) to appropriately mark IP sessions in order to prioritize their application over the 4G LTE Private Network
using Internet Protocol Differentiated Services Code Point (IP DSCP). PNTM 4G LTE device must be certified for use on the Verizon Wireless network
(e.g. Open Development/Open Access certified, validated for Private Network and Private Network Traffic Management.)

Zipit Now Messaging Solution*

The calling plan below reflects the monthly access fee discount. No additional discounts apply.
Please note a separate agreement must be negotiated and executed between the Customer and Zipit Wireless for the services* it will provide.

Monthly Access Fee $15.00 (86024)
Optional Feature Access Fee N/A
Domestic MB Allowance 35MB
Overage Rate Per MB $0.10 MB
Home Airtime/Min. Rate N/A
Domestic Long Distance? Included

NOTE: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling
plans, features and options. Data usage is rounded to next full kilobyte at end of each hilling cycle. Any unused portion of the monthly megabyte allowance is lost.
This plan is not eligible for pooling or sharing of the megabyte allowance. *Please note installation, maintenance, warranty, customer service, billing, and pricing of
Zipit equipment are provided separately, directly through Zipit Wireless.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 25 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/



Verizon Mobile Device Management (MDM): Government Subscribers Only

Verizon MDM is not eligible for the monthly access charge discount. No additional discounts apply.

Verizon MDM Feature Access Fee
Enterprise Firmware Over the Air (FOTA) Management! $0.00 (license requirement with service)
Device Diagnostics? $0.99 / per device per month

$1.49 / per device per month
Broadband Hotspot Management3 OR

$15.00 / per device per year

$1.00 / per device per month

Unified Endpoint Management OR

$10.00 / per device per year

Notes: See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling plans, features and options. MDM supports select devices and operating
systems and may require installation of a software agent. MDM features are billed separately; however, all supported options will appear and cannot be blocked. Due
to a number of features that require HTML 5, Verizon MDM requires Internet Explorer Version 10 and above to work efficiently. 1 Enterprise Firmware Over the Air
(FOTA) Management supports Android devices, including Jetpacks and USB devices. 2 Device Diagnostics supports Verizon Android devices operating on OS 4.0 and
higher excluding Apple 10S and Google Pixel/Nexus Devices. 2 Broadband Hotspot Management currently supports the MiFi 7730L, AC791L, Jetpack MiFi 6620L,
and USB730L.

Push to Talk Plus License (PTT+): Government Subscribers Only

Push to Talk License licenses are not eligible for any further discounts.

Product Monthly Access

Tablet $3.75

Inter-carrier (only any device) $3.75

3rd Party Web (HTML) API Client $3.75

Dispatch (License) Windows PC with PTT and mapping $22.50

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling
plans, features and options. Push to Talk license only. Push to Talk Plus requires PTT+ capable device.

Land Mobile Radio (LMR) for PTT+ : Government Subscribers Only

Push to Talk Plus service is required.

LMR licenses are not eligible for any further discounts.

Product Monthly Access
LMR Channel per account $0.00

Notes: Customer may have multiple channels.

LMR FEATURE Only
(When added to a Basic/Smartphone Device with PTT+)
Basic/Smartphone Devices (FEATURE) $4.50 (85280)
Notes: LMR cannot be added to any device without Domestic Push to Talk Plus. Push to Talk Plus requires PTT+ capable device.

LMR License bundled with PTT+ License

Tablet $8.25
Inter-carrier (any device) $8.25
3rd Party Web (HTML) API Client $8.25
LMR with Dispatch

(for Windows PC with PTT+ and mapping) $27.00

Notes: Current coverage details can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. See attached Calling Plan and Feature Details for important information about calling
plans, features and options. Land Mobile Radio (LMR) Interoperability works with all PTT+ capable devices. To use PTT+, Customer needs a PTT+ feature (or a
software license for tablets and dispatch) and a PTT+ compatible device. An Internet Protocol (IP) link is required to connect Verizon's PTT+ service with the customer’s
LMR network through the “IP Gateway”. By purchasing the Land Mobile Radio for PTT+ Customer consents to the tracking of Land Mobile Radio for PTT+ equipment
and must obtain authorized consent to tracking from all users and affected persons. No guarantee of accuracy of information transmitted, disclosed, displayed or
otherwise conveyed or used. Service could be interrupted or disrupted due to atmospheric conditions, inaccurate ephemeris data and other factors associated with
use of satellites and satellite data.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 26 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/



Mobilelron Enterprise Mobility Management License Fees

On-Premise (Core)
(Minimum 500+ MI Core Licenses Required for initial order/installation)

A discount has been applied. Mabilelron Licenses and Installation services are not eligible for any further discounts.

On-Premise (Core) (Software Subscription License)
Annual Subscription License Bundle
per User with Direct Support (3 Devices per User)

Annual Subscription License Bundle

per Device with Direct Support

License Type Description/SKU Mgr(;tsrlly Agg:tal Description/SKU Mggtsrlly Annual Cost
Mobilelron Core (on-premise) EMM Mobilelron Core (on-premise) EMM
Silver Silver Bundle per Device $3.00 $36.00 Silver Bundle per User $4.50 $54.00
SKU: MICore Silver Per Device SKU: MICore Silver Per User
Mobilelron Core (on-premise) EMM Mobilelron Core (on-premise) EMM
Gold Gold Bundle per Device $4.50 $54.00 Gold Bundle per User $6.75 $81.00
SKU: MICore Gold Per Device SKU: MICore Gold Per User
Mobilelron Core (on-premise) EMM Mobilelron Core (on-premise) EMM
Platinum Platinum Bundle per Device $5.63 $67.50 Platinum Bundle per User $8.63 $103.50
SKU: MICore Platinum Per Device SKU: MICore Platinum Per User

On-Premise (Core) (Software Perpetual License)

Annual Subscription License Bundle Annual Subscription License Bundle per User and Direct Support
per Device and Direct Support (3 Devices per User)
Description/SKU Morifly - Amnual - One Time Description/SKU Mobly  Amual | OneTme |
Mobilelron Core (on- Mobilelron Core (on-
premise) EMM Silver premise) EMM Silver
per Device Perpetual per User Perpetual License
Silver License | License - - $56.25 - $82.50
SKU: MICore Silver Per
SKU: MICore Silver Per User Perpetual License
Device Perpetual License
Maintenance Support for Maintenance Support
Mobilelron Core (on- Mobilelron Core (on-
premise) EMM Silver premise) EMM Silver
Silver per Device Perpetual per User Perpetual License
Support License $0.94 | $11.25 $1.38 $16.50
(REQUIRED) SKU: Maintenance Support
SKU: Maintenance Support MICore Silver Per User
MICore Silver Per Device Perpetual License
Perpetual License
Mobilelron Core (on- Mobilelron Core (on-
premise) EMM Gold premise) EMM Gold
Gold per Device Perpetual per User Perpetual License
License License - - $82.50 - $123.75
SKU: MICore Gold Per User
SKU: MICore Gold Per Perpetual License
Device Perpetual License
Maintenance Support Maintenance Support
Gold Mobilelron Core (on- Mobilelron Core (on-
Support premise) EMM Gold $1.38 | $16.50 premise) EMM Gold $2.06 | $24.75
(REQUIRED) per Device Perpetual per User Perpetual License
License

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 27 of 48






SKU: Maintenance Support
MICore Gold Per Device
Perpetual License

SKU: Maintenance Support
MICore Gold Per User
Perpetual License

Platinum

Mobilelron Core (on-
premise) EMM Platinum
per Device Perpetual
License

Mobilelron Core (on-
premise) EMM Platinum
per User Perpetual License

Li - - $105.00 - $157.50
icense
SKU: MICore Platinum Per

SKU: MICore Platinum Per User Perpetual License

Device Perpetual License

Maintenance Support

Mobilelron Core (on- Maintenance Support

premise) EMM Platinum Mobilelron Core (on-
Platinum per Device Perpetual premise) EMM Platinum
Support License $175 | $21.00 i per User Perpetual License $2.63 $31.50
(REQUIRED)

SKU: Maintenance Support
MICore Platinum Per Device
Perpetual License

SKU: Maintenance Support
MIiCore Platinum Per User
Perpetual License

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

On-Premise (Core) Installation?

Support and Maintenance Included

License Type

Description/SKU

MICore Silver Installation

One-time Cost2

Silver MI-PS-DEPLOY1 $3,000.00
MICore Gold Installation

Gold MI-PS-DEPLOY2 $6,000.00

Platinum MICore Platinum Installation $8,000.00

MI-PS-DEPLOY3

Note. Customer must choose one License Type; selection cannot be mixed and/or matched. A minimum of 500 Mobilelron licenses are required for
On-Premise (Core) for initial order for new Mobilelron Customers.

systems.

20n-premise (Core) requires integration and setup with backend
Installation charges are prepackaged services providing access to a Professional Services Engineer to assist customer in

installing/integrating the Mobilelron platform. Pricing above applies to the installation of up to 5,000 Mobilelron licenses. If Customer installation
requires more than 5,000 Mobilelron licenses, Mobilelron Premium Implementation Services may apply which provides advisory services and an
implementation engineer at a cost of $25,000.00 to manage large scale deployments; alternatively, Customer may use its own installation services.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 28 of 48






Mobilelron Enterprise Mobility Management License Fees
Cloud

(Minimum 25+ MI Cloud Licenses Required for initial order/installation)

A discount has been applied. Mobilelron Licenses and Installation services are not eligible for any further discounts.

Cloud License |
per Device with Direct Support per User with Direct Support (3 Devices per User)
License Description/SKU Monthly ~ Annual = Description/SKU Monthly

Type Cost Cost Cost Annual Cost

Mobilelron Cloud EMM Silver Mobilelron Cloud EMM Silver Bundle per

Silver Bundle per Device $3.00 | $36.00 | Y€ $4.50 $54.00
SKU: MICloud Silver Per Device SKU: MICloud Silver Per User
Mobilelron Cloud EMM Gold Mobilelron Cloud EMM Gold Bundle per

Gold Bundle per Device $450 | $54.00 | € $6.75 $81.00
SKU: MICloud Gold Per Device SKU: MICloud Gold Per User
Mobilelron Cloqd EMM Platinum Mobilelron Cloud EMM Platinum Bundle
Bundle per Device er User

Platinum $5.63 | $67.50 | P $8.63 $103.50
SKU: MiCloud Platinum Per SKU: MICloud Platinum Per User
Device

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES \
I
Cloud Installation? |

Support and Maintenance Included

License Type ES | One-time Cost? |

. MICloud Silver Installation
Silver MI-PS-DEPLOY1-MICLOUD $1,500.00
MICloud Gold Installation
Gold MI-PS-DEPLOY2-MICLOUD $3,000.00
. MICloud Platinum Installation
Platinum MI-PS-DEPLOY3-MICLOUD $4,000.00

Note. Customer must choose one License Type; selection cannot be mixed and/or matched. A minimum of 25 Mobilelron licenses are required for
initial Cloud order for new Mobilelron customers. 2MICloud requires integration and setup with backend systems. Installation charges are prepackaged
services providing access to a Professional Services Engineer to assist customer in installing/integrating the Mobilelron platform. Pricing above applies
to the installation of up to 5,000 Mobilelron licenses. If Customer installation requires more than 5,000 Mobilelron licenses, Mobilelron Premium
Implementation Services may apply which provides advisory services and an implementation engineer at a cost of $25,000.00 to manage large scale
deployments; alternatively, Customer may use its own installation services.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 29 of 48






Mobilelron Enterprise Mobility Management: Government Subscribers
On-Premise and Cloud Managed Service Features

All features are available on both On-premise and Cloud managed installations. Included features are determined by Mobilelron License Type

Included Features by License
Silver Gold Platinum |

Feature Functionality

Apple DEP Supports Apple DEP (for iOS devices) v v
Android for Work Supports AFW (on AFW enabled devices) x v v
Samsung KNOX Integrates with Samsung KNOX (KNOX sold separately) x v v
. Secure Active Sync (all bundles)
Email Access Divide PM (Gold/Platinum bundles for additional fee) Y Y Y
. In-line gateway that manages, encrypts, and secures traffic between

Secure Enterprise Gateway ; g .

the mobile device and back-end enterprise systems. v v v
(Sentry) . . .

(Requires user setup/installation)

Enterprise App Store
Apps@Work Basic Container Y Y Y

- , , 25 files/ 50 files/

Content Catalog Secure Doc catalog and publishing (basic content repository) MB each 25MB each
Docs@Work Access, annotate ar_1d §hare documents from email, and on-premise < v v

management repositories

Containerization of Application at Rest

App wrapping
AppConnect AppConnect ecosystem (3rd Party applications already compatible * d Y

with Mobilelron container)

Secure Browser
Web@Work Secure data in motion x v 4

No VPN required
Tunnel iOS per App VPN native functionality x x v
Help@Work Custqmizablg app that enables screen shar@ng on device for trouble < < v

shooting for internal customer trouble shooting

Mobilelron’s ability to proxy Kerberos allows iOS devices that are not
Identity@Work on the corporate network to use iOS 7 SSO without needing to expose x x v

the Kerberos Key Distribution Center (KDC)
Service Connect Integrations ServiceNow integration to streamline IT workflows x x v
Notes. Customer may purchase Mobilelron, Inc. (“Mobilelron”) licenses and services (“Mobilelron Services”), to be billed by Verizon Wireless, at the
prices listed above. Verizon Wireless is not the licensor of the Mobilelron Services and makes no representations or warranties whatsoever, either
express or implied, with respect to them. Mobilelron Services are manufactured by Mobilelron, Inc. Any license for Mobilelron Services must be
obtained directly from Mobilelron either upon purchase or installation of the Mobilelron Services. Mobilelron Services are subject to Mobilelron’s terms
and conditions and can be viewed here: www.mobileiron.com/legal. Verizon Wireless will direct Mobilelron to fulfill Customer’s Mobilelron Services
order. Customer support for Mobilelron Services must be obtained directly from Mobilelron, Inc. If Verizon Wireless in its sole discretion determines
that an inquiry from a subscriber is related to Mobilelron Services and is not one concerning Equipment or Wireless Service, it may transfer the service
request to appropriate Mobilelron representatives.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 30 of 48






Canvas

Canvas is a service that helps you replace paper forms and processes with efficient mobile business apps and forms to save money and time on
data collection. Canvas offers 3 plans: Startup Business and Professional. Customers can only select one of the plans at a time (e.g. cannot mix
plans on the same account.) Monthly or annual subscription available.

ltem Name Canvas Startup Canvas Business Canvas Professional
Number of Users Supported 1-5 Unlimited Unlimited
Monthly Service Fee $15.00 $25.00 $35.00
Annual Service Fee $156.00 $264.00 $372.00

Features

Canvas Features
Startup

Business

Professional

Form Submissions

Unlimited

Unlimited

Unlimited

3rd Party Cloud Integration

App Builder

PDF Designer

ANINANEN

Email/Chat Support

Mobile and Web Editing

Phone Support

Dispatch

Submission Status

ANBNANANENENENENEN

HIPPA Compliance

Dedicated Support Representative

Dispatch Scheduling

Advanced Password Management

Webservices

Work flow

SN ESENENENANENENENENENENENENEN

Canvas Connect

Notes: Products shown or referenced are provided by Canvas, a Verizon Partner Program Member, which is solely responsible for the representations and the
functionality, pricing and service agreements. Canvas can connect to several different systems including cloud based and server based applications. Customer may
purchase Canvas licenses and services (“Canvas Services”), to be hilled by Verizon Wireless, at the prices listed above. Verizon Wireless is not the licensor of the
Canvas Services and makes no representations or warranties whatsoever, either express or implied, with respect to them. Canvas Services are manufactured by
Canvas Solutions, Inc. Any license for Canvas Services must be obtained directly from Canvas either upon purchase or installation of the Canvas Services. Canvas
Services are subject to Canvas' terms and conditions and can be viewed here: https://www.gocanvas.com/content/about-us/policy/. Verizon Wireless will direct Canvas
to fulfill Customer’s Canvas Services order. Customer support for Canvas Services must be obtained directly from Canvas Solutions, Inc.. If Verizon Wireless in its
sole discretion determines that an inquiry from a subscriber is related to Canvas Services and is not one concerning Equipment or Wireless Service, it may transfer
the service request to appropriate Canvas representatives.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 31 of 48




https://www.gocanvas.com/content/about-us/policy/



IBM® MaaS360® Enterprise Mobility Management (EMM)
Unified Endpoint Management (UEM)
IBM MaaS360 Unified Endpoint Management License Fees |

A discount has been applied. IBM MaaS360 UEM Licenses and services are not eligible for any further discounts.
IBM MaaS360 UEM offers a comprehensive, highly secure platform that manages and protects Devices and Things (smartphones, tablets, laptops,
desktops,), People and Identity (authentication, authorization, Single Sign On, secure use access), Apps and Content combined with cognitive
technology.

Subscription License Bundle: per Device Subscription License Bundle: per User
One (1) license per device One (1) license per single user with multiple devices
License Description/SKU Annual  Description/SKU A
nnual Cost

Type Cost

EMM Essentials Suite Per EMM Essentials Suite Per User

Device License
Essential $2.25 | $27.00 | SKU: D1P3ILL $4.50 $54.00

SKU: D1P3GLL (Monthly/Annual)

(Monthly/Annual)

EMM Deluxe Suite Per EMM Deluxe Suite Per User

Device License License
Deluxe $3.75 | $45.00 $7.50 $90.00

SKU: D1P3LLL SKU: D1P3NLL

(Monthly/Annual) (Monthly/Annual)

EMM Premier Suite Per EMM Premier Suite Per User

Device License
Premiere $4.69 | $56.25 $9.38 $112.50

SKU: D1P3RLL SKU: D1P3TLL

(Monthly/Annual) (Monthly/Annual)

EMM Enterprise Suite Per EMM Enterprise Suite Per User

Device License
Enterprise $6.75 | $81.00 $13.50 $162.00

SKU: D1IP3WLL SKU: D1P3YLL

(Monthly/Annual) (Monthly/Annual)

Additional UEM License Options
License Type Description/SKU Annual Cost
Laptop Laptop Location $0.38 $4.50
Location SKU: D1AMB8LL (Monthly/Annual)

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 32 of 48






IBM MaaS360 UEM Service Features |

Included features are determined by IBM MaaS360 UEM License Type
Included Features by License
Essential = Deluxe Premier | Enterprise

Feature Functionality

Manage smartphones, tablets & laptops

Device Management featuring i0S, Android, Windows 10 Mobile, v v v v
Windows 7, Windows 10 & macOS
App Management Deploy custom enterprise app catalogs v v v v

Blacklist, whitelist & require apps
Identify & report on missing OS patches
Schedule distribution and installation of v v v v
Windows OS & macOS patches
Single sign-on & touch access
Identity Management Conditional access to trusted devices v v v v
Identity federation with apps

Improve IT operational efficiency by applying

Patch and Update
Management

Advisor best practices & learning from industry & peer v v v v
benchmarks
A separate, corporate mobile workplace for

Container App iOS, Android & Windows v v v v

Productivity apps for work in one place
Monitor mobile data usage with real-time alerts
Set policies to restrict or limit data & voice v v v v
roaming

Contain emails, attachments & chat to prevent
data leakage

Enforce authentication, copy/paste &
forwarding restrictions

FIPS 140-2 compliant, AES-256 bit encryption
for data at res

Contain all chat mobile conversations and data
Secure Mobile Chat Establish quick connections via corporate x v v v
directory lookup

Leverages the hosted MaaS360 Certificate
Authority to issue authentication certs

Deployed alongside your corporate VPN
solution

A feature-rich web browser for secure access to
intranet sites

Secure Browser Define URL filters & security policies based on x x v v
categories

Block known malicious websites

Enable MaaS360 Secure Mobile Browser to
access enterprise intranet sites, web apps &
Gateway for Browser network resources x x v v
Access seamlessly & securely without needing
a VPN session on mobile device

Enforce authentication, copy/paste & view-only

Mobile Expense
Management

Secure Mobile Email

OS VPN

Content Management - x x 4 4
restrictions
Secure access to internal files:

Gateway for Documents e.g., SharePoint & Windows File Share * * Y Y

App Security Enforce authentication & copy/paste restrictions x x v v
Add per app VPN to Application Security to

Gateway for Apps integrate behind-the-firewall data in private x x v v
apps

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 33 of 48






Mobile Document Editor Create, edit & save content in a secure, < < < v
encrypted container
Restrict copy/paste & opening in unmanaged
. apps
Mobile Document Sync S?c?re content securely, both in the cloud & on * * * Y
devices
Detect and analyze mobile malware on
compromised devices
Mobile Threat Automate remediation via near real-time < < < v
Management compliance engine
Take action on jailbroken/rooted devices over-
the-air

Notes. Customer may purchase IBM MaaS360 software licenses and services (“IBM MaaS360 Services”), to be billed by Verizon Wireless, at the
prices listed above. Verizon Wireless is not the licensor of the IBM MaaS360 Services and makes no representations or warranties whatsoever, either
express or implied, with respect to them. IBM MaaS360 Services are manufactured by International Business Machines Corporation, Inc. Any license
for IBM MaaS360 Services must be obtained directly from IBM MaaS360 either upon purchase or receipt of notification from IBM of access to IBM
MaaS360 Services. IBM MaaS360 Services are subject to IBM MaaS360’s terms and conditions and can be viewed here: http://www-
03.ibom.com/software/sla/sladb.nsf/sla/saas. Verizon Wireless will direct IBM MaaS360 to fulfill Customer's IBM MaaS360 Services order. Customer
support for IBM MaaS360 Services must be obtained directly from International Business Machines Corporation, Inc. If Verizon Wireless in its sole
discretion determines that an inquiry from a subscriber is related to IBM MaaS360 Services and is not one concerning Equipment or Wireless Service,
it may transfer the service request to appropriate IBM MaaS360 representatives.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 34 of 48






SAMSUNG Knox FOR ENTERPRISE

Samsung Knox Premium

Knox Premium is a cloud-based cross-platform enterprise mobility management solution combined with an on-device secure container for Samsung
devices.

Subscription Monthly 1-Year Term
(Month to month) (Paid in advance)

License Fee $0.75 $9.00

SKU# Knox Premium EMM - Monthly Knox Premium EMM - 1-Year

Samsung Knox Workspace

Knox Workspace is an on-device container that isolates business applications and data from personal ones with government-grade security. Knox
Workspace also provides enhanced granular controls over device features to enterprise IT administrators. Requires an additional MDM/EMM (like
Knox Premium) to manage the container. Manage the container by integrating Knox IT policies with your existing MDM solution. Only available for
Samsung Devices.

Subscription Monthly 1-Year Term 2—Year Term

(Month to month) (Paid in advance) (Paid in advance)
License Fee $2.70 $32.40 $64.80
SKU# Knox Workspace - Monthly Knox Workspace - 1-Year Knox Workspace - 2-Year

Samsung Knox Customization

Knox Customization is a comprehensive set of tools and services that allow businesses to customize and deploy end-to-end mobile
solutions. Transform Samsung devices into purpose-built solutions for any industry. *Requires upfront proof of device ownership.
One Time Charge | $3.00/per license

Samsung Knox Solutions

Knox™ is Samsung’s mobile device defense-grade security platform. The Knox Platform services multiple user segments through three separate
offerings.
Samsung Knox Premium is cloud-based device management that allows users to securely manage the business side of corporate devices. Samsung
Knox Workspace, another offering, is an enterprise device container that acts as a secure and productive environment for work data and apps.
Package Name Samsung Knox Premium Samsung Knox Workspace
Target Audience SMB & Enterprise with basic security Enterprise, Government & Regulated
needs Industries
End-to-end secure mobile platform v
bundled with Samsung cloud EMM for
device management
Works on both Android and i0S v
ecosystems
Components Knox container with essential policy v v
controls
Knox Workspace container with v
expanded and advanced policy controls
IT Admin management of employee v
devices
Enterprise can black list/white list apps v
within the Knox Workspace container
Can manage VPN profiles in Knox v
Workspace container

Notes: Customer may purchase Samsung Knox for Enterprise licenses and services (“Knox Services”), to be billed by Verizon Wireless, at the prices listed above.
Verizon Wireless is not the licensor of the Knox Services and makes no representations or warranties whatsoever, either express or implied, with respect to them.
Knox Services are manufactured by Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Samsung”). Any license for Knox Services must be obtained directly from Samsung either upon
purchase or installation of the Knox Services.  Knox Services are subject to Knox Services' terms and conditons and can be viewed
here: https://www.samsungknox.com/en/eula. Verizon Wireless will direct Knox Services to fulfill Customer's Knox Services order. Customer support for Knox Services
must be obtained directly from Samsung. If Verizon Wireless in its sole discretion determines that an inquiry from a subscriber is related to Knox Services and is not
one concerning Equipment or Wireless Service, it may transfer the service request to appropriate Knox Services representatives.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 35 of 48




https://www.samsungknox.com/en/eula



Verizon Auto Share (In-Vehicle) Plan*

This plan is NOT eligible for monthly access fee discounts.

Monthly Access Fee per Included Domestic Text Overage Rate per
YA P Shared Data Allowance Data Overage Rate Message Allowance g P
Connection (device) ™ Text Message
(non-shared)
$25.00 (93074) 20 MB (82297) $10.00 per GB 20 $0.20 per message

Notes: Coverage is only available in the United States and includes the Verizon Wireless 4G network; and the 3G and 3G Extended networks, while
available. Current data coverage details and additional plan information can be found at www.verizonwireless.com. This plan is restricted for use on
the Delphi Onboard device only. Components of this plan include Verizon Auto Share Platform access and an in-vehicle hardware device. *Voice
calls cannot be placed or received on this plan, except for calls to 611 or 911 (these calls may be placed anywhere in the Nationwide Rate and
Coverage Area). If the voice block feature is removed, there will be a $0.25 per minute charge for voice calls.

ACCOUNT SHARING-

Data Sharing: Sharing is only available among lines active on this plan. At the end of each hill cycle, any unused data allowances for lines sharing
on the same account will be applied to the overages of the other lines on the same account beginning with the line with the lowest overage need. Plan
changes may not take effect until the billing cycle following the change request.

**Domestic text message allowance does not include picture or video messages.

Custom Verizon Auto Share Components for Government Subscribers

Verizon Auto Share Components are NOT eligible for discounts.

Verizon M2M Management Center Included
Mobile App Included
QR Code! Included
Verizon Auto Share Included

Delphi Onboard Device (OBD)

SKU - ACT233LVWQE $199.00

Verizon Auto Share Security Kit? (self-install kit) $199.97
SKU - VZN-SECKIT '

1The QR code is in the Equipment Guide and can be ordered as an accessory. 2Professional Installation services not available to government
customers.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 36 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/



Intrepid Networks®: Government Subscribers |

Intrepid Networks provides a real-time situational awareness solution for both public and private organizations. Intrepid Networks solution suite is
suited for emergency response agencies within the public sector, as well as any private sector companies that require day-to-day operational
efficiencies and tracking needs. The solution provides critical end-user-level situational awareness which substantially improves operational efficiency
and reduces the communication loop.

FREE TRIAL

Package Name Description Cost Conditions
INT_RESP_PKG INTREPID RESPONSE PACKAGE $90.00/yr -
ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION
INT_ACT_PKG INTREPID ACTIVATE PACKAGE ANNUAL $27.00/yr -
SUBSCRIPTION
INT_RESP_ACT_PKG INTREPID RESPONSE PACKAGE & $103.50/yr -
INTREPID ACTIVATE PACKAGE ANNUAL
SUBSCRIPTION
INT_EXT_GPS ADDITIONAL EXTERNAL GPS ASSET $90.00/yr -
ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION
INT_RESP+_PKG INTREPID RESPONSE 'PLUS' PACKAGE $180.00/yr -
ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION
VZ_PTT_PLUS VERIZON PTT+/KODIAK INTEGRATION $12.00/yr SKU cannot be
Software YEAR SUBSCRIPTION purchased separately.
Customer must purchase
either Response,
Activate, and/or
Response+ solution.
Also, customer must
subscribe to Verizon's
PTT+ service.
ES_CHAT_INTEGRATION ES-CHAT PTT INTEGRATION YEAR $72.00/yr SKU cannot be
SUBSCRIPTION purchased separately.
Customer must purchase
either Response,
Activate, and/or
Response+ solution.
Services ON_PREM_SETUP ON-PREMISES SETUP FEE ONE TIME $20,000 SKU cannot be
AND ONE YEAR SUPPORT One-time fee purchased separately.
Customer must purchase
with either Response,
Activate, and/or
Response+ solution.
ON_PREM_SUPPORT ON-PREMISES MAINTENANCE AND $10,000/yr -
ONGOING SUPPORT ANNUAL FEE
TRAINING_AT_INTREPID 1 TRAINING DAY AT INTREPID FACILITY $1,000/day 1 day of training at
Intrepid Networks’ facility
in Orlando, FL.
TRAINING_AT_CUST 1 TRAINING DAY AT CUSTOMER'S SITE $2,500/day 1 Day of training at
Customer’s site (includes
travel expenses)
Trials INT_RESP_TRIAL INTREPID RESPONSE PACKAGE 30 DAY $0.00 Free 30-Day trial for 5-10
FREE TRIAL licenses. Trial can only
be utilized once per
customer within a 6
month period. One per
customer. Recurring
trials are not permitted.
INT_ACT _TRIAL INTREPID ACTIVATE PACKAGE 30 DAY $0.00 Free 30-Day trial for 5-10

licenses. Trial can only
be utilized once per
customer within a 6

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government

Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 37 of 48






month period. One per
customer. Recurring
trials are not permitted.

INT_RESP_ACT_TRIAL INTREPID RESPONSE PACKAGE & $0.00 Free 30-Day trial for 5-10
INTREPID ACTIVATE 30 DAY FREE licenses. Trial can only
TRIAL be utilized once per

customer within a 6
month period. One per
customer. Recurring
trials are not permitted.

INT_RESP+_TRIAL INTREPID RESPONSE+ 30 DAY FREE $0.00 Free 30-Day trial for 5-10
TRIAL licenses. Trial can only
be utilized once per
customer within a 6
month period. One per
customer. Recurring
trials are not permitted.

VZ_PTT_PLUS_TRIAL VERIZON PTT+/KODIAK INTEGRATION $0.00 Free 30-Day trial for 5-10
30 DAY FREE TRIAL licenses. Trial can only
be utilized once per
customer within a 6
month period. One Trial
per customer. Recurring
trials are not permitted.
Trial is free, but customer
must subscribe to
Verizon PTT+ monthly
service. Cannot utilize

VZ PTT Plus trial
concurrently with ESChat
trial.
ES_CHAT_INTGR_TRIAL ESCHAT PTT INTEGRATION 30 DAY $0.00 Free 30-Day trial for 5-10
FREE TRIAL licenses. Trial can only

be utilized once per
customer within a 6
month period. One Trial
per customer. Recurring
trials are not permitted.
Cannot utilize ESChat
trial concurrently with
PTT Plus trial.

Customer may purchase Intrepid Networks licenses and services (“Intrepid Networks Services”), to be billed by Verizon Wireless, at the prices listed
above. Verizon Wireless is not the licensor of the Intrepid Networks Services and makes no representations or warranties whatsoever, either express
or implied, with respect to them. Intrepid Networks Services are manufactured by Intrepid Networks®. Any license for Intrepid Networks Services must
be obtained directly from Intrepid Networks either upon purchase or installation of the Intrepid Networks Services. Intrepid Networks Services are
subject to Intrepid Networks’ terms and conditions and can be viewed here:
https://documents.intrepid-networks.com/Intrepid+Networks+Standard+Services+Agreement+Feb2017+Click+Through+Version.pdf. Verizon
Wireless will direct Intrepid Networks to fulfill Customer’s Intrepid Networks Services order. Customer support for Intrepid Networks Services must be
obtained directly from Intrepid Networks®. If Verizon Wireless in its sole discretion determines that an inquiry from a subscriber is related to Intrepid
Networks Services and is not one concerning Equipment or Wireless Service, it may transfer the service request to appropriate Intrepid Networks
representatives.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 38 of 48




https://documents.intrepid-networks.com/Intrepid+Networks+Standard+Services+Agreement+Feb2017+Click+Through+Version.pdf



Networkfleet Service Options for NVLPT |

The Service Options below have been discounted. No additional discounts apply.

Service Options Purchase Cost |

5200-GPS Only $17.00
5500-Diagnostics + GPS $19.00
H6100 Expressfleet $13.86
AssetGuard BX Non-Powered Asset Tracking $13.00
Connect $2.95
Customizable Update Rates (“CUR") 1 Minute $0.00
Customizable Update Rates (“CUR") 45 Seconds $1.00
Customizable Update Rates (“CUR") 30 Seconds $2.00
Customizable Update Rates (“CUR") 15 Seconds $3.00
Satellite $34.95
Data Services $0.00

Notes: Only one Hardware tier and one Service tier per Customer Account. Must be on a 12 month service agreement. Applicable taxes are not included in the above
pricing. Any applicable taxes will be applied to the billing invoice. Additional terms & conditions apply to Networkfleet Service that are subject to review by end user
government agencies.

Customizable Update Rates (CUR). Authorized registered user may change a device update rate through the Self Service Portal (SSP) to 60 seconds at no additional
cost. Please note, if the device update rate is changed to a 45 (CUR45), 30 (CUR30), or 15 (CUR15) second update rate, an additional charge per device would apply
per the CUR list price for the selected rate.

Networkfleet Device/Hardware Options for NVLPT |

The Devices/Hardware Options below have been discounted. No additional discounts apply.

Device/Hardware Options

Purchase Cost

5200-GPS Only $85.00

5500-Diagnostics + GPS $85.00

1009N2VD-6100 Expressfleet $55.00

AssetGuard BX Non-Powered Asset Tracking $150.00

Notes: Only one Hardware tier and one Service tier per Customer Account. Must be on a 12 month service agreement. Applicable taxes are not included in the
above pricing. Any applicable taxes will be applied to the hilling invoice.

Item Number Accessory Price |
PARTS030 Reinstallation Kit $3.00
PARTS031 Tamper Resistant Zip Ties (100 per pack) $50.00
PARTS032 Combination Antenna A (standard) $30.00
PARTS037 AT-1400 Replacement Battery $45.00
PARTS039 AT-1400 Bracket $20.00
PARTS040 Window-Mount GPS Antenna Module (5500/5200) $35.00
PARTS041 Sensor Input Harness (5500/5200) $10.00

OBD-II Adapter Kit only including Core Connector & 8 Adapters
PARTS042 (5500/5200) $20.00
PARTS043 6-pin Heavy Duty Harness (5500/5200) $35.00
PARTS044 9-pin Heavy Duty Harness with Square Flange (5500/5200) $35.00
PARTS045 9-pin Heavy Duty Harness with “D” Mount (5500/5200) $35.00
PARTS069 OBD Harness Extension $10.00
PARTS070 16-Pin Heavy Duty Harness $35.00
PARTS046 Universal Harness (5200) $10.00
PARTS047 Light Duty Harness plus OBD-II Adapter Kit (5500/5200) $35.00
PARTS090 Alternate Power/Ground Adapter (5200/5500) $20.00
PARTS053 Garmin FMI 45 Cable with Traffic for Connect $145.95
PARTS054 Garmin FMI Modified Cable $55.00
PARTS057 Pelican Micro Case for 5200 w/ 15’ Universal Harness $74.95
A-PEMO001 PEM Port Expansion Module $140.00
PARTS059 Quick Install Harness $10.00
A-SAT001 Satellite Modem $550.00

PARTSS063 Satellite Antenna $50.00

PARTSS064 Satellite Harness $50.00
KIT-SAT Satellite Kit (includes one modem, antenna & harness) $650.00
PARTS065 Asset Guard BX Replacement Batter (1) $75.00

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 39 of 48






PARTS066 Asset Guard BX Magnet Mount Kit (set of 4) *See Note $75.00
PARTS095 ID Reader Adapter Install Kit $30.00
PARTS060 Driver ID Reader $15.00
PARTS061 Driver ID Key $3.50
PARTS087 Audible Driver ID Alert $15.00
PARTS071 Bluetooth Extension $0.00
PARTS093 Universal Harness (6100) $10.00
PARTS058 Universal Harness $10.00
PARTS097 5000 9-Pin “D” Mount Harness Type 2 $35.00
PARTS098 5000 9-Pin Square Harness Type 2 $35.00
PARTS111 USM 9-Pin “D” Mount Harness Type 2 Pins F-G $35.00
PARTS112 USM 9-Pin Square Harness Type 2 Pins F-G $35.00

Notes: * Asset Guard BX Magnet Mount Kit includes CalAmp 133561 hardware and lanyard & CalAmp 1M101-MNC25 magnets (set of 4).

ltem Number Installation Type Pricing Notes
(per unit)
I-INSTALL-UNIT Base Installation — Plug/Play or 3 Wire $65.00 Base Installation includes 1 Device and 1 Harness
D-INSTALL-UNIT Limited Lifetime Base Installation $2.00 Monthly Service Fee
I-INSTALL-FMI Add-On to Base Installation (Garmin) $35.00
I-INSTALL-SENSOR Add-On to Base Installation (Sensor) $65.00 | Sensor Install is $65.00 PER SENSOR
FINSTALL-AG ggi(c)i-On to Base Installation (AssetGuard $65.00
LINSTALL-PMC A(_jd-On to Base Installation (Pelican $35.00
Micro Case)
IINSTALL-PEM Add-On. to Base Installation (Port $35.00
Expansion Module)
[-INSTALL-SAT Add-On to Base Installation (Satellite) $35.00
I-INSTALL-DID Add-On to Base Installation (Driver ID) $35.00
I-INSTALL -BTE Add-On to Base Installation (Bluetooth) $35.00
Limited Lifetime Add-On to Base .
D-INSTALL-BTE installation (Bluetooth) $1.00 Monthly Service Fee
D-INSTALL-FM Limited Lifetime Add-On to Base $1.00 | Monthly Service Fee
Installation (Garmin)
D-INSTALL-SENSOR Limited .Llfet|me Add-On to Base $1.00
Installation (Sensor)
Limited Lifetime Add-On to Base
D-INSTALL-AG Installation (AssetGuard BX/PW) $2.00
Limited Lifetime Add-On to Base ,
D-INSTALL-PMC Installation (Pelican Micro Case) $1.00 Monthly Service Fee
Limited Lifetime Add-On to Base .
D-INSTALL-PEM Installation (Port Expansion Module) $1.00 Monthly Service Fee
D-INSTALL-SAT Limited Lifetime Add-On to Base $1.00 | Monthly Service Fee
Installation (Satellite)
Limited Lifetime Add-On to Base ,
D-INSTALL-DID installation (Driver ID) $1.00 Monthly Service Fee
I-SWAP-UNIT Device Swap $65.00
I-TRANSFER-UNIT Device Transfer $65.00
I-REMOVAL-UNIT Removal $65.00 Removal of device.
Applies per trip if the installer makes the trip and the
[-NOSHOW No Show $75.00 designated vehicle is not available so the unit cannot be
installed.
lU-llllIIQ'I'O UBLESHOOT- Troubleshoot; Mileage $65.00 Per Trip
TRAINING-HALF % Day Installation Training $150.00
TRAINING-FULL Full Day Installation Training $300.00

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 40 of 48






Verizon Wireless Plan and Feature Details

Plans and Associated Charges: Billing, shipping and end-user address must be
within an area where Verizon Wireless is licensed and provides service. Charges
for calls will be based on the cell sites used, which may be outside the calling plan
coverage area even when the subscriber is physically within the coverage area.
Time of the call is based on the telephone switching office that carries the call,
which may be different from the time of day shown on subscriber’s phone. Unused
monthly minutes and/or Megabytes are lost. On outgoing calls, charges start when
subscriber presses SEND or the call connects to a network, and on incoming calls,
when the call connects to a network (which may be before it rings). A call may end
several seconds after subscriber presses END or the call disconnects. Calls made
on the Verizon Wireless network are only billed if they connect (which includes
calls answered by machines). Billing for airtime and related charges may
sometimes be delayed. Calls to "911" and certain other emergency services are
toll-free and airtime-free. Airtime may be charged when dialing toll-free numbers.
Anytime Minutes: Anytime Minutes apply when making or receiving calls from a
calling plan's rate and coverage area. Coverage information is available
at www.verizonwireless.com. Airtime is rounded up to the next full minute.
Allowance minutes/Megabytes are not transferable except as may be available on
plans with sharing. In order to gain access to coverage in newly expanding
markets, subscribers must periodically dial *228 to update roaming information
from voice or Smartphone devices; from the VZAccess Manager, go into “Options”
and click “Activation,” while in the National Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage
Area every three months. This may alter the rate and coverage area. Automatic
roaming may not be available in all areas and rates may vary. Roaming charges
may be delayed to a later bill.

Long Distance: Unlimited domestic long distance is included when calling from
the plan’s rate and coverage area, unless otherwise specified in the plan.
Unlimited Messaging: Unlimited Messaging is included with select plans and is
available in the National Enhanced Services rate and coverage area in the United
States. Messaging applies when sending and receiving (i) text, picture and video
messages to and from Verizon Wireless and Non-Verizon Wireless customers in the
United States, (ii) Text, picture, and video messages sent via email, (iii) Instant
messages, and (iv) Text messages with customers of wireless carriers in Canada,
Mexico, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands. Messaging is subject to Text,
Picture, and Video Messaging Terms and conditions. Premium messages are not
included. Friends & Family for Business: Calls directed to and received from an
account's listed Friends & Family numbers shall not use Monthly Anytime Voice
Minutes. For Nationwide for Business plans with 900 minutes or more or 450
minute plan with the share option can add up to ten (10) Friends & Family numbers.
Only calls from Nationwide Coverage Area to designated domestic landline or
wireless numbers (excluding Directory Assistance, 900 numbers, or customer's own
wireless or Voicemail access numbers) may be added; all qualifying lines on an
account share the same Friends & Family numbers, up to account’s eligibility limits;
My Verizon, My Business Account or Verizon Enterprise Center is required to set up
and manage Friends & Family numbers.

Mobile to Mobile Calling: Mobile to Mobile Calling minutes apply when making
calls directly to or receiving calls directly from another Verizon Wireless subscriber
while in the Nationwide Rate and Coverage area. Mobile to Mobile calls must
originate and terminate while both Verizon Wireless subscribers are within the
Mobile to Mobile Calling area. Mobile to Mobile Calling is not available (i) with
fixed wireless devices with usage substantially from a single cell site, (ii) for data
usage including Push to Talk Plus calls, Picture or Video Messaging (iii) if Call
Forwarding or No Answer/Busy Transfer features are activated, (iv) for calls to
Verizon Wireless customers using any of the International services, (v) for calls to
check Voice Mail, (vi) in those areas of Louisiana and Mississippi where the users
roaming indicator flashes, (vii) in Canada and Mexico and (viii) to users whose
current wireless exchange restricts the delivery of Caller ID And (viiii) for incoming
calls if Caller ID is not present or Caller ID Block is initiated. Mobile to Mobile
Calling minutes will be applied before Anytime Minutes.

Night and Weekend Minutes: Apply to calls made in a calling plan’s rate and
coverage area only during the following hours: 12:00 am Saturday through 11:59
pm Sunday and 9:01 pm to 5:59 am Monday through Friday. If both Night and
Weekend and Mobile to Mobile Calling minute allowances apply to a given call,
Mobile to Mobile Calling minutes will apply before Night and Weekend minutes.
However, if either allowance is unlimited, the unlimited allowance will always apply
first.

Nationwide for Business Share Option: The Share Option is available to
businesses with a minimum of five (5) Nationwide for Business lines on the same
account with the share option. The Monthly Anytime Minutes of all lines on an
account will be aggregated, and then allocated first to the line with the highest
anytime minute usage, and then to the line with the next highest usage.

Push to Talk Plus: Push to Talk Plus (PTT+) capable Equipment required. Push
to Talk Plus capable Equipment can only be used with a Push to Talk Plus calling
plan. Subscribers switching from a Push to Talk Plus Calling Plan to another
calling plan may not be able to use certain Push to Talk Plus capable
Equipment with the new plan. Push to Talk Plus calls may only be made with
other Verizon Wireless Push to Talk Plus subscribers. Push to Talk Plus
Subscribers may initiate or participate on a call, simultaneously, with as many as
250 total participants (total is limited to (50) if interoperating between 3G and 4G
participants). Administrators can be designated to manage the Push to Talk
contact lists via a single website interface with a single user name/password. .
Existing Push to Talk Subscriber Equipment may require a software upgrade to
use Push to Talk Plus or replacement with a Push to Talk Plus capable
device. Push to Talk Plus is only available within the National Enhanced Services
Rate and Coverage Area and WiFi access points. There will be a delay from the
time a Push to Talk Plus call is initiated until the Push to Talk Plus call is first
received by the called party. If an incoming voice call is received while on a Push
to Talk Plus call the voice call may be answered and the Push to Talk Plus placed
on hold. If an incoming Push to Talk Plus call is received while on a Push to Talk
Plus call the PTT call icon can be selected to connect to the Push to Talk Plus
call. If the incoming voice or Push to Talk Plus call is not answered a missed call
alert will display. Network registration information will be sent to the Equipment
each time it is powered on in the National Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage
Area, each time the Subscriber travels into the National Enhanced Services Rate
and Coverage Area, and every 12 hours if the Subscriber stays within the National
Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area. While the updated network
registration information is being sent to the Equipment, incoming voice calls will go
directly to voice mail. Contact list cannot be modified from certain Equipment.
Subscriber cannot prevent others who have the Subscriber's MTN from entering
the MTN into their Push to Talk contact list. Only one person can speak at a time
during a Push to Talk Plus call. In-Call Talker Override (Talker Priority) allows a
pre-determined user priority to take the floor to communicate urgent message over
participant. Push to Talk Plus services cannot be used for (i) access to the
Internet, intranets or other data networks, except as the device's native
applications & capabilities permit, (i) any applications that tether Equipment to
laptops, personal computers or other devices for any purpose. Please visit our
website www.verizonwireless.com for additional Push to Talk Plus information.
International Long Distance: You need International Eligibility to make
international calls to most countries, but you can make calls to some North
American destinations without it. Additional surcharges may apply when calling
certain countries; see verizonwireless.com/International for details.

Verizon Wireless International Long Distance Value Plan: International
Eligibility required to call most countries. Value Plan feature is not available on all
Plans. Rates are subject to change without notice. Standard International Long
Distance rates apply in addition to airtime charges per your Plan on calls made
from the Verizon Wireless network. Rates and service availability may vary when
your phone’s banner displays “Extended Network.” Value Plan rates apply only on
calls to Value Plan Countries made from your Plan’s Rate and Coverage Area. If
a subscriber's Plan’s Rate and Coverage Area includes calls to any Value Plan
country, those calls will be billed per the Plan. Except when roaming on another
carrier's network, in which case that carrier's rates, taxes and surcharges apply.
For Value Plan subscribers, calls made from the Verizon Wireless network to
countries not included in the Value Plan will be billed at standard International Long
Distance rates. Additional surcharges may apply when calling certain destinations,
see www.verizonwireless.com/international for details.

International Roaming: Some services, such as premium text messaging,
directory assistance, entertainment lines and third-party services, may be
available, and charges for these services will be hilled (along with applicable toll
charges) in addition to roaming rates. Message-waiting-indicator service is not
available where Text Messaging is not available. When using International Phone,
or International Data services, or if you subscribe to a Nationwide Plus Canada or
Nationwide Plus Mexico Plan, and you're roaming near country borders, calls may
be carried by a cell site located in a neighboring country and billed at that country’s

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 41 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://verizonwireless.com/global

http://www.verizonwireless.com/international



Verizon Wireless Plan and Feature Details

rates. Verizon Wireless will terminate your service for good cause if less than half
of your voice or data usage over three consecutive billing cycles is on the Verizon
Wireless National Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area. See
verizonwireless.com/International for rates and destinations, which are subject to
change without notice. International Eligibility required for GSM roaming, and for
roaming in many destinations. Rates, terms and conditions apply only when
roaming on participating GSM networks in published destinations. Availability of
service, calling features, and Text messaging varies by country and network and
may be restricted without notice. You must add International Eligibility to your
account to roam in many destinations. Visit verizonwireless.com/naroaming. By
using Equipment outside the United States, subscriber is solely responsible for
complying with all applicable foreign laws, rules and regulations (“Foreign Laws”),
including Foreign Laws regarding use of wireless phones while driving and use of
wireless camera phones. Verizon Wireless is not liable for any damages that may
result from subscriber's failure to comply with Foreign Laws.

Roaming in GSM countries: GSM International Phone, activated in the United
States with compatible subscriber Identity Module (SIM) card required. Rates,
terms and conditions apply only when roaming on participating GSM networks in
published International Phone countries. Service may be available in additional
countries, but airtime rates, availability of calling features, and ability to receive
incoming calls (including return calls from emergency services personnel) may be
restricted. See www.verizonwireless.com for coverage and airtime rates. Service
in certain countries may be blocked without prior notice. Where Text messaging
is available, Customer will be charged $0.50 for each message sent and $0.05 for
each message received. Text messaging rates are subject to change. Text
messages may be sent only to MTNs of (i) Verizon Wireless customers, and (ii)
customers of foreign wireless carriers that participate in international text
messaging. Check www.vtext.com for the most current list of participating foreign
carriers.

Data Services: Verizon Wireless charges you for all data and content sent or
received using our network (including any network overhead and/or Internet
Protocol overhead associated with content sent or received), as well as resolution
of Internet Protocol addresses from domain names. Sending or receiving data
using a virtual private network (VPN) involves additional VPN overhead for which
you will be charged. Please note that certain applications or widgets periodically
send and receive data in the background, without any action by the user, and you
will be billed for such data use. Applications may automatically re-initiate data
sessions without you pressing or clicking the ém or connect button. Data
sessions automatically terminate after 24 hours. A data session is inactive when
no data is being transferred. Data sessions may seem inactive while data is
actively being transferred, or may seem active when the data is actually cached
and data is not being transferred. If you have a Data Only plan and use voice
service, domestic voice calls will be hilled at $0.25/minute.

Verizon Wireless strives to provide customers with the best experience when using
our network, a shared resource among tens of millions of customers.
To further this objective, Verizon Wireless has implemented Network Optimization
Practices designed to ensure that the overwhelming majority of data customers
aren’t negatively impacted by the inordinate data consumption of a few users. The
reduction can last for the remainder of the current bill cycle and the immediately
following bill cycle to ensure high quality network performance for other users at
locations and times of peak demand. For a further more detailed explanation of
these techniques please visit www.verizonwireless.com/networkoptimization.
Data transfer amounts will vary based on application. If you download an audio or
video file, the file may be downloaded in sections or in its entirety; data charges
will apply to the portion downloaded, regardless of whether you listen to or watch
all of it. You may access and monitor your own data usage during a particular
billing period, including during the Return Period, by accessing My Verizon online
or by contacting Customer Service.

Data Services: Permitted Uses: You can use Verizon Wireless Data Services for
accessing the Internet and for such uses as: (i) Internet browsing; (i) email; (iii)
intranet access (including accessing corporate intranets, email and individual
productivity applications made available by your company); (iv) uploading,
downloading and streaming of audio, video and games; and (v) Voice over Internet
Protocol (VolIP).

Data Services: Prohibited Uses. You may not use our Data Services for
illegal purposes or purposes that infringe upon others' intellectual property

rights, or in a manner that interferes with other users' service, that violates
trade and economic sanctions and prohibitions as promulgated by the
Departments of Commerce, Treasury or any other U.S. government agency,
that interferes with network's ability to fairly allocate capacity among users,
or that otherwise degrades service quality for other users. Examples of
prohibited usage include: (i) server devices or host computer applications
that are broadcast to multiple servers or recipients such that they could
enable “bots” or similar routines (as set forth in more detail (i) below) or
otherwise denigrate network capacity or functionality; (i) “auto-
responders,”“cancel-bots,” or similar automated or manual routines that
generate amounts of net traffic that could disrupt net user groups or e-mail
use by others; (iii) generating “spam” or unsolicited commercial or bulk e-
mail (or activities that facilitate the dissemination of such e-mail); (iv) any
activity that adversely affects the ability of other users or systems to use
either Verizon Wireless’ services or the Internet-based resources of others,
including the generation of dissemination of viruses, malware, or “denial of
service” attacks; (v) accessing or attempting to access without authority, the
information, accounts or devices of others, or to penetrate, or attempt to
penetrate Verizon Wireless’ or another entity’s network or systems; or (vi)
running software or other devices that maintain continuous active Internet
connections when a computer’s connection would otherwise be idle or “any
keep alive” functions, unless they adhere to Verizon Wireless” requirements
for such usage, which may be changed from time to time.

Verizon Wireless further reserves the right to take measures to protect our network
and other users from harm, compromised capacity or degradation in performance.
These measures may impact your service, and Verizon Wireless reserves the right
to deny, modify or terminate service, with or without notice, to anyone Verizon
Wireless believes is using Data Services in a manner that adversely impacts the
Verizon Wireless network. Verizon Wireless may monitor your compliance, or
other subscribers’ compliance, with these terms and conditions, but Verizon
Wireless will not monitor the content of the communications except as
otherwise  expressly permitted or required by law. [See
verizonwireless.com/privacy]

Unlimited Data Plans and Features (such as NationalAccess,
BroadbandAccess, Push to Talk Plus, and certain VZEmail services) may
ONLY be used with wireless devices for the following purposes: (i) Internet
browsing; (i) email; and (iii) intranet access (including access to corporate
intranets, email, and individual productivity applications like customer relationship
management, sales force, and field service automation). The Unlimited Data Plans
and Features MAY NOT be used for any other purpose. Examples of prohibited
uses include, without limitation, the following: (i) continuous uploading,
downloading or streaming of audio or video programming or games; (i) server
devices or host computer applications, including, but not limited to, Web camera
posts or broadcasts, automatic data feeds, automated machine—to—machine
connections or peer-to—peer (P2P) file sharing; or (iii) as a substitute or backup
for private lines or dedicated data connections. This means, by way of example
only, that checking email, surfing the Internet, downloading legally acquired songs,
and/or visiting corporate intranets is permitted, but downloading movies using P2P
file sharing services and/or redirecting television signals for viewing on laptops is
prohibited.

For individual use only and not for resale. We will protect our network from harm,
which may impact legitimate data flows. We will limit throughput or amount of data
transferred exceeding 25 GB in any given billing cycle on any line, in any given
billing cycle, for all additional usage for the remainder of the then-current bill cycle
for the line that exceeds the data usage, and reserve the right to deny or terminate
service, without notice, to anyone we believe is using an Unlimited Data Plan or
Feature in any manner prohibited above or whose usage adversely impacts our
network or service levels. Anyone using more than 25 GB per line in a given billing
cycle is presumed to be using the service in a manner prohibited above, and we
reserve the right to immediately terminate the service of any such person without
notice. We reserve the right to adjust data throughput limitation thresholds to as
low as 5GB in with prior written notice. We also reserve the right to terminate
service upon notification to the customer.

Unlimited VZAccess and VZEmail: NationalAccess, BroadbandAccess, and
InternationalAccess data sessions may be used for the following purposes: (i)
Internet browsing, (i) e-mail, and (jii) intranet access (including access to
corporate intranets, e-mail and individual productivity applications like customer

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 42 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/

http://www.vtext.com/

http://www.verizonwireless.com/networkoptimization

http://verizonwireless.com/privacy



Verizon Wireless Plan and Feature Details

relationship management, sales force and field service automation). Unlimited
VZAccess, VZEmail and Push to Talk Plus services cannot be used (i) for
uploading, downloading or streaming of movies, music or games, (ii) with server
devices or with host computer applications, other than applications required for
BlackBerry or Wireless Sync service, including, but not limited to, Web camera
posts or broadcasts, automatic data feeds, Voice over IP (VolP), automated
machine-to-machine connections, or peer-to-peer (P2P) file sharing, or (iii) as a
substitute or backup for private lines or dedicated data connections. Additionally,
Unlimited VZEmail services cannot be used for, (i) access to the Internet, intranets
or other data networks, except as the Equipment's native applications and

to roam in many destinations. Current coverage details, and list of Other Available
Countries can be found at www.verizonwireless.com/International.

International Data Optional Features: International PC Card required for
international use. International PC Cards will not work in the United States or
Canada and International Data Optional Features subscribers will need a
NationalAccess or Mobile Broadband PC card for domestic use. The domestic and
International PC Cards cannot be used at the same time. Prior to leaving the
United States, subscribers must install International Data Optional Features
VZAccess ManagersM and run the OTA wizard. International Data Optional
Features subscribers must activate and update their Preferred Roaming lists while

capabilities permit, or (ii) for any applications that tether Equipment to laptops or
personal computers other than for use of the Wireless Sync or BlackBerry
Solutions. Unlimited BroadbandAccess and NationalAccess data sessions
automatically terminate after 2 hours of inactivity, unless Subscriber has Mobile IP
(MIP) capable Equipment

Data Roaming: In the Canadian Broadband and Canadian Enhanced Services
Rate and Coverage Areas, usage will be charged at a rate of $0.002/KB or
$2.05/MB. In the Mexican Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area, usage will
be charged at a rate of $0.005/KB or $5.12/MB. In other available countries, usage
will be billed at a rate of $0.02/KB or $20.48/MB. International Eligibility is needed

in the National Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area every three months.
Verizon Wireless reserves the right to terminate the service of any subscriber
whose total usage is less than half on the Verizon Wireless National Enhanced
Services Rate and Coverage Area over three consecutive hilling cycles. .
International Email SIM Cards: SIM Cards are available for use with your
International PC Card, International Smartphone, or International Phone. Verizon
Wireless is not responsible for any unauthorized use of subscriber's SIM Cards
and subscriber must safeguard security codes. Placing your InternationalEmail
SIM in any other non BlackBerry or Smartphone device could result in additional
charges or termination of service. Upon termination of service, subscriber must
destroy SIM Card.

M2M Data Plan Terms and Conditions

A data session is inactive when no data is being transferred, and may seem inactive while data is actively being transferred to a device, or seem active when actually
cached and not transferring data. Customer must maintain virus protection when accessing the service and is responsible for all data sent and received including
“overhead” (data that is in addition to user-transmitted data, including control, operational and routing instructions, error-checking characters as well as retransmissions
of user-data messages that are received in error) whether or not such data is actually received. Verizon Wireless will not be liable for problems receiving Service that
result from Customer's device.

Megabyte (MB) Data Plans: M2M data usage is rounded to next full kilobyte at end of each bhilling cycle. Any unused portion of the megabyte allowance is lost.
Equipment will not indicate kilobyte usage.

Data Roaming: In the Canadian Broadband and Canadian Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Areas, usage will be charged at a rate of $0.002/KB or $2.05/MB.
In the Mexican Enhanced Services Rate and Coverage Area, usage will be charged at a rate of $0.005/KB or $5.12/MB. For more information on roaming in Canada
and Mexico, visit verizonwireless.com/naroaming. In the Bermuda, China, Dominican Republic, Guam, India, Israel, Saipan and South Korea Enhanced Services Rate
and Coverage Areas, usage will be billed at a rate of $0.02/KB or $20.48/MB. |-Dial is needed to roam in many destinations. Only the Canadian Broadband Rate and
Coverage Area supports EV-DO.

M2M Data Plan Share Options
Share Options: Sharing is available only among Government Subscribers on applicable M2M Low Usage and High Usage calling plans.
Account Share: Customer may activate up to 15 share groups per account. Sharing is available only among M2M Lines on the Mobile Broadband M2M Account
Share Plans on the same billing account, in the same usage group (Low Usage and High Usage plans cannot share with each other). Unused KBs will be distributed
to M2M Lines with an overage on an as needed basis to M2M Lines on the same billing account that have exceeded their MB allowance during the same monthly
billing period. At the end of each bill cycle any unused KBs allowances will be applied to the overages of the other M2M Lines on the same account beginning with the
line with the lowest overage need until depleted. Customers subscribing to Mobile Broadband M2M Account Share Plans will be billed on separate billing accounts
and invoices from Subscribers to the Mobile Broadband M2M Profile Share Plans.
Profile (Multi-Account) Share: Customer may activate one (1) share group per profile (Low Usage and High Usage plans cannot share with each other); however,
customer may have multiple bill accounts on the same profile. Sharing is available only among M2M Lines on the Mobile Broadband M2M Multi-Account Share Plans
on the same profile, in the same usage group. Each sharing M2M Lines unused KBs will pass to other sharing M2M Lines that have exceeded their data allowance
during the same monthly hill cycle. Unused KBs will be distributed proportionally as a ratio of the KBs needed by each applicable M2M Line to the total KBs needed by
all sharing M2M Lines on the same profile. Customers subscribing to Mobile Broadband M2M Profile Share Plans will be billed on separate billing accounts and
invoices from Subscribers to the Mobile Broadband M2M Account Share Plans.
Note: 1A profile is defined as a Customer’s overarching account of record under which Customer may have multiple billing accounts

Verizon Wireless Private Network Terms and Conditions

Verizon Wireless Private Network Service (“Private Network™): Private Network extends Customer’s IP network to its wireless equipment by segregating the data
between such devices and Customer's servers from the public Internet (the “Internet”). Customer’s use of Private Network is subject to the Private Network Roles and
Responsibilities Customer Guidelines, which are available from your Sales representative.

Customer Minimum Line Requirement: Customer must maintain a minimum of 100 Machine-to-Machine lines at all times during the term of its Agreement in order
to remain eligible for Private Network. If Customer falls below the 100-line minimum, Verizon Wireless reserves the right to discontinue Private Network for non-use.
Connection to Verizon Wireless Facility: Customer must establish a direct-connect circuit from its facilities to Verizon Wireless's facilities by the use of Virtual Private
Network, Verizon Private IP, or Fixed End System connections. Customer is solely responsible for making arrangements with a local access provider for installation
and ongoing maintenance of such a connection, with sufficient data throughput to meet Customer's anticipated data needs. Customer is also responsible for all charges
incurred directly or through a third party associated with establishing the connection, as well as for accessing Private Network, including Internet access fees, hardware,
software, license fees, and telecommunications charges.

Customer Provided Equipment (“CPE”): Customer must procure routers and any other CPE that meet Verizon Wireless requirements for Private Network
connectivity. Customer is responsible for ensuring any CPE meets its data capacity and throughput needs.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 43 of 48




http://www.verizonwireless.com/global



IP Addresses: Customer is responsible for procuring private IP addresses, which must be communicated to Verizon Wireless during implementation. Private Network
supports static and dynamic addressing for 1X service and/or EVDO service; 4G LTE service; and Internet addressing system Internet Protocol version 4. Direct
Internet access requires static IP addressing.

Dynamic Mobile Network Routing (“DMNR”): DMNR allows configuration of Private Network for dynamic routing to the subnets it serves (up to eight) to other devices
on Customer’s network and as support for mobile or stationary routers. DMNR is based off Mobile IPv4-based Network Mobility protocol and requires the router to be
configured to support this capability. Customer is responsible for any charges associated with the customization of its CPE to support DMNR.

Verizon Wireless Private Network Traffic Management

Private Network Traffic Management (PNTM): PNTM allows Customer to configure its Private Network to allow differentiated Quality of Service (QoS) by application
over Verizon Wireless's LTE network using standards-based IP packet marking. Customer can identify applications on its 4G LTE devices to get priority QoS over its
Private Network. Verizon Wireless makes no guarantee of PNTM bandwidth allocations, which are subject to the limitations of wireless service availability as detailed
in the Agreement. Customer is responsible for any charges associated with the customization of its CPE to support PNTM.

PNTM for Public Safety: Eligible public safety accounts can take advantage of priority access to a data channel over the Wireless Service for its data traffic during
times of heavy network demand. While PNTM for Public Safety enables a dedicated data channel, Verizon Wireless makes no guarantee of Wireless Service availability,
which is subject to the limitations of wireless service availability as detailed in the Agreement. PNTM for Public Safety is only available to Customers approved by
Verizon Wireless that qualify as Public Safety Entities classified by the following NAICS codes a) 621910 Ambulance Services; b) 922110 Courts; c) 22120 Police
Protection; d) 922130 Legal Counsel and Prosecution; e) 922140 Correctional Institutions; f) 922150 Parole Offices and Probation Offices; g) Fire Protection; h) 922190
Other Justice, Public Order, and Safety Activities or i) National Security.

Customer Private Network Contact: Customer must designate a Private Network representative and provide contact information, including a phone number and
email address. The Private Network contact will work with the Verizon Wireless solution engineer through the Private Network implementation and testing processes
detailed below. The contact shall be available during business hours and any other time period that Customer utilizes Private Network for the purpose of assisting to
resolve service problems and trouble shooting.

Private Network Implementation and Testing: Verizon Wireless will implement Customer’s Private Network, which requires Customer to a) provide any information
(e.g., account numbers, IP address ranges, router/CPE information) necessary to compete the Private Network Connectivity Form; b) participate in a Private Network
turn-up call to ensure that CPE is properly configured to support the Private Network connection; and c) participate in a Solution Validation call to confirm that Private
Network is working properly from Verizon Wireless to Customer’s applications.

Wireless Devices/Network Access: Customer must use Private Network-compatible end-user Equipment and at Customer’s expense must submit any devices not
identified as Private Network compatible to Verizon Wireless, for network testing and Private Network certification. Private Network functionality is available on the
Verizon Wireless 3G and 4G data network, subject to the limitations defined in this Addendum. While Private Network functionality may also be available on the
networks of Verizon Wireless’ domestic and international roaming partners, Verizon Wireless makes no representation of Private Network availability or reliability on
such networks.

Permitted Use/Fraud: Customer shall use Private Network only for lawful purposes and shall not send or enable via the Private Network connection, by way of
example, any SPAM, viruses, worms, trap doors, back doors or timers, nor shall Customer engage in any mail-bombing or spoofing via Private Network. Customer is
responsible for the security of its network and end-user devices and is responsible for any unauthorized access to the Private Network. Verizon Wireless will treat any
traffic over the Private Network as authorized by Customer. Verizon Wireless reserves the right but is not obligated to filter fraudulent usage. Maintenance/Service
Changes/Termination of Private Network Service: Verizon Wireless may limit access to Private Network in order to perform maintenance to the service and will use
reasonable efforts to provide Customer with prior notice of such maintenance. With reasonable advance notice, Verizon Wireless has the right to modify and reconfigure
Private Network as it deems necessary to enhance Customer's experience or to safeguard the Verizon Wireless network. In addition, VERIZON WIRELESS CAN
WITHOUT NOTICE LIMIT, SUSPEND OR CANCEL CUSTOMER'S ACCESS TO OR USE OF PRIVATE NETWORK IF CUSTOMER VIOLATES THE RESTRICTIONS
OF THIS ADDENDUM OR FOR GOOD CAUSE. Good cause includes (a) breach of the terms of this Addendum or the Agreement; (b) unlawful use of Private Network;
(c) using Private Network in a way that adversely affects the Verizon Wireless network or Verizon Wireless' customers; (d) breach of an obligation of Customer to
comply with any applicable federal, state and local government laws, rules and regulations, industry practices, third-party guidelines, or other applicable policies and
requirements; (e) the suspension or termination by any governmental body of competent jurisdiction of Customer’s service or the institution of a requirement, ruling or
regulation that conflicts with this Addendum:; or (f) for operational or governmental reasons.

No Warranties: Verizon Wireless makes no warranties, express or implied, with respect to Private Network, which it provides to Customer on an “AS IS" basis “WITH
ALL FAULTS" and “AS AVAILABLE." The accuracy, timeliness, completeness, suitability, or availability of any aspect of Private Network cannot be guaranteed. THE
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILTY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND NON-INFRINGEMENT ARE HEREBY EXPRESSLY
DISCLAIMED IN THEIR ENTIRETY. The foregoing limitations, exclusions and disclaimers shall apply to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law. Verizon
Wireless makes no representation that it supports any service levels with respect to the availability, performance, capacity, uptime or any similar metrics of Private
Network.

Subject to the Agreement: The terms of this Addendum supplement the Agreement. The terms of the Agreement are applicable to Customer’s use of Private Network.
If there are any inconsistencies between the terms of this Addendum and the Agreement, the terms of this Addendum shall control with respect to Private Network.

One TalksM and Message+ from Verizon - Government Terms of Service
One Talk from Verizon, together with its related devices, software and applications (“Service" or “One Talk”), is a commercially available business
telephone solution that brings together the functions of office phones and mobile devices (smartphones and tablets) into a unified system, with all
devices sharing the same communication features. (See https://www.verizonwireless.com/support/one-talk-features/ for a listing of features currently

available with the Service.)

The following terms of service apply to the One Talk Service. “Customer” means the eligible entity purchasing the One Talk service under the Contract
along with any Customer end users using the Service.

1. Customer Agreement. Customer’s use of the Service is subject to all Contract terms. This applies regardless of whether the end user
device is on the Customer’s account or paid for by the end user (e.g. a Bring Your Own Device arrangement between Customer and end user).

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 44 of 48




https://www.verizonwireless.com/support/one-talk-features/



2. How the Service Works. For the Service to work on wireless devices, Customer must select the line on your agency’s profile to which you
wish to add the One Talk feature. Each One Talk phone number can be shared with up to eight (8) devices (which can include one (1) smartphone
using One Talk in Basic Dialer mode (if available), five (5) smartphones and/or tablets using the One Talk Mobile App, and two (2) desk phones. (Note
that desk phones are not required for the Service.) You may only make voice and/or video calls with up to three (3) devices per One Talk phone number
at the same time. The Service is not compatible with all price plans and desk phones are not available under all contracts. Check with your sales
representative for plan compatibility with the Service and the availability of desk phones under the Contract.

Customer is solely responsible for managing its end user access to the One Talk Service, management of end user devices and management of
information transmitted via the Service. Addition of devices and associated Service features is managed and administered by the Customer through
Verizon Wireless’ web portal.

A. One Talk Components

One Talk Basic Dialer. If available, the One Talk Basic Dialer adds various business features to a compatible device’s native dialer, which on a
compatible smartphones (see https://www.verizonwireless.com/support/compatible-one-talk-devices/ for a current list of supported devices.) With One
Talk in Basic Dialer mode, Customer’s One Talk phone number will be the same as its Verizon Wireless phone number. Other devices that you select
will share the same One Talk phone number.

One Talk Mobile App. The One Talk Mobile App is available for smartphone and tablets either from the Google Play™ Store for devices with Android™
5.0 or higher or from the Apple® App Store for devices with iOS 9.0 or higher. To use the Service, Customer must add a One Talk phone number to
the Mobile App and end users must use the Mobile App to make voice and video calls and to send and receive messages. You can also obtain access
to One Talk features through the Mobile App. With the Mobile App, the device will have two phone numbers — one for its original native dialer (if
available), and the other for the One Talk number. Other associated devices will share the same One Talk number. Users may install the One Talk
Mobile App on a compatible device, including devices receiving service from other carriers. In such circumstances, One Talk phone numbers must be
added to their devices, and the users will be Verizon Wireless subscribers for purposes of the Service only, even if they continue to use a different
carrier for their original mobile telephone numbers. In order to use messaging through the One Talk Mobile App, the customer also must add the
Message + App.

Message+ App. The Message+ App provides an integrated and customized messaging experience across an end user's mobile phone, tablet, PC,
and other devices, and an integrated calling experience across a user's mobile phone and tablet. (Note that integrated calling is not part of the One
Talk Service.) An end user can also send group, location and other multimedia messages (“MMS”) in addition to traditional text messages. The
Message+ App includes an Integrated Messaging feature that lets users send and receive text and multimedia messages on an end user's smartphone,
tablet, computer or the web using a user’s Verizon One Talk mobile telephone number. The service syncs up to 90 days of messages across an end
user’s devices.

One Talk Desk Phones. One Talk desk phones are Voice-over-Internet Protocol (VolP) devices, that must be purchased from Verizon Wireless. At
your location, you will need separate broadband service (from Verizon or another ISP), either Ethernet or Wi-Fi connectivity, and AC power. Check
with your Verizon Wireless sales representative for the availability of desk phones under the Contract.

Auto Receptionist: Hunt Group. In order to utilize either of these features, Customer must activate a new Verizon Wireless line or port in a line from
another carrier. The settings for the line must be configured using the One Talk section of the My Business web portal.

B. Charges

For each One Talk line, you will be charged a monthly recurring fee for the Service, in addition to the charges for data, voice, and messaging based
on your service plan. Charges for international use may apply. You may be assessed additional 911 surcharges if required by law, for up to a maximum
of three devices on each mobile phone number during the applicable billing cycle.

Desk Phones. Voice and video calls to and from One Talk desk phones will consume data on your existing broadband, cellular, or Wi-Fi connection.
The following applies if you use the VZW network to connect to the Service:

One Talk Basic Dialer. Adding the One Talk feature to a smartphone does not consume any data. If you have a device that supports video
calling, the voice portion will be billed as minutes of use and the video portion will be billed as data. Voice calls will be billed as minutes of use
only.

One Talk Mobile App. Your download of the One Talk Mobile App will consume approximately 30 MB of data. Your use of the Service (including
your download of the One Talk Mobile App) will be billed as data.

Auto Receptionist; Hunt Group. You will be charged a monthly recurring fee for each Auto Receptionist and Hunt Group line in your company’s
profile.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 45 of 48




https://www.verizonwireless.com/support/compatible-one-talk-devices/



Integrated Calling Charges (Message+). Integrated Calling does not have a separate monthly service fee, but data usage charges will be incurred
in accordance with Customer’s service plan. If a call is transferred among connected devices, each transfer will be billed as a separate call. Also,
depending on the service address, Customer may be assessed an additional 911 charge if required by law. Any call made from a tablet to a U.S.
number will be treated as a domestic call, no matter where the call originates. Any call made from a tablet to a non-U.S. number will be treated as an
international long distance call that originates in the U.S., which is subject to U.S. taxes, fees and Verizon surcharges, no matter where the call actually
originates. These calls will be billed in accordance with Customer’s international calling plan and/or international Contract rates.

3. Emergency 911 Calls. End users can make a 911 call over a Wi-Fi connection when using the Service, but whenever possible, end users
should avoid doing so because 911 calls over a WiFi connection will not work if there is a failure of your broadband connection or electrical power, or
if the 911 system doesn't recognize the address. In addition, when using a One Talk desk phone, voice functionality (including the ability to make and
receive 911 calls) will not be available during a power outage, broadband connection failure or other service disruption. Before any desk phone can be
activated or the Service can be activated on any device, Customer must enter the U.S. address where Customer wants emergency services to be sent
if end users call 911. It is not necessary to use the same address for all devices. It is very important that Customer updates its 911 address whenever
Customer changes its location for any of these devices because this is the location that will be given to emergency services when end users dial 911.
End users can go to their mobile device's Settings and change their 911 address at any time. Customer can change the 911 address for a desk phone
on the One Talk section of the My Business web portal. (Note: With a smartphone using the One Talk Mobile App, emergency services will use the
911 address only if you use Wi-Fi to make the 911 call. If end users are using the Verizon Wireless Network, their smartphone’s built-in capabilities
will provide the location of the end user’s device.)

4. Integrated Messaging Text Message Feature. To send and receive SMS messages, Mobile devices associated with either One Talk Basic
Dialer (if available) or One Talk Mobile App must download the Message+ App to the device. The Integrated Messaging functionality of Message+
enables you to synchronize messages across multiple devices, including smartphones, tablets and the web. Text messages sent and received while
using the Service are separate from the native texting app (dual numbers) and are only temporarily retained on the One Talk message platform in the
cloud. End users with access to the Service on a Smartphone or the Mobile Client can retrieve/download any text message sent or received using the
Service.

5. HIPAA. Integrated Messaging is not designed for secure transmission or storage of personal healthcare information. Therefore, Customer
agrees not to use Service to store or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI) as defined in the Health Insurance Portability & Accountability Act of
1996 and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009 and accompanying regulations (collectively “HIPAA").
Covered Entities and Business Associates (as defined by HIPAA) will not use Integrated Messaging to store or transmit PHI. Customers that do not
want its end users to save messages to the cloud (including all Covered Entities and Business Associates, as defined by HIPAA), must have an
authorized representative block Integrated Messaging. For further information, go to https://web.vma.vzw.com/BusinessProduct. To learn more about
HIPAA, go to: http://lwww.hhs.gov/ocr/privacy/hipaa/understanding/index.html.

6. Service Limitations. The Service is not compatible with fax machines, credit card machines or certain security systems. Your Verizon
Wireless representative can suggest other possible solutions for some of these functions. Please check with your provider to confirm the compatibility
requirements of your security system.

7. Important Service Disclosures. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE SERVICE IS IMPLEMENTED WITHOUT
SPECIFIC CONTROLS THAT MAY GENERALLY BE REQUIRED OR CUSTOMARY FOR CUSTOMERS IN ANY PARTICULAR INDUSTRY AND
ARE NOT DESIGNED TO SATISFY ANY SPECIFIC LEGAL OBLIGATIONS. CUSTOMER IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING THAT
THE SERVICE SATISFIES ANY LEGAL, REGULATORY OR CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS CUSTOMER MAY HAVE. CUSTOMER AGREES TO
USE THE SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS AND NOT TO USE THE SERVICES IN ANY MANNER THAT MAY IMPOSE
LEGAL, REGULATORY OR CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS ON VERIZON WIRELESS, OTHER THAN THOSE WITH WHICH WE HAVE
EXPRESSLY AGREED TO COMPLY IN THIS ADDENDUM.

CUSTOMER IS ON NOTICE THAT ANY TEXT MESSAGES DELIVERED TO A DEVICE USING THE SERVICE WILL REMAIN ON THAT DEVICE,
EVEN AFTER THE MESSAGING FEATURE IS REMOVED OR END USER IS DEREGISTERED AND NO LONGER HAS ACCESS TO THE
SERVICE. END USERS CONTROL THE DELETION OF MESSAGES RECEIVED ON THEIR DEVICES.

8. Software. In connection with the Service, Verizon Wireless will provide software that is owned by us, our affiliates or third-party licensors
("Software"). Verizon Wireless may update the Software from time to time and Customer and/or end user failure to install any update may affect
Customer’s Service and/or use of the Software. Customer may use the Software only as part of, or for use with, the Service as authorized in this
Addendum.

Verizon Wireless grants Customer a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use the Service and the Software solely as authorized in this
Addendum. All rights regarding use of the Service and Software not expressly granted in this Addendum are reserved by Verizon Wireless and/or any
third-party licensors. The Software contains some programming, scripts, tools, modules, libraries, components, or other items that were developed
using "Open Source" code; which are available for download at www.verizon.com/opensource.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 46 of 48




https://infomanagerkms.vzwcorp.com/content/km/glossary.html#102563

http://www.verizon.com/opensource



Software was developed solely at private expense, and Customer has no other rights in software than those set forth herein. As such, customer may
not adapt, alter, modify, reverse engineer, de-compile, disassemble, translate, attempt to derive source code from or create derivative works of the
Service or Software, or otherwise tamper with or modify any security features or other Service components for any reason (or allow or help anyone
else to do so). Customer also agrees to follow all rules and policies applicable to the Service, including the installation of required or automated

updates, modifications and/or reinstallations of Software and obtaining available patches to address security, interoperability and/or performance
issues.

9. Disclaimer of Warranty. THE SERVICE AND SOFTWARE ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND “AS AVAILABLE” WITHOUT WARRANTIES,
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OF ANY KIND BY EITHER VERIZON WIRELESS, OUR AFFILIATES, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, LICENSORS,
CONTRACTORS, AND AGENTS (TOGETHER, THE "VERIZON PARTIES"), INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO WARRANTIES OF TITLE, NON-
INFRINGEMENT OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THE VERIZON PARTIES
AND ANY THIRD PARTY MOBILE APPLICATION STORE OPERATORS FROM WHICH YOU DOWNLOAD THE ONE TALK MOBILE APP WILL
NOT BE LIABLE TO YOU OR ANYONE ELSE FOR ANY LOSSES OR DAMAGES OF ANY KIND OR ANY SECURITY ISSUES THAT MAY RESULT
FROM YOUR USE OF THE SERVICE. NO ADVICE OR INFORMATION GIVEN BY THE VERIZON PARTIES SHALL CREATE ANY WARRANTY
HEREUNDER.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 47 of 48






Regulatory Surcharges and Fees

Verizon Wireless' pricing does not include federal, state, local or foreign fees, assessments or other charges (collectively “fees”), which must be billed based on the
jurisdiction in which the subscriber’s cellular number is set up and located. Fees vary by state and local areas and are subject to change without notice.

Verizon Wireless cannot provide a comprehensive list of all charges and regulatory fees required and assessed when using a wireless device because they vary
greatly from one jurisdiction to another.

In addition to taxes, surcharges and fees that we are required to collect, we will also collect charges to recover or help defray costs of taxes and governmental
surcharges and fees imposed on us, and costs associated with governmental regulations and mandates on our business. These charges include, among others, a
Regulatory Charge and a Federal Universal Service Charge, and are described below in more detail. These charges are Verizon Wireless charges, not taxes, and
are subject to change. Because these charges are not taxes, your tax exemptions, if any, will not apply to these charges.

Federal Universal Service Charge
Wireless carriers are assessed by the federal government to fund the delivery of universally-affordable telecommunications and information services under the Federal
Universal Service Fund (FUSF) program.

The Federal Universal Service Charge (FUSC) collected by Verizon is a percentage of the customer's monthly bill and is used to defray the costs of the FUSF. The
FUSC is collected on most items on the bill, other than data charges for wireless broadband Internet access, equipment charges and taxes. As of July 1, 2018, the
basic FUSC rate is 17.90% and changes quarterly. The FUSC rate for bundled minute plans is 4.69% if the customer does not exceed the included number of minutes.
The 17.90% rate applies to long distance interstate calls that exceed the customer's included bundle of minutes. Other services, such as VOIP, are charged a lower
FUSC rate.

e Cellular Access for voice calling plans (only on first 79% of this item)
e Verizon Wireless Toll

e Roaming Charges

e Activation Charges

e Re-connect fees

e Landline Connect Fee

e TXT Messaging monthly service
e  TXT Messaging usage

e Airtime usage for voice calls

e Mobile to Mobile feature

< Nights and Weekends feature

e Toll free feature

The quarterly percentage rate described above for the FUSC is applied in our billing system.

Verizon Wireless also imposes state universal service charges. These charges vary by jurisdiction and are subject to change depending on changes in the state
universal service impositions on Verizon Wireless.

Regulatory Charge
The Regulatory Charge is an assessment that helps defray our ongoing costs of complying with various governmental mandates and assessments.
Examples include:

e  The cost of the license fees assessed by the FCC.

e  Costs assessed by the FCC to administer local number portability requirements.

This charge is subject to change over time upon notice and is taxable in most jurisdictions. The Regulatory Charge is $0.02 per line for wireless Mobile
Broadband Internet access and Machine to Machine devices and $0.21 per line for all other services.

Regulatory fees impacting the wireless industry are constantly evolving and are subject to change without notice. For more information you can visit the FCC's website
at www.fcc.gov.

Verizon Wireless offers this pricing utilizing the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint (NVLPT) Contract #1907, Addenda and Attachments can be found on www.naspovaluepoint.org site for
your consideration and review. Your State may also have a NVLPT Participating Addendum which may be available on your State website. Alternatively, you may contact your local Verizon Government
Sales representative for additional information. v.082418 (22%)

Page 48 of 48




http://www.fcc.gov/



		NVLPT Nationwide for Government Share Calling Plans

		NVLPT Nationwide for Government Calling Plans

		NVLPT Nationwide for Business Calling Plans

		NVLPT Local Flat Rate Calling Plan

		Nationwide Flat Rate Calling Plan

		Nationwide Push to Talk Plus Calling Plan (non-share)

		Nationwide Add-a-Line Voice Plan with Push to Talk Plus 

		NVLPT 3G/4G Nationwide Email for Government Calling Plans

		NVLPT 3G/4G Nationwide Email for Government Nationwide Add-a-Line Plan

		NVLPT Nationwide International Email for Government Calling Plans

		International Options Monthly Features:  Mexico and Canada

		International Options Monthly Features:  140+ Countries

		M2M Data Plan Terms and Conditions

		Regulatory Surcharges and Fees



		M2M Data Plan Share Options








verizon’

NASPO ValuePoint
15t Quarter Equipment Offers

SMARTPHONE DEVICES:

Apple iPhone 7* 32GB $0

Apple iPhone 8* 64GB $0

Apple iPhone Xs*(New Activations; 1/1/20- 2/29/20) $400 Discount, Final Cost Varies
Apple iPhone Xs*(Upgrade Activations; 1/1/20- 2/29/20) $300 Discount, Final Cost Varies
Google Pixel 3a 64GB $0

Google Pixel 3aXL 64GB $0

Google Pixel 4(New Activations); $300 Discount, Final Cost Varies

Google Pixel 4(Upgrade Activations); $150 Discount, Final Cost Varies

Google Pixel 4XL(New Activations); $300 Discount, Final Cost Varies

Google Pixel 4XL(Upgrade Activations); $150 Discount, Final Cost Varies

Motorola Moto Z4 $0

Kyocera Duraforce Pro 2* $0

Samsung Galaxy S10*; $300 Discount, Final Cost Varies

Samsung Galaxy S10+*; $300 Discount, Final Cost Varies

Samsung A50 $0

*Push-to-Talk Plus (PTT +) capable, please inquire for complete list of devices.

OfferRequirements:

Plans must have a monthly access fee of $19.99 or greater plus a required data package.
All NASPO ValuePoint voice and data bundles qualify.

Plan activated must be a 1 year rate plan code.

Applies to new activations and eligible upgrades**

BASIC DEVICES:

e Kyocera DuraXV LTE $0*

*Push-to-Talk Plus (PTT +) capable, please inquire for complete list of devices.

Offer Requirements:

Plans must have a minimum monthly access of $14.99 or greater after contract discount.
Plan activated must be a 1 year rate plan code.

Applies to new activations and eligible upgrades**

Additional Terms & Conditions: **Offer good for new and eligible upgrades for Government Liable customers only. Offers cannot
be combined with any other government discount incentives unless otherwise noted in offer T&C’s. Plan activated must be on a 1-
year rate plan. All devices are available while supplies last.





verizon’

INTERNET DEVICES:

e MHS900L $0
e MiFi8800L (Public Safety Eligibility Only) $0

Offer Requirements:

Must activate service on a Mobile Broadband or M2M plan with monthly access fee of $19.99 or higher.
Plan activated must be a 1 year rate plan code.

Applies to new activations and eligible upgrades**

Bill Incentive Credits that government accounts qualify for:

$50 Smartphone device activation BIC (1/1/2020- 3/31/2020):
e New activations, $34.99 plan minimum

Offer Requirements:

Requires a 1-year contract and a plan that is $34.99 or higher with required data feature.

Bill Incentive Credits will be removed if account changes

(e.g., changes to features, MDNs, account numbers, Device IDs, etc.) are applied within 30 days of purchase.
Bill Incentive Credits are applied within 90 days.

Other rules and restrictions may apply, please contact your Verizon Wireless representative for further clarification.

Additional Terms & Conditions: **Offer good for new and eligible upgrades for Government Liable customers only. Offers cannot
be combined with any other government discount incentives unless otherwise noted in offer T&C’s. Plan activated must be on a 1-
year rate plan. All devices are available while supplies last.





		SMARTPHONE DEVICES:

		Offer Requirements:

		BASIC DEVICES:

		Offer Requirements:

		INTERNET DEVICES:

		Offer Requirements:

		Bill Incentive Credits that government accounts qualify for:




CboQuotes@verizonwireless.com

For Naspo/WCSA customers Support, please email:
GCOPacificSupportTeam@verizonwireless.com

OR CALL 800-295-1614 or 800-922-0204

Federal customers can email:
EederalAccountSupport@\VerizonWireless.com

OR CALL 800-295-1614 or 800-922-0204


mailto:CboQuotes@verizonwireless.com
mailto:GCOPacificSupportTeam@verizonwireless.com
mailto:FederalAccountSupport@VerizonWireless.com

Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 11

CLAM Letter of Support to
County Supervisors for Coast
Guard Housing Development



Inverness Public Utility District

Fire Department & Water System
Post Office Box 469
Inverness, CA 94937-0469

50 Inverness Way No. & (415) 669-1414 & Fax (415) 669-1010

admin@invernesspud.org & www.invernesspud.org

February 21, 2020

Dennis Rodoni

Marin County Board of Supervisors
3501 Civic Center Drive

Room 329

San Rafael CA 94903

The Community Land Trust Association of West Marin (CLAM) has led the community-based effort for
the County of Marin to purchase the Coast Guard property in Pt. Reyes since 2014. Now that the trans-
fer of ownership is complete, The Inverness Public Utility District strongly supports the selection of
CLAM to repurpose this site for homes affordable to our community members in perpetuity.

CLAM's vision of a neighborhood fully integrated into the Point Reyes Village, with housing available to a
spectrum of incomes and with community uses on site, has been born out of their ongoing process of
grassroots organizing for input and participation, and reflects the coalescing of a shared community vi-
sion for this site.

The Point Reyes and West Marin communities are deeply invested in the disposition of this property to
address the need for affordable homes along the rural coast. We believe that CLAM, as a community
land trust with deep relationships with local residents and organizations, is uniquely positioned to shape
the housing and community uses on the site. As an organization providing essential services to the resi-
dents of Inverness and the greater community of West Marin, along with the Marin County Fire Depart-
ment, the need for affordable housing for employees and volunteers of our organization is of significant
concern. The lack of affordable housing for individuals and families who are or could be employed lo-
cally has become a great concern and threatens the future of essential services in West Marin.

CLAM has partnered with nonprofit affordable housing developer Eden Housing to guide financing and
construction if their joint bid is selected. CLAM’s community support, together with Eden’s financial
strength, experience and track record, is a partnership of strength for this most important opportunity
for West Marin.

We support CLAM’s bid for redevelopment of the Coast Guard site. Furthermore, we encourage ongoing
consideration that this property become community-owned land on a community land trust model, so
this neighborhood can be guided by local voices over the long term. We urge your consideration of
these essential elements for the future of the West Marin community.

Respectfully,

Kenneth Emanuels
President
Board of Directors

Board of Directors: Kenneth J. Emanuels, President e Dakota Whitney, Vice President
Kathryn Donohue, Treasurer e Brent Johnson e David Press
@r 5
Shelley Redding, Administrator e James K. Fox, Chief of Operations (Fire Chief, Water Superintendent)



Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 16

Committee Meetings/Reports




Inverness Public Utility District
Board Meeting February 26, 2020

Agenda Item No. 17

Announcements,
Next Meeting,

Adjournment




	00 Agenda 2020-02-26
	01 Tab Call to order
	02 Public Expression
	03 Minutes Approval
	03a 20200122 Reg minutes Draft
	04 Management Report
	04a Jan Balance Sheet
	04b Jan 2020 P&L
	04c Profit & Loss Budget V Actual YTD
	05 Tab Water System Rpt
	05a 2020 January IPUD water report
	06 Fire Department Report
	06a Fire Department Report
	07 Tab Res 251 - Administrator to Act in place of GM
	7a SR Res 251-2020 Admin as GM
	7b Res 251-2020 (Administrator act as GM)
	08 Tenney Tank Project
	08a Tenney Tank Committee Meeting 01.31.2020
	09 Tab Proposal for Increase in Water Rates
	09a SR Increase water rates
	09b Proposed rates 07-01-2020
	09c Rates setting analysis
	09d 3-yr Budget Projections
	09e 2020Prop218NoticePages1-2
	09f 2020Prop218NoticePage3
	09g 2020Prop218NoticePage4
	10 Tab Res 250-2020 Fund Categories GASB 54
	10a SR Res 250-2020 GASB 54 fund types
	10b Res 250-2020 (GASB 54 Fund Types)
	10c Res 250 GASB schematic attachment
	11 Tab Res 247-2020 Tank Replacement Fund
	11a SR Res 247-2020 rev2 Tank fund
	11b Res 247-2020 rev2 (Tank Replacement Fund)
	11c Res 247 Revenue analysis 2018-20Page 1
	11d Res 247 Revenue analysis 2018-20Page 2
	12 Tab Expenditures
	12a Jan Expense Ledger Report
	12b J Foc Cal Card 012220 Detail
	12c S Redding Cal Card 012220 Detail
	13 Tab Personnel Recommendations
	13a SR Personnel Committee Reccomendations
	13b Personnel Committee Recommendations Summary
	14 Tab Verizon Cellphone Contract
	14a SR Verizon Wireless User Agreement
	14b Verizon Inverness PUD AUTHORIZED_USER_AGREEMENT Newest (1)
	NASPO ValuePoint (formerly known as WSCA) #1907
	AUTHORIZED USER AGREEMENT

	14c Verizon 4G Plan
	14d Verizon Q1 2020 Quarterly Offers
	SMARTPHONE DEVICES:
	Offer Requirements:
	BASIC DEVICES:
	Offer Requirements:
	INTERNET DEVICES:
	Offer Requirements:
	Bill Incentive Credits that government accounts qualify for:

	14eVerizon Follow-up Items email
	15 Tab CLAM Support Letter
	15a CLAM support letter revised 02.20.20
	16 Tab Committee Meetings Reports
	17 Tab Adjournment



